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CORPORATE PROFILE
NI My

ABOUT RADIANCE

Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (stock code: 9993.HK) is a
reputable large property developer with national presence, regional focus and
leading positions in select cities, and we focus on providing quality residential
properties to first-time homebuyers and first-time upgraders. With over 25
years’ experience, we have expanded our operations into eight regions with
strong growth potential in China, namely, the Yangtze River Delta, the Bohai
Economic Rim, Shenzhen/Huizhou, Southeastern China, Eastern China, Central
China, Southwestern China and Northwestern China.

We have expanded our residential property development business into
different cities across the PRC and further established four branded series:
the New Block series (f84 %), the Elite’'s Mansion series (EZ& &), the
King's Garden series (85 # %) and the Metropolitan series (K ZR) . In 2021,
we launched the “Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0" product IP, which covers the overall
improvement of indoor and outdoor space, software and hardware services,
and upgrades the product quality and appearance in all aspects.

In terms of comprehensive strengths, we were ranked as one of “China’s
Top 50 Real Estate Developers’ (I o0 B 52 h 28 1 3 45 & A15034) by the
China Real Estate Association (FI[El E# Z1#}®)and the China Real Estate
Appraisal Center of Shanghai E-house China Research Institute (£ 5 /&
%%E{Eﬂmﬁn) for eight consecutive years since 2014 and the 37th among
"2021 China's Top 50 Real Estate Developers’ [ 20215 B S 3 & (> X 5
BI503%1, and were ranked as one of “China’s Top 10 Real Estate Developers
of Comprehensive Strength” (TFHEE#EMZEEESE AT T581); we
were ranked 34th among “2021 China’s Top 100 Listed Real Estate Developers”
(M2021 E¢.tl“ﬁ%ﬂﬂ)§ﬂ:¥§?§ﬁ and “Top 1 of Development Speed
of Listed Companies” (T LT /A B R RETOP1 J).

Company Mission
Build properties with craftsmanship and make homes better.
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Corporate Values

Openness and
Inclusive|

)i 42)

Customer first Accountability
Ei

Corporate Vision

Devoted to improving the quality of our products and services through
continuous innovation and aim to become a trustworthy leading property

developer in the PRC.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Ting Keung (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Yu

Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Huang Junquan

Mr. Xu Xiaodong (appointed on 25 March 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Huagiao
Mr. Tse Yat Hong
Mr. Chung Chong Sun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Huagiao
Mr. Tse Yat Hong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Huagiao (Chairman)

Mr. Tse Yat Hong

Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Lam Yu (appointed on 25 March 2022)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Ting Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Huagiao
Mr. Chung Chong Sun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ngam (FHKICPA, AICPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Xu Xiaodong (appointed on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on 25 March 2022)
Mr. Chiu Ngam

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, Oxford House

Taikoo Place,

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Maxa Capital Limited

LEGAL ADVISER

Sidley Austin
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

42/F, Radiance Plaza
Qiyang Road
Wangjing
Chaoyang District
Beijing

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 6701-02, 67/F

The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Second Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square P.O. Box 902

” .Grand Cayman

SEIE SR B2

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE

2021 MARCH

On 16 March, China Real Estate Association (FEIE#EZ#E) and China
Real Estate Appraisal Center (FHEE#1Z BI5F+ 0 of Shanghai E House
China Research Institute (=785 & B # Z B 35F7) released the list of the
"2021 Best 500 China Real Estate Developers” (202177 B 5 #f 2 B8 2 1 %500
38), where Radiance Holdings was ranked 37th in the “2021 Best 500 China
Real Estate Developers” from its outstanding performance in 2020. At the
same time, Radiance was also recognised as one of the “2020 Best 10 of China
Real Estate Developer in terms of Comprehensive Strength” (20200 & i
ERZRELRESERE058) for 6 consecutive years.

THEARE

2021 =8

3R16H FEEMEXHE  LiESERMEMR P E
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAET

On 18 March, in the “2021 China Top 100 Real Estate Developer Research
Results Conference” (2021 BB E TR EMTAREMHE)jointly
organized by China Enterprise Evaluation Association (FEI{># T ER ),
Tsinghua University Real Estate Research Institute (G5 & A 22 B2 th ZE T 35 Ff)
and China Index Academy (FR35HFZTHE), with its steady growth in annual
performance and continuous improvement in comprehensive strength,
Radiance Holdings was honored as “2021 Top 1 Outstanding Enterprise in
Real Estate Operation with Chinese characteristics” (20217435 (& ith 18
EBFEETOP1), “Top 37 of China's Top 100 Real Estate Developers” (2021
PR 5 3 2 B 98 1R 2 TOP37) and obtained various awards including “2020-
2021 Yearly Poverty Alleviation Benchmark Enterprise of Chinese Real Estate

Industry” (2020-2021 R E B EEE KB IEREE).

# CERTIFICATE
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAET

2021 MAY 2021 HA

On 25 May, the assessment meeting of the “Eighteenth (2021) Annual Blue 58250 > H&BERBEMNE+NBQNEEFGTF
Chip Conference” (55+/\[E(2021)BEEE &) organized by the Economic BEERBM SEIZEREE L HRETETINESBLER
Observer News (A& #122%R) was held in Beijing. Radiance Holdings was RIE> BEEFHEEZECE B

once again awarded the title of “Blue Chip Enterprise” in China by virtue of its

steady development performance in the industry since its Listing.

i

FHNAB(021)ENES

AKRR (4d) AR%E

Enemie L IEI
o i &

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited !

o




MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAET

On 27 May, the “2021 List of China Listed Real Estate Developers in terms 58327 PHEMEERE L BEEEMENERTER
of Comprehensive Strengths” (M 2021 FBIEHME EHARAKRES EMENFRLOBMEEMG 20001 PEEE LB ARGRS
1) was jointly released by China Real Estate Association (FEIE#ZE BHE  SBEREE 201 FEEHE FTTARGEE
#1%8) and China Real Fstate Appraisal Center (FEIE#ERZFHL) 7710058 553401 > MR EH AR ZERERETOP | BIEE
of Shanghai E-house China Research Institute (L8 ZERMEMRTIE, ZHERUSESEREBRNER HAFELHTEEHRE
Radiance Holdings ranked 34th among the “Top 100 China Listed Real Estate /7 °

Developers in terms of Comprehensive Strength in 2021 (202171 B = ith

E LT RAB4&REE /10058]1) and was recognized as the Top One Listed

Company in terms of Development Speed. With many years of persistence in

the path of high-quality growth, Radiance Holdings has become a new force

in China’s listed real estate companies.

_ eEmMEFiaRsAnE
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2021 JUNE

On 28 June, Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (9993.HK)
published its 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) report. This
is the first ESG report published by Radiance Holdings, covering the five
aspects of corporate strategy, customer service, innovative products, talent
mechanisms and public welfare. The report comprehensively and objectively
introduced the vision, strategy and practice of Radiance Holdings on the
road to sustainable development, and illustrated the actions proactively
taken by Radiance Holdings for promoting sustainable development and the
effectiveness thereof in detail.

REBLR

BAVANCE MOLDINGT
Radiance Heldimgs (Grosp) Company Limited
&R (NE) WA E

e ey

MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAER
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAET

2021 JULY

On 8 July, a toy donation public charity action organized by the Group
together with Marwei Fund, namely the “Jincai Yingmiao Project - Jincai
Educational Garden” (s ¥ H & 51 8] — £ ¥ 5 5 E) donation ceremony was
held in Zhiluo Township Kindergarten at Butuo County Committee, Liangshan
Yi Autonomous Prefecture, Sichuan Province. Once again, Radiance Holdings
walked into Daliangshan and donated RMB200,000 to the public welfare fund
for the purchase of educational teaching aids such as blocks, puzzles, clay,
etc, and the establishment of 100 “Jincai Educational Garden” (¥ @S
&) educational toy activity corners, contributing the Group's public welfare
power to enrich the educational facilities of kindergartens in the counties of

Daliangshan.

2021 +tH

7HH EREREFBREASHABBASTHE £
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAET

On July 15, the “2021 China Real Estate Brand Awards” (M2021FEIE#E 7H15H> HAFBEEMERET T 20214 E B # E @2 &
AR BXHR 1) hosted by China Real Estate News was held in Beijing. Radiance I REM SRIEREEBREENGERT BE
Holdings was once again listed in the Top 100 Chinese Real Fstate Brand Value A [B 7 Bl /= #h & R i (B B 1% B 52TOP32 > M hE B A E85508%
List with a ranking of Top 32 and a brand value of over RMB55 billion, and {275 > & 1ERF/\ @ 1T [ 2021 P EH 5 #h 2 7 28 3 2 i A2
Radiance Park 18 was awarded the title of “New Landmark Commercial Real ~ #&5f

Estate of 2021 Chinese Real Estate Industry” (T 2021591 5= 3th 2 7 23t E 3

H#14Z 1) with its steady and excellent overall performance.

202IPER M= SR
cO2IhEREIR 2R T EEEEL

ND.3Y
BIFEITHR

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

i.'_



MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAFR

On July 28, under the witness of more than 300 mainstream media and
industry guests from a variety of industrial sectors, “Seeing a More Beautiful
Era" - Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0 Product Launch Ceremony (I& 85 EMEFH)
SIEEEEE3.0EREME) was held in Shanghai, gathering many years of
experience in building cities, forming a professional R&D team, originates
from serving the human inhabitation and satisfying the needs of customers
in a nutshell, “Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0" keenly captures market changes, continues
to iterate and upgrade products and keeping up with the pace of times, so
as to incorporate warm technology into smart scene scenarios and present
customers with a “safe, green, healthy and warm” smart community space,
innovate intelligent colors for the Yanxuan lifestyle to achieve continuous
consolidation and improvement of product power and redefine the Yanpin
lifestyle under the trend of the times with eight modules.

7H288  TEEBOBGRRERERRERTERENHE
RBT TEREXNRA SIEEE EREMITLE

BARET RESFRPER HRERMEER UK
AERBER LUREERNBERSRE  SRERET S
216> TEMETERNERA R TRRERS X KA
BENMERBAZIEZSRT RERER 22 B
REVER MESUHETEE REELEEENEEER
BREMNINAEZENRA  MNAKRBRREHREEFA
BB THEAEREES-
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
E PN

2021 SEPTEMBER 2021 H A

On 10 September, the 2021 (4th) Leju Annual Finance Forum (2021 (5@ 9B 108 U AT ER2021 (FNE) #FEMKEE
@) &EBEFEE#18) was held in Shanghai with the theme “Steady and  #iBE LS  SEEREEAHABNE R REE
Progressive”. Jinhui Yanxuan was awarded “2021 Most Innovative Product IP 2021 B EAI¥ HERIP ] °

in China” (M2021EI &R EAIFT SIERIPI) by virtue of its innovative and

upgraded product system.

On 16 September, “2021 China Real Estate Fashions Awards” (20215 EF  9F16H > I 20211 BEEMERIE I G T I 2021 FEEREM
[ #11 ZE JEL 18 A 8% )) were announced at the “2021 Boao Real Estate Forum” — EER M K% o SEBIZEREEBENIER D AN ERD
(M20211BE EMERIEB]) . With steady growth, innovative products and MBI GEEB N BB 2001 EFEEATIBEZE ¥
strong comprehensive strength, Radiance Holdings was awarded “2021 Top ~ TOP10J°

10 Capital Market Influential Enterprises’ (M2021 EEE AT HEEHBE

TOP101J).
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAET

On 23 September, the press conference of “China Real Estate Enterprise  9823H ' HHTEREMERTHES L EZEEMMEN R
Brand Value” jointly researched and released by China Real Estate Association, 3 EEEEBE BRI 202174 E F i E % & B EE R 5T
Shanghai E-House China Research Institute (E/8 3 BEMAEMER) MREREFZINABEH SBERBREESNEBRAS
and China Real Estate Appraisal Center was held in Chengdu, Radiance EBIEEE > LEITEEMECERERERI IR AE
Holdings was awarded the title of “2021 Best Employer of Chinese Real F2021HE B ZE= 2 A ST E 2B E3058] (TOP24) K T 2021
Estate Enterprises” (M2021BEEMECEREREL), and was selected HEEMEBSEXCHBELE] -

as one of the “2021 Top 30 Chinese Real Estate Enterprises in Human Capital

Value” (T 20214 Bl 5 #h & (b 2 A D E A{B{E30581) (TOP24) and "2021

Outstanding Culture Promotion Enterprise of Chinese Real Estate Industry”

(Mo hEREMEEFCHELE)).
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2021 OCTOBER

On October 26, the 11th Annual Conference on China’s Real Estate, themed
“Value Anchoring, Rational Progress” (IBEBE EBMKE]), was held
in Shenzhen. Leveraging on its healthy financial performance, innovative
and upgraded product system and continuous dedication to public welfare,
Radiance Holdings won the distinctive award of “2021 China Valuable Real
Estate Listed Company” (2021 EEEEME EHAE).

MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
B AN

2021F+A8

108268 UTHHEBE EMRE ATENE+—ER
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAFR

On October 28, Radiance and Accor Group signed a cooperation agreement
to jointly construct a Sofitel flagship hotel in the prime location on the North
Bund of Hongkou District, Shanghai.

108280 AR SERRZSFIHE A RN DB
M@ oMz Ot R BT E RIEA AR AS

2021 NOVEMBER

On 12 November, the “China Business Annual Meeting Week on Enterprise
Competitiveness — 2021 China City Operation and Development Summit”
(THFECEFRFNEGER 2021 FERWELEHRERIESR]), co-
hosted by China Business Journal and China Business Future, was successfully
held. By virtue of its outstanding contributions in participating in public
welfare initiatives, fulfilling social responsibilities and cultivating social talents,
Radiance Holdings was awarded the honorary title of “2021 Annual Social
Responsibility Outstanding Contribution Enterprise” (12021 FEH B EE R
HEMEZE).

e

2021F+—A8
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2021 DECEMBER

On 16 December, the “19th China’s Financial Annual Champion Awards" (F55
+AEMKREZERE]) and “12th Real Estate & Finance Innovation Summit”
(ME+_EHMEERIAIFIEE]), hosted by China Stock Exchange
Executive Council (SEEC) and Hexun.com Finance Club of China, concluded
successfully in Shanghai. With its excellent performance, Radiance Holdings
won two industrial awards, namely the “2021 Top 10 Model Real Estate Listed
Companies in Business Capability” 2021FEREME EH AT+ KEEFEN
FE5#%) and the “2021 Model Real Estate Enterprises in Brand Influence” (2021
FEMEDLERMEENER), and its business capability and brand
influence were once again recognized by the industrial authority.

MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
EHEAFR

2021F+_"H

128168 > R BEE S IH A &R 5T FO(SEEC) ~ FI A A8 BE
KPHGIMNETNAEMERAER RIE - EBHE
TRIAMES  ELERNERE EIEREERENSK
B HE0ERME EH AR+ REEENER 20215
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MAJOR EVENTS OF RADIANCE
E AN

2022 JANUARY 2022 —H

On 1 January, the Jinhui Yanxuan Workshop officially opened in Wuxi Radiance 1A 1H > £EBEETHNEHSRE RXLHKEESHEE
Tianyi Mingzhu Realistic Demonstration Park, which attracted the industry’s  IETVBIR 518 T2 /T BRBER T HYI SRS E 7 48
attention, as well as brought about the feeling of pure and frank attitude of  FUIEHN ERBREERAEERENEBEEL - BEARNE
Radiance and the Radiance artisanship of making the house in perfection SREIZE2IFERR(L BELHARAKREZIZSNEGRAENE
through the Yanxuan Workshop. The invisible building nodes have all become B2 > BIEMEIFF BEIFFE -

transparent, so that customers’ imagination of future life scenes can be truly

presented and what they see is what they get.

Throughout 2021, Radiance has always followed the product concept of TE2021F 25 TRPRKBRERSER BLUERNER
“Crafting Quality with Artisanship, Building Homes with Perfection” (F3&8E  IE& > REBAINR T AEBE0RRIE  WETERATNE
B BDER), winning more than 80 domestic and international design B > B {TEREE30OMEM B HERBE L HRM B8
awards, harvesting industry recognition while practicing the landing of

“Yanxuan 3.0" and trying its best to fulfill customers’ dreams of home.




“2021 Notes”

F2021Z 4

2022 Notes”

F202224 )

2023 Notes”

F2023&4#

2022 AGM”

MONFREBAFAREG]

"ABS"
ME E IR

“Articles”
=AY

“ASP”
e EE]

“Board”

=<8

“BVI"
EEELRE

“China” or "PRC"
THAE

“Company” or “our Company” or

“Radiance” or “Radiance Holdings”

NI Al Al 2

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

HERR AR R

“CG Code”
M EEASFR

GLOSSARY AND DEFINITION

AR RER

the 11.75% senior notes due October 2021 in the aggregate principal amount of US$250 million
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and issued by Radiance Capital

SREABTHN S - —F+ A FHAS4EEE24250,000,000FTH11.75% B L 24 > I

RHMRBHFRZZABRAT LM

the 10.5% senior notes due January 2022 in the aggregate principal amount of US$300 million
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and issued by Radiance Capital

FEBEEABTNR S 2F— B RHBARE4E % 7300,000,000E 7589 10.5% 18 5o 245 > w510

MINRESXZAERAT LS

the 7.8% senior notes due September 2024 in the aggregate principal amount of US$300 million

listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and issued by Radiance Capital

SREABTN S ZNFENA A S 48E67300,000,000ETTHI7 8% B A Z i » W

MBS ZFARRAR LS

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 20 May 2022

KABREFR2022F5 8208 BHRERITHNREBFFARE

asset-backed securities

HERTES

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company adopted on 29 October 2020

A B 20205103290 AMA A E ST R AS B 5 i S A2 4R B

average selling price

FIHEE

the board of Directors

59

the British Virgin Islands
REBEZEES

the People’s Republic of China
RE ANRHEME

Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (E#81Z& (@) BRAE), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability

TEER (EE) ARAF —HERSESEMMINEREERAR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and, unless the context requires

otherwise, collectively refers to Mr. Lam, Ms. Lam, Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine

BE iR FZANEE RIEXESEMFE SRIAMEE Mt SEERE

% LUK IR IR B A 7

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LEHRAIM SR+ PP E AR EEa T A
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"Deed of Non-competition” the deed of non-competition dated 13 October 2020 entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders with and in favor of the Company, further information of which is set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus

IRHF 2T 15 ERBRRERABMTULUAARBBZEHEA > AEAR2020F 108 138N FHF 2%
HEENERERMRERRRAEFR —E

“Directors” director(s) of the Company

E%) 18 KABES

“GFA" gross floor area

MEREmA 18 MR EmAA

“Glowing Shine” Glowing Shine Limited (B¥8HR/AE]), a company incorporated in the BVI with limited

liability, which is wholly owned by Radiance Group Holdings, and is one of the Controlling
Shareholders

=) = BIEERAR —HARBRELHEAMULNERAR DB ERZEREIEES
WRERRRZ —

"Group,” "our Group,” “we,” “our” or "us” the Company and its subsidiaries

[ AR 2 5 KRB REMBEAT

“Hong Kong dollars” or "HKS$" Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

M&7T 5 BERETEEET

"

“Independent Third Party(ies) an individual(s) or company(ies) who or which is/are to the best of our Director's knowledge,

information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not our connected persons

as defined under the Listing Rules

MEIIE=71 = BEEKFEH— S EBEEABRMAN BFXREE TIFERMNBAEAL (EER LT
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the I-js't!_ng of the Shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 29 October 2020

ngs in the Shares on the Stock Exchange first
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"Over-allotment Option”

NEBRARCAR 1)

“Prospectus”

MRRER)

"

“Radiance Capital

& A

“Radiance Group”

g5 M)

“Radiance Group Holdings”

Mg 5 MIER

“Register of Members”

Mg

“Renminbi” or "RMB”
TAR

"SFO”
58 5 R B G156

“Share(s)”
TRg1%]

“Share Option Scheme”
TR RESTEI

“Shareholder(s)"
TR ER

"sqm."

T 7K

“Stock Exchange”

TBk 32 Ffr )

0SS "USD” or 8"
=S

GLOSSARY AND DEFINITION
AEKRER

the option which had been exercised on 25 November 2020 by the Joint Global Coordinators
(for themselves on behalf of the International Underwriters) in respect of an aggregate
of 45,227,000 Over-allotment Shares, under the International Underwriting Agreement as
described in Prospectus

BE2KBEAAN (BEAIRARBERCHED) REBRERMANEKRSHE B ER
20204118250 Bt & 345,227,000/ B FREC A& R 1D 1T B RO BB PR 2

the prospectus of the Company dated 16 October 2020 being issued in connection with the
Listing
A B FE LTI H#AA2020F108 16 BB ER

Radiance Capital Investments Limited (& AKX EFRA T, a company incorporated in
the BVI and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

TEEARBARAR —BERBMEARFERNINAF  TARABZEEIFLE
MEAE

Radiance Group Co, Ltd. (EIBEERRAHBPRAE), a company incorporated in the People's
Republic of China and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
TIREERNDERAD —HAFERINERAD  UARRB ZEZEFEL2EWE R
S|

Radiance Group Holdings Limited (E¥E&EEZERBRAF]), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability which is owned as to 64.97% by
Mr. Lam and 35.03% by Ms. Lam, and one of the Controlling Shareholders
TIREEZERERAR —HERESEEIMBINEREERAE > 2AlEMEE R
Mz LB 64.97%5235.03% » 1 A PR IR ER > —

the register of members of the Company

TABBIRERBELM

the lawful currency of the PRC
HREEE S

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREOENERS MBEESG

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with the nominal value of HK$0.01 each

FABRAFEGREENIBTHERR

the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5 October 2020
ZSA B H220205R 108 5 H £R AR B9 6 g A 5t 8

holder(s) of the Shares
[SELEST=DN

square meter(s)

FK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERZMBRAF

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TEHRE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present to all Shareholders the annual results and business
review for the year ended 31 December 2021 as well as the prospects for 2022
of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited (‘Radiance Holdings" or the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group amounted
to RMB40,025.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 14.8% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit amounted
to RMB7,747.5 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
0.4% as compared to the corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable
to the owners of the Company was RMB3,274.8 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 4.7% as compared to the corresponding period of last
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Contract Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the contracted sales of the
Group reached RMB94,720 million with contracted gross floor area sold
of approximately 5.79 million sgq.m. The contracted average selling price
amounted to approximately RMB16,359 per sq.m.

Deep Urban Penetration, Steady but Progressive

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group secured 30 new land
parcels and the planned floor area was approximately 3.895 million sq.m.,
covering 13 first-tier and strong second-tier key cities including Beijing,
Ningbo, Shaoxing and Quanzhou, and mainly located at the Yangtze River
Delta and the southeastern region.

As of 31 December 2021, the total gross floor area of land bank of Radiance
Holdings reached 33.19 million sg.m., of which 97.7% was located in strong
second-tier and core third-tier cities, providing a solid basis for the robust and
high-quality growth in the future.

Strengthen Business Layout and Build a Better City

In 2021, the Group further strengthened the layout of its commercial office
and hotel business while steadily developing the real estate development
segment. In April 2021, the Beijing Radiance Park 18 project was officially
unveiled. With 5A Grade A level hardware condition, the project aims to
build a cutting-edge industry incubation platform and become a new
engine to promote the economic development of the region. Positioned as
an intelligent manufacturing industrial park, Radiance Park 18 accelerates
the construction of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration, and together with
the established Wangjing CBD, Zhongguancun Industrial Zone and Fengtai
Science and Technology Park, it forms the urban-level industrial chain of
Beijing.
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Meanwhile, the Group also endeavoured for the expansion of its hotel
business segment. In February 2021, the Fuging Sheraton Hotel was grandly
opened, becoming the first international five-star hotel in Fuging and
injecting new vitality into the city’s development. In October 2021, the Group
signed a cooperation agreement with Accor Group to develop Sofitel Jinhui
in Shanghai’s North Bund into a landmark hotel that blends the French
art of living with the long history of the Bund in Shanghai. The Group has
fully utilized its advantages in resource integration and cooperated with
internationally renowned hotel brands to launch projects such as Sheraton
Jinhui Hotel in Xi'an, Crowne Plaza Jinhui Hotel in Taicang and Crowne Plaza
Jinhui Hotel in Wuhan.

The Group will continue to improve the business layout of various types of
properties, including residential, commercial, hotel, office and complex, to
help improve urban support services and promote the beautiful development
of the city.

Sound Financial Policies for Sustainable and Healthy Growth
Looking back at 2021, the sales area of commercial properties across China
reached 1.794 billion sq.m, while the sales amount reached RMB18.19 trillion,
representing year-on-year increases of 1.9% and 4.8% respectively. During
the year, the real estate market experienced a relatively vibrant fluctuation,
despite both the sales area and sales amount achieved annual growth. A
positive growing trend was recorded during the first half of the year, the
condition during the second half of the year, however, continued to decline,
resulting in the continuous negative growth rate of sales area and sales
amount of commercial properties across China. Under the influence of
regulatory policies such as the “Three Red Lines” and “Two Concentrations”,
both the operational cash flow and financial cash flow of the overall real
estate industry tightened, which brought about a significant liquidity crisis
to the real estate companies. The indifferent response from the demand
side resulted in a dampened sentiment of the investment side of real
estate enterprises. The total gross floor area of housing which commenced
construction in 2021 recorded a year-on-year decrease of over 11% and a
declining trend of growth rate was shown in real estate development and
investment for the whole year. A significant influence to the market supply
in the future is expected. In light of the fierce changes in the market, the
Group maintained a sound financial position by proactively responding
to the changes in policies, focusing on sales and urging the payments of
receivables. After being one of the first batch of the real estate companies that
met the requirements of the “Three Red Lines” by the end of 2020, the Group
continued to present a satisfactory result with full compliance with the “Three
Red Lines” in mid-year and year end of 2021. The solid financial management
policies and continuously improving financial structures offered robust

security for the Group to resolve the liquidity crisis.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Since achieving the green files of the “Three Red Lines” at the beginning of
the year, the Group has further optimized its debt structure and expanded
domestic and external financing channels. As of 31 December 2021, the
weighted average cost of indebtedness of Group further decreased to 6.58%,
representing a decrease of 0.89 percentage points as compared to the
weighted average cost of indebtedness of 7.47% as of 31 December 2020.

In 2021, the three major international rating agencies have successively
adjusted the rating of Radiance Holdings upward, which resulted in a credit
ratings of “B+/stable” from S&P, “B1/stable” from Moody's, and “B+/positive”
from Fitch. As of the end of 2021, the three major rating agencies maintained
their ratings under the tightening credit policy environment, which showed
the recognition by the capital market.

High-Quality Development and Highly Recognized by the
Industry

Radiance Holdings ranked the 37th in the 2021 Overall Strength List of
Property Developers (20215 (B 47 & B 1145 &) published by the China Real
Estate Association, 34th among the top 100 listed real estate companies in
China in 2021 and 1st in the speed of development of listed companies. We
also received numerous honours in 2021, including brand influential enterprise
(BEBEEHEE), socially responsible enterprise (Mt ZHESMEE),
outstanding innovative real estate company of the year (EEBFRIHFEN
#hZE A F)) and the best employer of real estate enterprises in China (FRE &
MECERERE).

Following our product concept of “Crafting Quality with Artisanship, Building
Homes with Perfection” (Fi&EE R > ZH 05 ZK), the Group has kept up the
pace in the research and development of new products, and won 83 domestic
and international design awards during 2021, including the “Top 20 Product
Power Enterprises of China Real Estate Developers of 2020" (202051 [ = ih &
B AR/ +581%), the "16th Annual Kinpan Real Estate Innovation
Enterprise” (F+/NEEEEBHERIFEZ), the "Digital Application
Innovation Brand Cloud Award” (BtF{CFE B EIFT @R EE1E) and the
Italian IIDA AWARD International Design Award.

The Official Launch of Yanxuan 3.0 Product System,
Decoding Intelligent and Beautiful Life

In 2021, the Group launched the “Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0” product system to
present safe, green, healthy and warm intelligent community space for
customers, and has been gradually implemented in more than 30 projects
in 21 cities across China, with the starting point of serving the human
inhabitation, and our insight into the trend of the times and customer needs.
With the corporate core value of “continuously improving products and
services”, the Group, after sufficient technical precipitation and technological
innovation, combined with the “Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0" product system to
implement the first “Yanxuan Workshop” in Wuxi Tianyi Mingzhu project,
which presents the entire process from quality details inside and outside the
building to the effect on the hand over, and makes the invisible architectural
nodes transparent to customers, allowing customers’ imagination of future
living scenes to be truly presented, and what they see is what they get.
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In July 2021, the Group entered into a cooperation agreement with
Alibaba Cloud, under which the two parties will cooperate in various
aspects surrounding the complete life cycle of the building, such as digital
transformation, intelligent industrial real estate, intelligent commercial real
estate, intelligent habitat product development, intelligent community
construction and property leasing services, etc. The Group has always been
oriented to product development and services, empowering living space
with intelligent technology, and devoting itself to creating a richer, more
Intelligent, high-speed, intimate and safe living environment.

Adhere to Original Commitments and Promote the
Sustainable Development of Public Welfare

In 2021, the Group released its first ESG report, which introduced the Group's
vision, strategies and practices on the road of sustainable development in five
aspects, including corporate strategy, customer services, innovative products,
talent mechanism and philanthropy, and demonstrated in detail the Group's
actions and achievements in actively promoting sustainable development,
and obtained various awards including the Enterprise with Outstanding
Contribution to Social Responsibility, ESG Enterprise of the Year, etc. As an
enterprise with a sense of social responsibility, the Group never forgets
to actively give back to the society and take up its responsibility, actively
participating in medical aid, assisting children, actively helping farmers,
spreading urban positive energy and other charitable causes.

The Group has continued focus on medical philanthropy causes. At the
beginning of the year, the “Donation Ceremony of Medical Projects in Fuging”
(BB EEEEIBEET) jointly organized by the Fuging Municipal
Committee of the CPC and the People’s Government of Fuging concluded
successfully. At the donation ceremony, Radiance Holdings announced
its plan to donate RMB40 million to Fuzhou's medical projects in order to
support the development of medical business in Fuzhou. When the pandemic
suddenly hit the world, the Group, on the basis of its own pandemic
prevention and control work, repeatedly sent pandemic prevention gifts and
pandemic support materials to the front-line anti-pandemic workers, insisting
on the principle that the great love would not stop as long as the pandemic
continues, and guarding the health and safety of every city builder with whole
heart.

The Group is committed to spreading urban positive energy, the
“Accompanied by overseas Chinese law, offering love and protection to
overseas Chinese” (MBAMKITEBHEBEHEL) - the 2021 Shanghai
"Overseas Chinese law publicity month” (T&7A &% 8 1) start-up and “Light
up the wish” (TB552 BB ) action online ceremony was held in Minhang
district on March 2021. The Group, as the first donation enterprise to the “light
up the wish” special fund, donated RMB1 million of love charity to support
the public welfare projects of Shanghai overseas Chinese community, and
was awarded honorary title of “Pioneering Group on Poverty Alleviation of
National Overseas Chinese Association System” (T2 BB B4 B HIRBIX
ER S E2BE |) by the China Overseas Chinese Association in the middle of the
year.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In addition, the Group is also actively committed to public welfare
undertakings in education, helping farmers and benefiting farmers, etc., and
joined hands with the Sichuan Red Cross Foundation Ma Wei Foundation
to launch the “Wake Up of Sleeping Toys Project” (TIBELT A MAREET21)) .
More than 10,000 Radiance property owners and staff actively participated
in the donation, woke up more than 5,000 “sleeping toys". Our staff public
welfare team was led into Daliangshan Mountain to start the “Jincai Yingmiao
Project — Jincai Educational Garden” (£ ¥ EHt8 - X HEEH))
educational toys public welfare donation campaign and the “Hundred Garden
Project’” (TE@E5tE1) public welfare construction campaign, with our
“Enlightenment” action, we promoted the revitalization of villages, aiming at
the construction of a better future with our tiny good deed.

In the future, the Group will stick to our original commitment, and continue to
contribute to the development of education, science, culture, health, sports,
overseas Chinese affairs, and international exchanges, so that our sunshine of
public welfare will spread to every walk of life.

PROSPECTS FOR 2022

In 2021, China made a good start to the 14th Five-Year Plan, with GDP
reaching RMB114 trillion, up 8.1% year-on-year, and the economy generally
runs smoothly; national real estate development investment reached RMB14.8
trillion, up 4.4% year-on-year; the sales area of commercial properties reached
179,000 sg.m., up 1.9% year-on-year, along with the new pandemic. With the
normalization control of the COVID-19 pandemic, China’s overall economic
development has gained good momentum and achieved the goal of building
a moderately prosperous society in all aspects. Looking back at 2021, from the
“three red lines” in real estate financing to the “centralized land supply” and
the continued refinement of regulatory policies, the industry has gradually
returned to rationality.

Looking ahead to 2022, the issuance of the Regulatory Measures on the
Commodity Housing Pre-sale Revenues would lead to the policy correction
of certain places with over-restricting regulatory practices on pre-sale
revenues, which in turn is beneficial to the improvement of the industry’s
credit environment and would mitigate the tension of the liquidity of real
estate companies. With the macro fundamentals of China’s overall economic
upturn, the industry outlook remains positive, and the condition of the market
situation will gradually improve in the second quarter, but the competition in
the industry is still fierce, the Group will adjust its business mindset in a timely
manner, actively embrace changes, improve product quality with a focus on
customer needs, carry out people-oriented changes and build up a talent
pipeline in order to pursue high quality, sustainable and healthy development.

Against the current macro background, the Group adheres to the business
strategy of keeping expenditure within the limits of revenue, abandoning
ineffective land accumulation, insisting on our strategy of steady investment
and deep urban penetration, further improving the accuracy of land bank
expansion. Driven by the macro policy environment, the Group will further
leverage on its solid financial performance and progressive turnaround
strategy to facilitate the healthy growth of the Company.
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In terms of financial management, the Group will continue to comply with the
relevant regulatory requirements, continuously improve the internal control
mechanism for financial risks, strengthen the supervision and management of
capital and reduce liquidity risks; we will further innovate financing models,
broaden financing channels, continuously optimize the capital structure and
reduce the risks and costs of fund raising.

In terms of product power, “Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0" was officially launched
in July 2021. "Jinhui Yanxuan 3.0" originates from serving the human
inhabitation, presenting customers with a “safe, green, healthy and warm”
smart community space, and has been gradually implemented in more
than 30 projects in 21 cities across China, the Group will continue to uphold
our corporate core value of “continuously upgrading product power and
services”, study the real core needs of customers behind the purchase of
properties, continuously upgrade the products, and keep up with the pace of
times by integrating technical precipitation and technological innovation to
continuously consolidate and improve our product power.

In terms of corporate culture management, the Group continues to pay
attention to the creation of corporate cultural power and has put forward
the cultural thrust of changing mindsets, embracing change and enhancing
combat power in all aspects, which has propelled the Group to move steadily
on the road of high-quality development.

Steady growth, product innovation and dedication to service have formed
the themes of the Group’s development, we will continue to improve
the comprehensive development of multiple types of properties such as
residential properties, commercial properties, hotels, offices and complexes,
and make life better through continuous innovation and progress. In the
future, the Group will continue to keep abreast with the trend of the times
and the pace of urban development, to create ideal quality residential
properties with high quality development and artisanal design concepts to
empower the city and brighten up a better life.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express the most sincere appreciation
to all shareholders, investors, business partners and customers for their
supports to, and trust in, the Company, and all members of the management
team and all employees for their dedication and hard work in the preceding
year. In 2022, we will continue to uphold the corporate mission of “build
properties with craftsmanship and make better homes (AT R > B
EEUF) " to further achieve quality and sustainable development. We will
stick to our original commitment and move forward with perseverance for the
purpose of creating higher value for the Shareholders and investors.

Lam Ting Keung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

RLMEE

Highlights of financial information
Recognised revenue (RMB'000)

Gross profit (RMB'000)

Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company

Gross profit margin (%)

Net profit margin (%)

Earnings per Share (basic and diluted)
(RMB cents)

Total assets (RMB'000)

Cash and bank balances (RMB'000)

Total indebtedness (RMB'000)

Net indebtedness (RMB'000) @

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent company (RMB'000)

Current ratio (times) ©

Weighted average cost of
indebtedness (%) @

Net gearing ratio (%) ©

Cash to current borrowings ratio ©

Liability asset ratio after excluding receipts

in advance (%)

MBEHHEE
BHESIRA ARBFT)

EM (ARET D
RREHEA AEAEFE

EHZ (%)
P FIE(%)
BRERN ERKEE)
(AREED)
BERE ARETT
RE K IRITHEER
(NRHFT)
BEHRE ARETFTO
FamER ARBTD?
(SYNSIE PN Y ¥
(AR®ET T
MENELE ()
IS I (R TS A AR (%)

FEEE%)
REIGELLO
ZIFRTRURIRE Y
HERBEE%)"

40,025,826

7,747,451

3,274,774
19.4%
9.2%

81
191,647,312

19,728,486
52,794,206
33,065,720

23,637,200
1.4

6.58%
88.0%
1.2

68.5%

As of 31 December

HE+-B=+—H

Change in
2020 percentage
-3 3 BotbEsE
34,875,174 +14.8%
7,712,908 +0.4%
3,127,526 +4.7%

22.1%

10.9%

89
185,661,488 +3.2%
26,590,952 -25.8%
53,773,992 -1.8%
27,183,040 +21.6%
21,562,411 +9.6%

1.4

7.47%

75.3%

1.4

69.0%




Notes:

Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
proceeds from asset-backed securities, corporate banks and senior notes.

Net indebtedness is calculated by total borrowings (including current and
long-term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, current and long-
term proceeds from asset-backed securities, current and long-term senior
notes as well as current and long-term corporate bonds) minus cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash, pledged deposits as well as cash and cash
equivalents).

Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets divided by total current
liabilities as of the respective dates.

Weighted average cost of indebtedness represents the weighted average of
interest costs of all outstanding indebtedness.

Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (including current
and long-term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, current and long-
term proceeds from asset-backed securities, current and long-term senior
notes as well as current and long-term corporate bonds) minus cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash, pledged deposits as well as cash and cash
equivalents) by total equity.

Cash to current borrowings ratio is calculated by dividing cash and bank
balances (including restricted cash, pledged deposits as well as cash and cash
equivalents) by current borrowings (including current interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, current proceeds from asset-backed securities, current
senior notes and current corporate bonds).

Liability asset ratio after excluding receipts in advance is calculated by dividing
total liabilities minus contract liabilities by total assets minus contract liabilities.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
REWME

MyEE
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2. FREREREEME (BENARRBS BRTREMB
FORARERRUEERFESESHRMERE -BEKE
HELARBERINBARRAARGES) BB RBTEHRE (8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

EERER R RO

CONTRACTED SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group realised contracted sales
of approximately RMB94.72 billion with contracted gross floor area sold
of approximately 5.79 million sgq.m. The contracted average selling price
amounted to approximately RMB16,359 per sq.m. It was mainly attributable to
the Group's strategy of focusing on regional development, expansion of land
bank and more diversified source of contracted sales.

2021 Contracted Sales Summary:

BRHE

BEE_—F+ A=+ —HUEFE FEEBRSN
HESBENARBM72ET GNHEERRNS7IBT S
Ko BHFHEBNBBFTARARB 163597 TEZMAN
FEESFEHAMBRES  LHEBEBR WEED
HERRE—F K-

Contracted
Region/City Sales Amount Contracted GFA Contracted ASP
BHHE BHHE BHHE
B, ] BEmR EHEE
(RMB’000) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR¥T
(ANRB®TF ) (FEAHK) EFHK)
Hangzhou N 10,306,580 359,113 28,700
Suzhou BN 9,956,646 357,813 27,826
Chongging B 9,343,282 545,813 17,118
Quanzhou =M 7,178,478 630,757 11,381
Lianyungang EEE 6,245,872 594,335 10,509
Fuzhou @M 6,107,920 181,161 33,715
Xi'an Az 6,017,830 361,350 16,654
Hefei “iE 5,401,972 352,334 15,332
Fuging =B 4,900,200 253,523 19,328
Yangzhou A 3,156,668 194,206 16,254
Huai'an EZ 2,595,547 279,672 9,281
Foshan Ll 2,488,468 128,647 19,343
Ningbo =) 2,474,585 112,789 21,940
2,129,949 177,058 12,030

Shijiazhuang ARG

2,113,970 227,570 9,289
2,040,815 129,836 15,718
1,768,421 117,512 15,049
1,664,351 117,881 14,119




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

Contracted
Region/City Sales Amount Contracted GFA Contracted ASP
ARG ANHE ANHE
&g, iHH =8 BEAER THEE
(RMB’000) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
(NR¥T/
(NR¥ETFT) (FEAHXK) T5K)
Chengdu AR ER 1,548,646 145,991 10,608
Huizhou E0 1,113,839 71,394 15,601
Xuzhou RN 1,075,906 57,829 18,605
Beijing = 814,852 14,403 56,573
Langfang R H 768,773 58,867 13,060
Zhenjiang F=DaN 751,203 77,583 9,683
Nanjing MR 740,760 44,516 16,640
Jingzhou FHI N 718,662 88,762 8,096
Yancheng EE i 596,903 55,810 10,695
Nantong B 302,295 18,681 16,182
Shenyang el 191,351 12,406 15,424
Shanghai i 107,153 11,293 9,488
Xiangyang £5 93,726 10,894 8,603
Total &t 94,715,623 5,789,799 16,359

Note: M5E :

Contract sales includes the contract sales of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates of the Group. Contracted sales data is unaudited and is prepared based on
internal information of the Group. In view of various uncertainties during the collection
of such sales information, such contracted sales data is provided for investors’ reference

only.

EHNHELEAERENBRAR S8 CERBMEATNSIHE -
BHHEBBARCERIRBEAEBARIPEHER - ERNIREZ
LHEENBETFERBETRERR 25N HEUEREHR

REESE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

EEENmERIT
Property development and sales MERBERIFHE

We focus on suitable locations in selected cities in eight major regions HKMEIRNE=ZA - RIS - HFE EHR ED AR A
of Yangtze River Delta, the Bohai Economic Rim, Southeastern China, MFBENABIHBEEHTHNEBEMUE - FRFIFAREE
Eastern China, Central China, Southwestern China, Northwestern China and HJiMEEEMNIRA - FHEEXMEERATRBEULZ &
Shenzhen/Huizhou. The table below sets forth our revenue generated from R EYEMNTEIRSFH KNFHE

each region, total GFA delivered in each region and the respective recognised

ASP per sq.m. for each region for the periods indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-AZ+-ALEE

2021 2020
“EC—F _ECEE

GFA Recognised GFA  Recognised

Revenue Delivered ASP Revenue Delivered ASP

B3R fd B BRA =Y

WA EXEE THEE WA BEER THEE

RMB’000 sq.m.  RMB/sq.m. RMB'000 % sqm.  RMB/sq.m.

AR¥R/ AE¥RT/

N FAK Frk NS % FHK FrxK

Northwestern China [iipln 11,453,881 29.0 846,180 13,536 4,443,941 129 309,124 14,376

Central China b 7,034,127 17.8 587,083 11,981 4685646 136 431463 10,860

Southwestern China i) 4,817,539 12.2 430,953 11,179 5714949 16.6 359,410 15,901

Eastern China Y 4,556,151 116 497,871 9,151 2513129 73 322332 7,797

Southeastern China ®iEg 3,971,017 10.0 276,899 14,341 6148403 179 439,354 13,994

Yangtze River Delta E=f 3,606,905 9.1 149,718 24,091 4791932 139 172,009 27,859

Bohai Economic Rim BaE 3,284,603 8.3 259,861 12,640 4310758 125 345,480 12,478

Shenzhen/Huizhou RE 797,328 2.0 70,171 11,363 1,771,766 52 177373 9,989

Total @t 39,521,551 100.0 3,118,736 12,672 34,380,524 1000 2,556,545 13,448

32 ER (EE) BRAT 20215EER



Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 25 investment properties with a total
GFA of approximately 902,100 sg.m., and one investment property held for
future development with a total GFA of 69,530 sg.m.

Projects under Construction

As at 31 December 2021, the total planned GFA of the Group's projects under
construction was 19,719,260 sq.m., representing an increase of approximately
9.6% compared to the total planned GFA of 17,988,604 sgq.m. as at 31
December 2020.

Land Bank

In 2021, the Group acquired a total of 30 new land projects. The planned GFA
was approximately 3,895,107 sq.m. and the planned GFA which the Group
had effective equity interests was approximately 2,550,906 sq.m. The total
contracted land premium which the Group had effective equity interests
was approximately RMB15,676.2 million. Average land acquisition cost was
approximately RMB6,115 per sq.m.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's land bank GFA and total land bank GFA
attributable to the Group were approximately 33,194,836 sq.m. and 25,232,484
sg.m. respectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EREAmRD

KEYE

N _E - —FE+_RA=+t—H &AEEFTHEEEREY
¥ 2 BBEEmBENAE02100F 5K TiFE —RIFIERK
FIESVIR B Y2 st R E B A69,530F 5K o

EREIEB

HE S - —F+_-_A=+t—H *xEEEEBEENE
MIEEMMEA19,719200F A K REE_SE_TF+_
B=+—HBRst 8RR EmES17,988,604F /5 KIEMA
9.6%°

T
PR AEBFWEE R L HIER A2 B ER
EE#X53,895107 F K MAEBEEGHERNIREEE
EE# 52,550,906 F 5 K B ER &4 BEEOAB A
RIE15676 2B BT FHIMKRBRANABE LA KAR
16,1157 ©

BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLl AEB L MHEBE
BEEBREMERETRBEDNLNA33,194836FHF KK
25,232,484 F5 3K o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEE R R

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the total land bank of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies of the Group as at 31

TR

e

F+ZA=+—HEERENBRE

SETERBEARMMERERE T M EHEEAM

December 2021:
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Grou
EEIE B i THfEE  FEEMS
e HH RE AR i T &1p Gt E R EFEAF FEfk i 25
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(THAK) (FHAK) (%)
Progerties developed by the Group and its subsidiaries
FEBRREMBRABRENNE
Southwestern China
Chonggqing TiancheLLElite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2022 52,683 57,015 49.0%
BB AREE T/ BE
Chonggqing Jiangshan Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2021 69,489 268,688 57.6%
EF TWEE T/ BHE
Chonggqing Zhongyang King's Garden Residential/commercial  2019-2022 157,925 226,617 96.0%
BB R T/ BE
Chongging Yujiang House Residential/commercial 2020 77,342 78,548 96.0%
E-] TR e/ B
Chongqing Boshe Residential/commercial 2020 52,086 26,976 96.0%
BE A T/ BE
Chonggqing Changjiang King's Garden Residential/commercial 2020 59,031 68,401 96.0%
EE RIIRE e/ HE
Chonggqing Jinhui City Phase IV Residential/commercial 2018 135,452 77,567 96.0%
BE bl TE/H¥

inhui City

2023

9,932

71,235




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BEEF®RON
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 &3t EmaE EFEAE FEfL s
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHR) (FAK) %)
Southwestern China (Continued)
i (&)
Chongging Tanzikou Residential 2023 25,006 87,556 96.0%
BF 70 ftE
Chongging Hushan Elite’'s Mansion Residential/commercial -~ 2022 105,693 215912 48.0%
Phase |
BF HMLEE—H T/ BHE
Chongging Hushan Elite’'s Mansion Residential/commercial 2024 67,358 150,713 48.0%
Phase Il
BF HMLEE T/ BHE
Chengdu Jinhui New Block Garden Residential/commercial 2021 41,112 14,160 96.0%
P& TRESTEE T/ B
Chengdu Fenggqi Yunjing Residential 2023 46,094 121,416 96.0%
RED BEER tE
Subtotal of Southwestern China region 1,812,412
Far/NEt
SubtotaLof interests in Southwestern China region 1,433,939
PR/ NE
Central China
£
Wuhan Jinhui City Residential/commercial 2026 188,736 636,562 96.0%
9 EIEH T/
Wuhan ﬁangyugﬁlite’s Mansion Residential/commercial = 2024 128,280 559,427 38.4%
g IHEE T/ BE
Wuhan Jiangshan Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 151,926 965,566 62.4%
g TIEE TE/H¥
Wuhan New Block Lakeside Residential/commercial = 2020 69,985 76,617 96.0%
g By T/ BHE
Xiangyang Xiangyang New Block Academy Residential/commercial 2025 172,060 418,690 72.0%
ey EHEYER T/
Changsha Hongtao Jade Bay Phase | Residential 2018 22,771 4433 96.0%
=9 BEERE—H ftE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
2,
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE B it HiEE  AEEME
e EH REAE i T &1p G ERE [fib=fy REfk S
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Central China (Continued)
Changsha Hongtao Jade Bay Phase Il Residential/commercial = 2022 37,374 39,430 96.0%
=30 BENRE S T/ BHE
Changsha Xingyu Academy Residential/commercial 2023 105,625 405,818 96.0%
=30 EEBR e/ HE
Changsha Xin%yue Yundi Residential/commercial = 2023 115,142 331,719 96.0%
=30 EHMER T/ BHE
Hefei Land parcel 06, Hefei New Station  Residential/commercial 2023 61,928 174,118 96.0%
& A BT ukost 17 e/ HE
Hefei New Block Academy Residential/commercial = 2021 100,289 28434 67.2%
=L BY 2R T/ BHE
Hefei Cloudworld Garden Residential 2020 16,262 7,634 96.0%
S ERER T
Hefei Xin'an Garden Residential/commercial = 2021 34,505 28,558 96.0%
= HMEItE T/ BHE
Hefei Xin'an Y%uan Residential/commercial 2023 64,532 177,111 96.0%
=L bl e/ HE
Hefei Xizi Garden Residential 2021 104,760 47,048 22.1%
= AFIEE
Hefei Yunman Xijing Residential/commercial 2024 60,128 152,107 96.0%
m‘é&@iﬂ E-

G

bt

‘\;\\\HIT

\
£ ‘».H__\:_\a
\\

IR
=

il_.__,T LlTl

-

S

e

4,053,272

3,101,029




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BEEF®RON
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 ﬁﬂﬁ? [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sa-m) (%)
(FAXK) (FAK) %)
Bohai Economic Rim (Continued)
1&3)3/5 (nﬁ)
Tianjin Yunhui Garden Rgsidenz@l/commerdal 2022 36,586 91,460 96.0%
PN ZRETEE T/ HE
Tianjin Yungue Garden R\esiﬁglential/commerdal 2022 42,078 95,408 96.0%
X ZRTEE T/ BE
Tianjin Hu'an Garden Resri‘siential/commerdal 2021 98,930 23,900 96.0%
Xz HMETEE T/ B
Tianjin YuggiLGarden Residential/commercial 2021 25,236 3,708 96.0%
X EXE /B
Tianjin Mlngzhu Garden Rgsidenz@l/commerdal 2025 81,437 216,402 96.0%
X HETTE T/ HE
Lan%fang New Block Riverside Garden Residential/commercial -~ 2024 167,549 455,719 96.0%
i By KEEE T/ BE
Shijiazhuang New Block Star Residential/commercial 2022 39,389 103,534 96.0%
ERE B ER T/ B
shijiazhuang Jinhui Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 65,052 44,915 52.8%
BRH SEBEE /B
Shulazhuang New Block (Pin‘uan) Residential 2020 48378 9,721 32.6%
AR By )& (mE) *tE
Shijiazhuang West District of New Block Shangfu  Residential/commercial 2022 52,543 135,081 96.0%
AR BSHREE TE/HE
Shijiazhuang East District of New Block Shangfu  Residential 2023 35,286 88,456 96.0%
AR BYHRRE T
shijiazhuang Kaiyuan House Residential/commercial 2021 54,619 63,563 96.0%
BRH B /B
Shijﬁiﬂaghuang New Block Yayuan Rgsidenz@l/commerdal 2022 45,729 159,941 76.8%
ERH BIHE T/ HE
Shenyang Jiangshan Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 127,325 54,828 96.0%
B TIEE e/ HE
Shenyang Land parcel 88-1, Shenyang Yuhong  Residential/commercial 2024 55,258 150,522 96.0%
New Town
& BT Timee- 13t R TE/BE
Subtotal of Bohai Economic Rim region 2,275471
BAsat
Subtotal of interests in Bohai Economic Rim region 2,128,181

R ERm /G
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
2,
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EHEE Bl T thiE  AEERES
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE REfk S
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Eastern China
Huai'an Jinhui City Phase Il Residential/commercial = 2022 1083819 267,923 97.4%
g TEH= T/ BHE
Huai'an Jinhui City Square Residential/commercial/ 2024 93,398 361,372 57.6%
. office building
g SRR ES T/ BE/ PR
Huai'an Jinhui City Phase Il Residential/commercial 2020 86,833 3,963 96.0%
EE S 58 e/ HE
Huai'an Jinhui Swan Bay Phase | Residential/commercial = 2016 66,440 6,661 96.0%
g TEXIEE—H T/ BHE
Huai'an Jinhui Swan Bay Phase I Residential/commercial 2020 63,426 16,532 96.0%
EZ SEXEBE_H e/ HE
Huai'an Jinhui Four Seasons Residential/commercial 2021 72,902 46,130 96.0%
. Community Phase Il
EZ & ERE_H e/ HE
Huai'an Jinhui Four Seasons Residential/commercial 2021 70,750 67,991 96.0%
’ Community Phase |
EZ MEEERE—H# e/ HE
Huai'an New Block Garden Residential/commercial 2023 28,600 112,173 96.0%
EZ BFIEE e/ HE
Huai'an New Block Dongjun Residential/commercial 2024 56,712 146,809 96.0%

- BEE

EEEE

/B
RS0

29,312

52,215

114911

168,323

83,707



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 G E R [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAXK) (FEHK) %)
Eastern China (Continued)
R (B)
Huai’an Squthern Plot of City Plaza R‘esidential 2024 47 869 155,161 57.6%
iy Wb ESREtIR ftE
Huai'an Northern Plot of City Plaza Residential 2025 46,677 151,284 57.6%
EZ W ESIL IR £
\Uanygngang Jinhui Four Seasons Rfesidential/commerdal 2019 223,045 105,512 96.0%
BEZH S T/ BHE
Lianyungang Jinhui Four Seasons Guanlan Residential 2021 49,756 45,567 96.0%
BEEAE MEEBHE £
Lianyungang Yunting Riverside Residential 2023 97,508 166,438 96.0%
BEE BEKE £
Lianyungang Parcel LTC2020-19 Residential 2023 34,819 96,905 48.0%
EEE LTC2020-19%% 3t 532 T
\Uanygngang Yundi Rfesidential/commerdal 2025 165,929 516,476 96.0%
BEZH ZH T/ BHE
Lianyungang PenmsuliElite’s Mansion Residential/commercial = 2024 61,705 113,563 96.0%
BELAE FEEH /B
\Uanygngang Elite’s Mansion Rfesidential/commerdal 2026 93,032 267,947 96.0%
BEZHE EH T/ BHE
Lianyungang Yunxie Residential 2028 59,397 189,825 96.0%
BELAE ZH €
\Uanygngang Qutlets Commercial 2025 108,623 148,258 96.0%
BEZHE BASRE SE
Yancheng Jinhui City Residential/commercial ~ 2020-2023 76,441 114,519 96.0%
i E1EH T/ B
Yanqheng Jinhui New Block Garden Rfesidential/commerdal 2021 31,180 30,155 96.0%
= EFREEHIED T/ BHE
Yancheng Jinhui Tongyin Yunshang Residential/commercial 2023 46,650 124,993 29.0%
b EERREH T/ B
Yancheng Junhefu Rfesidential/commerdal 2023 72422 200,643 49.0%
En BN T/ BHE
2<uzhou Xinbu Lanting Residential/commercial 2023 55,982 174,621 96.0%
M EFHEEER s/ B

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
2,
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EHEE Bl T HhEE  AEERE
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Eastern China (Continued)
Xuzhou Jiangshan Yunjing Community Residential/commercial = 2024 26,358 87,181 48.0%
M TUERHER e/ HE
Zhenjiang Jinhui Four Seasons Guanlan Residential/commercial/ 2024 37,422 149,638 96.0%
hotel
$HIL M= B8 FE/BE/BE
Zhenjiang New Block Xinyuan Residential 2024 76,715 196,601 96.0%
L BY&ED T
Zhenjiang Yundu Shangyuan Residential 2022 50,041 162,947 96.0%
$HIT =R ftE
Yangzhou New Block Avenue Residential/commercial 2023 128,052 263,950 96.0%
ezl BERE e/ HE
Yangzhou Eden Garden Residential/commercial = 2021 52,581 5373 32.0%
ol EE (5 e/ HE
Yangzhou Qihu Cloud Atrium Residential/commercial 2023 93,813 207,657 64.3%
0l BHEE e/ HE
Yangzhou Yuedu Cloud Atrium Residential/commercial 2023 40,819 96,627 47.0%
o MEBEE e/ HE
Subtotal of Eastern China region 5518717
FER/NE

4,430,458

2,387,907




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 G E R [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAXK) (FEHK) %)
Northwestern China (Continued)
Al (&)
Xi'an Jinhui World City Upper East Side Residential/commercial 2020 22,884 216 96.0%
Phase I
AL FEURR EREZH T/ B
Xi'an @_aoxm Elite's Mansion Rfesidential/commerdal 2021 37,326 8,058 96.0%
A% BmER T/ BHE
Xi'an Jinhui Chang'an Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 53,859 219,831 96.0%
AL EERZER T/ B
Xi'an Jinhui New Block Garden Rfesidential/commerdal 2020 39412 2,387 96.0%
A% ZEESIEE T/ BHE
Xi'an Jinhui East King's Garden Residential/commercial/ 2022 127,015 471918 96.0%
hotel
A% FERAHE T/ HE/ B
Xi'an Jinhui World City Phase A1-2 Residential/commercial 2016 60,300 17913 96.0%
AL TRt RigA1-28 T/ B
Xi'an Jinhui Wor\q City Phase A3 Rfesidential/commerdal 2019 40,774 33,045 96.0%
RS SIEH R A e/ HE
Xi'an Jinhui World City Phase B1-2 Residential/commercial 2016 82410 19,862 96.0%
ks LI RIE81-258 TE/BE
Xi'an Jinhui Wor\q City Phase B3 Rfesidential/commerdal 2021 26,000 22,777 96.0%
A% E B R INB3EA T/ BHE
Xi'an Jinhui World City Phase C1 Residential/commercial = 2019 48,700 1,051 96.0%
S S R TE/HB¥
Xi'an Jinhui Wor\q City Phase C2 Rfesidential/commerdal 2021 38,780 48,956 96.0%
A% EEERHCQH T/ BHE
Xi'an Jinhui World City Block D Residential/commercial = 2021 126,133 200,664 96.0%
AL FIEt R FDM IR T/ B
Xi'an Jinhui Wor\q City Block G Rfesidential/commerdal 2020 28,399 36,356 96.0%
A% FIE M RIEGCH IR T/ BHE
Xi'an Jinhui Global Plaza Phase | Office building/ 2017 14,402 83,481 96.0%
) commercial
A% EERKES 1 LI UNEYE-ES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEE kD
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE B it HiEE  AEEME
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Northwestern China (Continued)
Al (&)
Xi'an Jinhui Global Plaza Phase Il Office building/ 2020 32,247 262,740 96.0%
\ commercial
s ERENES S YN Y
Xi'an Jinhui World City Block I/ Residential/commercial = 2028 115,320 582,126 96.0%
A% TIB R/ IR T/ BHE
Xi'an Jinhui Building (International Plaza) ~ Office building/ 2015 15,908 48,685 96.0%
commercial
A% ERAE ERES) YN Y
Xi'an Chuangzhi Building Office building/ 2019 6,035 20,497 96.0%
commercial
A% EBEARE YN Y
Xi'an Xi'an Jinhui Tianyu Baili Square Commercial 2024 35,237 280,827 96.0%
s BZERBRFIHEES ES
Xi'an Xi'an Jinhui Tianyu Fengxi Elite’s Residential/commercial -~ 2023 38,775 179,442 96.0%
Mansion
s BRERBRFREES e/ B
Zhengzhou Jinhui New Block Garden Residential 2023 48,549 167,249 49.0%
B FRESER ftE
Zhengzhou Jinhui Youbu Lanting Residential 2024 47,062 154,535 96.0%
BN SRES W
; : Res dentlal 2025 33,704 109,965 96.0%
6,203,438

5,876,627




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE %ﬁ/ﬁﬁ Tkt FEBFRT
HE BB HEIR® BITER G E mEEs FEfd #E 25
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FHK) (FHK) (%)
Southeastern China
Quanzhou Shishi Jmhui‘ City Phase | Rfesidential/commerdal 2022 38,866 176,617 81.6%
M A& B —8 s/ B
Quanzhou Shishi Jinhui City Phase Il Residential/commercial = 2025 183,643 802,013 81.6%
FEM afeER 8 e/
Quanzhou Jinhui New Block Academy Rfesidential/commerdal 2023 30,865 96,877 96.0%
M TREBLERN s/ B
Quanzhou Parcel No. 11 at Luojiang Residential/commercial 2023 64,921 219,254 25.0%
M - ARIE 3 s/ B
Quanzhou Lar]g parcel J-05-01 at Anxi Rfesidential/commerdal 2023 20,267 69,698 86.4%
M LE 0501335 T/ HE
Quanzhou Shishi Heming Residential/commercial = 2024 31,959 213,000 49.0%
FEM ERMBIEE e/
Quanzhou Parcel 52021-13 in Shishi Rfesidential/commerdal 2024 21,879 159,360 81.6%
M FH52021-1358 32 T/ HE
Quanzhou Parcel 52021-14 in Shishi Residential/commercial 2023 19,646 145,954 81.6%
M ARIS2021-148E 0 1R s/ B
Egzhou Jinhui New Block Garden Rfesidential/commerdal 2021 19,891 12,883 96.0%
‘BN TRESTEE s/ B
Fuzhou Jmhﬁu\i Lanlinxuan Residential/commercial = 2021 63,518 174,346 96.0%
&M SRS /B
Egzhou Huai’an Phase | Rfesidential/commerdal 2014 266,962 3,201 57.6%
‘BN EZ—H s/ B
Fuzhou Huai'an Phase Il Residential/commercial = 2020 357,309 126,222 57.6%
&M ERZH T/ B
Egzhou Huai’a_n Phase Ill R‘esidential 2021 360,992 90,337 57.6%
‘BN HL=H =
Fuzhou Huai'an Phase V Residential 2016 56,873 14,047 57.6%
@M EZ R %
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
2,
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE B it HiEE  AEEME
e EH REAE i T &1p G ERE [fib=fy REfk S
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Southeastern China (Continued)
Fuzhou Radiance Plaza Commercial 1999 1141 16,760 96.0%
&M EEAE ES
Fuzhou Jinhui New Block Mansion Residential/commercial 2023 22,088 54,459 96.0%
=Hl TEES RE e/ HE
Shangrao Shan%ﬁao Tongluowan Residential/commercial = 2025 232,917 650,125 52.8%
Lz EE S T/ BHE
Fuqmg New Block Avenue Residential/commercial 2022 43,071 170,227 96.0%
B BYKE e/ HE
Fuging Jlangshan Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial = 2021 49,504 9,404 37.4%
&5 IWE T/ BHE
Fuqmg Gugnlan+Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 49,440 13,762 96.0%
&5 BRE e/ HE
Fuging New Block Academy Residential/commercial = 2020 53,168 16,003 34.6%
&5 BYER T/ BHE
Fuging New Block Garden Residential/commercial 2022 45,138 173,965 49.0%
& BHIEE e/ HE
Fuging East Elit§ Mansion Residential 2022 16,330 54,305 49.0%
&5 RARE
Fuqlng Zhong%ang King's Garden Residential/commercial 2022 65,225 240,315 67.2%
91,256 199,094 57.6%

M[lmfll

Hﬂ i 2024

‘\.-"I' L

3,902,228




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BEEF®RON
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 G E R [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAXK) (FAK) %)
Shenzhen/Huizhou
3]
Foshan New BIQCk Avenue R\esidential/commerdal 2021 43,523 73,164 96.0%
Ll BYKE T/ BHE
Foshan Lin nanjﬁte’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2021 17,165 98,943 96.0%
BBl EREE T/ B
Foshan New Block Academy R‘esidential 2020 23,275 16,174 48.0%
Ll BYEN ftE
Foshan Yunjing Garden Residential/commercial 2024 44,207 168,247 96.0%
BBl EiRTEE T/ B
Foshan Yunzhu Garden R\esidential/commerdal 2023 66,439 238,878 96.0%
Ll ZHTEE T/ BHE
Huizhou Dongdi Huayuan Residential/commercial 2020 19,231 18,187 96.0%
E RIER T/ B
Huizhou Jinhui Elegant Pavilion R\esidential/commerdal 2021-2022 49915 184,335 96.0%
M EaycEy iy T/ BHE
Huizhou New Block Mansion Residential/commercial 2022 12,415 41812 96.0%
E R RE /B
Huizhou Q_agling Phase Il R\esidential/commerdal 2023 67,841 325,596 57.6%
B ST T/ BHE
Huizhou Land parcel at Kaoling Township, Residential/commercial 2023 39,344 174,545 96.0%
Qiuchang Street, Huiyang District
B EGeNRHESANMIR T/ BHE
Huizhou Land parcel at Jiangjun Road, Residential/commercial 2023 43,506 148,330 96.0%
Qiuchang Street, Huiyang District
B EGRNREERERMIR T/ BHE
Huizhou North of Baiyun district, 67,000 sq.m  Residential/commercial - 2024 72,128 173,755 96.0%
B HE678 5 T/ B¥
Subtotal of Shenzhen/Huizhou 1,661,966
wE/NE
Subtotal of interests in Shenzhen/Huizhou 1,462,695

RB @/ st
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
2,
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE B it HiEE  AEEME
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE REfk S
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta
Han?zhou JiushaanEIite’s Mansion Residential 2020 64,505 39,087 96.0%
TN HE ftE
Hangzhou Ziya Elite’'s Mansion Residential 2020 11,349 21,217 96.0%
M il T
Shaoxing New Block Guanlan Garden Residential/commercial = 2022 70,150 206,910 96.0%
B BT ER®D T/ BHE
Shaoxing Shaoxing Mirror Lake Residential/commercial 2022 48,883 154,388 96.0%
BE BEFEH e/ HE
Shaoxing Peninsula Elite's Mansion Residential 2022 57,812 123,164 96.0%
BE FEBRER *FE
Shaoxing Jin ue+E+|ite’s Mansion Residential 2023 63,210 173918 96.0%
BE RUEER T
Shaoxing Huiyi Elite’s Yunting Residential/commercial = 2023 29,366 89,150 96.0%
B 1B ERE T/ HE
Suzhou Sea Breeze Garden Residential/commercial 2020 18,866 29,957 96.0%
B BLEETER e/ HE
Suzhou New Block Four Seasons Residential 2021 25,934 14,003 96.0%
f Garden Phase |
30 TE

L - -n' -

%ilé%l %



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE ?ﬁ/ﬁﬁ Tkt FEBFRT
HE BB REAR BITER ﬁﬂﬁ? aRaH FEfh1E &
(sq.m) (sg.m) (%)
(7K (FHK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta (Continued)
R=A (&
§gzhou Riverside Yunjing Garden Rfesidential/commerdal 2022 41,941 98,488 67.2%
B BN ERTEE s/ B
Nantong Jinhui Elite’s Mansion Residential 2023 38,049 96,319 96.0%
[Epe 1BEE Rk %
Wuxi Xidong King's Garden R‘esidential 2023 128,379 346,059 49.0%
=i BRI =
Shangha| Jinhui Tiancui Garden Residential 2019 32,142 8,674 96.0%
s EBREN %
Shanghai Jingang Commercial Plaza Commercial 2017 31,438 46,484 96.0%
L& EBEERES =ES
Shangha| Shanghai JﬁigJIAong Hotel Commercial/hotel 2023 1,943 31,750 96.0%
L LRAREERE GEEYS S
Ningbo Hujyi Yuﬂting Rfesidential/commerdal 2022 26,477 71,472 96.0%
=) BRE= s/ B
&; giangyue Waterflow Residential/commercial = 2022 122,292 212,950 57.6%
=) TGS ER e/
ngi Zilin Yunting Rfesidential/commerdal 2023 48,012 123,867 96.0%
EMERE s/ B
&; Chengyang Yunfu Residential/commercial 2023 25,091 65,127 96.0%
B WRER /B
Nir] bo Yuyao Meishan Road Project Rfesidential/commerdal 2024 54,476 135,375 96.0%
=) REKIELEIEER s/ B
Sub_total onangtze River Delta region 2,487,982
R=A/NE
Subtotal of |nterests in Yangtze River Delta region 2,115,539
R=Ak#x%
Subtotal of land bank developed by the Group and its subsidiaries 27,915,486
FEERENE AT RAEN Lt EEE
Subtotal of interests in the land bank developed by the Group and its subsidiaries 23,208,058

FEBREMBARREN LM HEED )G
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EHEE Bl T HhEE  AEERE
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FHAK) (%)
Prgerties developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associates
FEARECERMEQRNRENNE
Southwestern China
il
Chongqing Lumirﬁ% House Residential/commercial 2021 157,427 118,376 32.6%
BB B T/ HE
Chongqing Jinke Jinhui Meiyuan Residential/commercial  2018-2021 177,239 74411 47.0%
=) R EEER T/ BE
Chongqing Jinke Jinhui Bocui Mountain Residential/commercial  2018-2021 188,419 53,439 47.0%
A ERTEBERL e/ BE
Chongaqing Ljﬁyue\Jiangshan Residential/commercial  2019-2021 61,919 51,073 19.2%
BB i e/ BE
Chengdu Midea Jinhui Town Residential 2022 41,940 87419 48.0%
PR E EN - SEB €
Chengdu Peninsula Elite’'s Mansion Residential/commercial 2019 39,038 27,308 48.0%
., Community Phase |
B #B FEEENe—H e/ B
Chengdu Peninsula Elite’s Mansion Residential/commercial 2019 71472 76,904 48.0%
., Community Phase ||
B # FERENR"H e/ HE
Subtotal of Southwestern China region 488,930
I\t
200,567

Subtotal of interests in Southwestern China region

A Em /et

_ P

109852

’ ™
A | P

163,997




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BEEF®RON
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 G E R [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAXK) (FAK) %)
Bohai Economic Rim
R¥E
Tiapjin Xgnghe Yayuan R‘esidential 2022 45,437 90,126 38.4%
xiE EMHKSD ftE
Tianjin Yunzhu Garden Residential/commercial 2021 62,024 107,526 57.6%
X EETE T/ B
Shijiazhuang Jinke Tiany\u Community R‘esidential 2026 56,946 161,604 33.6%
AR FRXEHR ftE
Shijia;buang Jinke Bocui Garden Residential 2019 37,004 22,635 24.0%
AR ERHERE £
Shenyang Jimei Wanxiang Residential/commercial = 2020 78,517 43,651 31.7%
B EXER T/ BHE
Beijing Daxing Huang Village Project Residential/commercial 2025 108,244 393,784 24.0%
IR REENIEER tE/
Subtotal of Bohai Economic Rim region 819,326
REENE
Subtotal of interests in Bohai Economic Rim region 264,612
BB\t
Eastern China
£
\Uanygngang New Block Academy R‘esidential 2020 51,452 33,245 49.0%
BEZHE BYERN ftE
Lianyungang High Tech Cloud Residential 2023 79,720 220,118 48.0%
BEEAE EBMER £
\Uanygngang New Block Garden Phase | R\esidential/commerdal 2022 122,205 120,888 8.7%
BEZH BYTEE—1H T/ BHE
Lianyungang New Block Garden Phase Il Residential/commercial 2022 124,566 72,497 8.7%
BEEAE BYTEEZH /B
\Uanyyngang New BIock_Garden Phase Il R\esidential/commerdal 2024 131,888 289,051 8.7%
ELE BYTEE=H T/ HE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE B it HiEE  AEEME
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Eastern China (Continued)
Nanjing Time Mansion Residential/commercial = 2022 131,964 192,221 47.0%
i EE IR T e/ HE
Nanjing Mansion Yayuan Residential/commercial 2019 28,257 3,033 57.6%
AR BERR e/ B
Yangzhou Tang Yuan Residential/commercial = 2020 72,660 18,629 48.0%
#M 250 T/ BHE
Xuzhou Jiangshan Yunjing Community Residential/commercial 2024 25,157 80,801 48.0%
RN TUERMEER e/ B
Xuzhou Jlangshan Yunjing Community Residential 2024 24514 83,246 48.0%
M IWE FHE ftE
Yangzhou New Block Riverside Residential/commercial 2021 50,212 12,797 48.0%
Sz BYKE e/ HE
Sﬁubtotal_of Eastern China region 1,126,526
e
Subtotal of interests in Eastermn China region 350,027
FERE /)Gt
Northwestern China
Remdenual/commeraal 2017 64,269 25,170 96.0%
tili 8
rcia 88,578 212,535 49.0%

237,705




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BEEF®RON
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 G E R [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAXK) (FAK) %)
Southeastern China
Egzhou Lexi\n Garden R\esidential/commerdal 2022 125,737 317,109 31.7%
&M SETEE T/ BHE
Fuzhou Yuzhou Jinhui Zhongyang Garden  Residential/commercial/ 2020 45,134 19,015 32.6%
_ office building
&M BMNEIBRRIER EVE =Y YN
Fuzhou Jinhui Longyue Garden Residential 2022 86,558 206,901 57.6%
District 1
&M TERRTE—& ftE
Fuzhou Jinhui Longyue Garden Residential/commercial 2019 19,163 14,311 57.6%
District 2
&M TERRTE_& T/ BHE
Fuzhou Guanlan Mansion Residential/commercial 2024 19,515 59,439 47.0%
&M BRAE T/ B
Fuging Bright Binjiang Residential/commercial = 2021 99,992 154,691 47.0%
&A BEEL T/ BHE
Fuging Bright Tianjing Residential/commercial 2021 26,133 111,378 47.0%
BA IR RIE /B
Egging Bright Tianyue R\esidential/commerdal 2021 36,757 165,082 15.0%
&A BRI T/ BHE
Fuging City Plaza Residential/commercial 2021 75,854 19,011 48.0%
BA W ES /B
Egging Boyue Mansion R\esidential/commerdal 2020 41,675 4,819 32.0%
&A IS TE/BHE
Subtota[ of Southeastern China region 1,071,756
RAg/NE
Subtotal of interests in Southeastern China region 422,705

R /st
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2,
EEREFN AR
Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year . Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE B it HiEE  AEEME
e EH RE AR i T &1p G E R EFEAE RS
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (FAK) (%)
Shenzhen/ Huizhou
RE
Foshan Elit*eis Mansion Mingyuan Residential/commercial = 2021 39,844 125,379 49.0%
BBl EELS T/ BHE
Huizhou Baoliyue Mansion Residential/commercial 2020 27,990 105,432 32.0%
B REIRALE e/ HE
Subtotal of Shenzhen/ Huizhou 230,811
RE/NE
Subtotal of interests in Shenzhen/ Huizhou 95,120
R E
Yangtze River Delta
Han?zhou Zizhangtai Apartment Residential 2020 68,263 121,786 49.0%
AN ESCI=WN ftE
Hangzhou Huiyi Elite’s Mansion Residential 2020 59,668 44,891 47.0%
A IEREL tE
Shaoxing Guanlan Yunting Residential 2024 117,391 300,012 48.0%
BE BRERE ftE
Suzhou Lan><| Bay Yuyuan Residential 2019 66,738 10,496 30.7%
BN E‘%El g
4 o o
- iﬁ &.i _&e dent|a|_ 46,004 20,348 31.7%
el al 69,206 47,599 15.4%

.'1\‘_‘ #

32,044 345




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

Actual/
Estimated Attributable
Main Planned Usage ~ Completion Gross Land  Interests Held
Region Project of Projects Year Site Area Bank Area by the Group
EEIE 'Rt i  FEERS
e EH REBE i T %13 G E R [fik=fy FEfG1E
(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)
(FAXK) (FAK) %)
Yangtze River Delta (Continued)
R=A (8)
Suzhou Jiangnan Elite’s Mansion Residential 2020 24,583 26,390 47.0%
. __ Garden Phase |
B TREETEE—1 (G
Suzhou Jiangnan Elite’s Mansion Residential 2021 30,760 43,622 47.0%
. __ Garden Phase Il
B TREETEE ZH (G
Suzhou Jiangnan Elite’s Mansion Garden Commercial/office 2022 7,239 53,459 47.0%
. _ Phase Il building
B ImZEtE=1 EE VYN
§gzhou Rugyuaqlﬁngk Garden Rgﬂdenﬂal 2019 80,669 32,566 49.0%
B BTLEE ftE
Nlr])gibo Jinhui & Powerlong Plaza Residential/commercial 2022 86,528 283,991 47.0%
& TEERETES TE/B%
Subtotal of Yangtze River Delta region 985,505
R=A/NG
Subtotal of interests in Yangtze River Delta region 449,514
REAEHN
Subtotal of land bank developed by the Group'sjoint ventures and associates 5,279,350
FEESECERMEATDHEN LM E G
Subtotal of interests in the land bank developed by E_he Group’s joint ventures and associates 2,024,426
FEERECERMEATDHEN LM B ERELZ Gt
ToE_aI 33,194,836
st
TotalinEerests 25,232,484
e
Note: B sE

The GFA of the Group's land bank includes (i) GFA available for sale and total rentable
GFA of completed projects, (ii) total GFA for properties under development and (iii)

total GFA for properties held for future development. In respect of the non-wholly
owned projects, the GFA will be adjusted according to the equity interests of the Group

in relevant projects.

FEFIMERNEEERERCENERIVETHHEERER
BRATHEMERERE (IRERYENBREREBRGNFER
RABRMENREREAR -FIFEEERNBEEMS  BREEE
R BAEBERAREPHREETRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEE R R

Land Acquisition in 2021 “ET-F Uk

In 2021, the Group acquired a total of 30 new land projects. The planned GFA ~ F T~ —F > AEBE LW E0RH L HIBE  BIRBIER
was approximately 3,895,107 sq.m. and the planned GFA which the Group  EFE49%3,895,107F 5K  MAEEEHERNVREER
had effective equity interests was approximately 2,550,906 sq.m. The total ~ ER&E#A#2,550,906F 5 K > ELER G AWM BAEZEN A A
contracted land premium which the Group had effective equity interests R #15676 288t FHLTHMBERETNAEEHKAR
was approximately RMB15,676.2 million. Average land acquisition cost was #£6,1157T ©

approximately RMB6,115 per sq.m.

Set out below are the details of the most recent acquisitions of land parcelsby ~ FTRHEI AEBRHEE_ S _—F+_B=+—HLEEE

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021: B B 7 S BES 3 BR B 1
Estimated Attributable
Planed GFA Planed GFA
Attributable Excluding Floor  Excluding Floor
Interests Held Total Land Attributable Total and Parking and Parking
City Project by the Group Premium  Land Premium Site Area Lots Lots
fhst 1S
REREEE  RIREER
FEREMS (FaEHT (RafEtT
it EE st hEEE st iE AR REE() REBEM)
(%) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (sqm.) (sqm.) (sq.m.)
%)  AEBFf®  (AEETH) (THR) (THRK) (AR
Beijing Parcel at Huangcun, Daxing 240 4,587,380 1,100971 108,200 358,843 86,122
bl AEENHE
Ningbo Parcel on the eastern side of Ziling Road, Yuyao 9.0 1,231,000 1,181,760 48,012 90,948 87310
B RKFERRE
Ningbo Parcel on the northern side of Meishan Road and to the 9.0 1,265210 1214602 54476 94426 90,649
eastern side of Sima Road, Yuyao
B RIE LB ICH E R R R

Ningbo Land parcel to the north of the Convention and Exhibition 9.0 573890 550,934 25,091 46,333 44,480
. Centre, Cixi g

y ‘E.‘ "\,;!t'

> 4 ;%00 242,160 25157 59,563 28600
e N

- 25502

0 s 62417 29960

Le

60,503
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AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRAN
Estimated Attributable
Planed GFA Planed GFA
Attributable Excluding Floor  Excluding Floor
Interests Held Total Land Attributable Total and Parking and Parking
City Project by the Group Premium Land Premium Site Area Lots Lots
fhat Ptk
RABEER  RAREEE
FEEFAHF (FafEtT (FaEET
i L] FEfhiER B FEfs3t18 BISHER RFEfi) REE()
(%) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (sq.m.) (sqm.) (sq.m.)
®  (AEBFD (AE#TT) (FHHK) (FHH) (TAHHK)
Zhengzhou Parcel 78# of Zhongmou New Town 9.0 279,950 268,752 47100 117,554 112,852
Ll RIS R
Zhengzhou Parcel No. 13 of Xinzheng North New Area 9.0 141,560 135,898 33,700 84651 81,265
(formerly No. 60)
Ll HBIHE 135 (R60%)
Xiangyang Parcel at High-tech Zone, Xiangyang 720 826,000 594,720 172,000 309,694 222,980
2 ZhaMetg
Chongging Parcel at Tanzikou 9.0 800,000 768,000 25,000 60,015 57615
BE B0
Huizhou 67 Thousand Project of Huiyang 96.0 1,091,090 1,047447 72,000 247509 237,609
EM Ehe/BEE
Quanzhou Parcel No. 11 at Luojiang, Quanzhou 250 392,000 07,843 64,921 175,287 43752
FM FME TSR
Quanzhou Parcel No. 2021-5 864 258,000 222912 20,266 53,827 46,507
FM 2021-5%% 348
Quanzhou Parcel 20215-10, Chengnan, Shishi, Quanzhou 490 378,000 185,220 31,959 79,900 39,151
FM SMARBE20215- 10418
Quanzhou Parcel 20215-13, Chengbei, Shishi, Quanzhou 816 298,000 243,168 21879 61267 49,994
FM FINEEEIE20215-134 5%
Quanzhou Parcel 20215-14, Chengbei, Shishi, Quanzhou 816 268,000 218,688 19,646 55,009 44,887
FM FINEEEIE20215- 14457
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BEE kD
Estimated Attributable
Planed GFA Planed GFA
Attributable Excluding Floor  Excluding Floor
Interests Held Total Land Attributable Total and Parking and Parking
City Project by the Group Premium  Land Premium Site Area Lots Lots
fhst s
RIURZER RIRZER
REBME (FRERT (FBERT
i EB MM B G E BEHER REERD) REFEMD)
(%) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (sqm.) (sqm.) (sqm.)
®  AE®BFm  (AEETD) (THR) (THR) (THR)
Fuging Parcel 13# of Chengdong, Fuging 576 572,000 329472 91,256 146,010 84,102
B BEHR 3R
Fuzhou Parcel at Jingxi, Minhou, Fuzhou 9.0 280,000 268,800 22,088 39,758 38,168
&M RME GRS
Fuzhou Parcel No. 2021-08 of Yinggian, Changle, Fuzhou 470 325,000 152,880 19515 44,885 21114
&M BN RLER021-085 18
Shaoxing Parcel to the northeastern side of the intersection 9.0 526300 505,248 29,366 58732 56,383
of Biya Road and Biyu Road, Hi-tech Zone, Xinchang
County
aa MEREYEREFRABERINO
FIARIR
Shaoxing Parcel at Xi'an, Pacjiang, Shaoxing 480 2,236,000 1,073,280 117391 219,200 105,216
el BEMIAZNR
Hefei Feixi Parcel No. FX202109 9.0 1,103,046 1,058,899 60,127 114,000 109,440
& TEFEFX2021093%
Shangrao Economic Development Area of Shangrao Municipality, 528 424,000 223872 232917 500,300 264,158
Parcel No. DEA2021114, DEA2021115, DEA2021116,
© DEAXO2ITI7DEA02IIS
 LEAAEEEDEALL1114+ DALY
Hu !- ! New Area, Tianjin - | P 1,728,000 81436 157,500 151,200

55,257

110,500 106,080

550,906



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB40,025.8 million, represented an increase of 14.8% as
compared to RMB34,875.2 million of the corresponding period last year.
Our revenue mainly derived from the development and sales of the Group'’s
residential properties and commercial properties, we also derived revenue
from leasing of commercial properties, and provision of management
consulting services for the overall operation of property projects to our joint
ventures and associates.

The table below sets forth the certain information related to our revenue:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEERR DT

R 5[0l RE

WA

HE_ S - —F+-_B=+—HLEEE ZEBRRKRAHA
R #40,0258B 8T REFRPNABARME3487528E T
EMN148% WARBEFEREAEBNEENEREBEY
EPREREE AEETRUEEERENERIYEER
ENERESERaESrENME ARRHESELHRBEM
ERJUWA

TREIBEABANETER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_-_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—E—fF ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
AR¥TT AREFT %
Property development and sales MR ERIEE 39,521,551 98.7 34,380,524 98.5
Residential T= 38,314,480 95.7 31,652,719 90.8
Commercial [EES 1,207,071 3.0 2,727,805 7.7
Property leasing MERE 397,061 1.0 336,613 1.0
Management consulting services BIRBHARE 107,214 0.3 158,037 0.5
Total 45t 40,025,826 100.0 34,875,174 100.0
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Revenue from Property Development and Sales

As of 31 December 2021, the revenue from property development and sales
was approximately RMB39,521.6 million, represented an increase of 15.0% as
compared to approximately RMB34,380.5 million of the corresponding period
last year. The increase in the Group's revenue from property development and
sales was primarily attributable to an increase in the number of completed
and delivered property projects of the Group, which resulted in an increase in
the Group's total GFA delivered, especially in Central China and Northwestern
China region which shown greater increase during the year.

Rental Income

Revenue from property leasing consists of recurring rental revenue from
leasing our commercial properties, such as office buildings, shopping malls
and shopping streets. Our rental income increased by approximately 18.0%
to RMB397.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB336.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the
increase in the area leased out and rent in 2021 as compared to 2020.

Management Consulting Services

The Group provides management consulting services to its joint ventures
and associates, such services mainly include management consultation
services provided to these entities in connection with the construction,
sales and marketing of properties, and overall project management during
the development and sales of properties. Our revenue from management
consulting services decreased by approximately 32.2% to RMB107.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB158.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due the decrease in scale of
projects developed by our joint ventures and associates which we provided
management consulting services.

Cost of Sales

Cost of property development and sales mainly consists of construction costs,
land acquisition costs and capitalized interest. During the year ended 31
December 2021, our cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB32,278.4
million, represented an increase of 18.8% as compared to that of RMB27,162.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily
attributable to increases in the scale of our operations and accordingly an
increase in our corresponding total GFA delivered.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group's gross profit increased to RMB7,747.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 from RMB7,712.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group’s gross profit margin decreased to 19.4% for the year ended 31
December 2021 from 22.1% for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Finance Income

The Group's finance income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, interest income from funds the Group advanced to our joint
ventures and associates and interest received from third parties. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's finance cost was approximately
RMB183.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 92.5% as
compared to RMB95.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
was mainly due to the fact that the Group enhanced the management of its
idle funds during the year, thus we received higher deposit interests.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains decreased to RMB183.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB436.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in net exchange gain.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of (i) promotion
and advertising expenses, which primarily represent costs incurred in
connection with advertisement in media and promotional events; (ii)
employee benefit expenses, which primarily represent salaries paid to
our Group's selling and marketing personnel; (iii) office and property
management expenses, which primarily represent the expenses incurred
in daily operation and management of the Group's sales offices; (iv) sales
expenses, which primarily represent commissions paid to third-party sales
agencies; (v) depreciation and amortization, which primarily represent the
depreciation and amortization of equipment and devices used by the Group's
selling and marketing personnel; (vi) travelling and entertainment expenses;
and (vii) after-sales service expenses, which primarily represent expenses
incurred during the provision of our Group's after-sales services to our
customers.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
25.7% to RMB1,449.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
RMB1,152.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in business scale, resulting in the increase in
promotion and advertising expenses.
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Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) employee benefit expenses,
which primarily represent salaries paid to our Group’s administrative
personnel; (ii) tax and surcharges, which primarily represent stamp duties
in relation to sales contracts the Group entered into and property tax in
relation to properties our Groups leased; (iii) depreciation and amortization,
which primarily represent the depreciation and amortization of the Group's
offices and office equipment; (iv) office expenses, which primarily represent
the expenses incurred by our Group's administrative personnel in the daily
operations of our Group's offices; (v) professional consulting expenses,
which primarily represent the expenses for the consulting services the
Group engaged in order to increase our operational efficiency; (vi) bank
service charges, which primarily represent the expenses for miscellaneous
bank services; (vii) travelling and entertainment expenses; and (viii) service
expenditures.

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by approximately 0.1% to
RMB1,195.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB1,196.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily
attributable to the enhancement of the management of administrative and
office expenses of the Group.

Finance Cost

Our finance costs mainly consist of (i) interest on bank and other borrowings,
corporate bonds, asset-backed securities, senior notes and lease liabilities; and
(i) interest expense arising from revenue contracts, which represents interest
expenses recognised for the significant financing components included in
contract liabilities during the period from the receipt of sales proceeds to the
delivery of the underlying properties, less capitalized interest directly relating
to properties under development.

The Group's finance cost decreased by approximately 33.4% to RMB349.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB525.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily attributable to the
decrease in average finance cost due to the continuous optimization of the
Group's debt structure.

The Group's weighted average cost of debt as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 6.58% (31 December 2020: 7.47%).

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses decreased by approximately 44.3% to RMB44.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB80.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily attributable to the
increase in donation made for fighting against Covid-19 pandemic and other
community charity in 2020.
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Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

Fair value gains on investment properties represent the changes in the fair
value of our investment properties. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties of RMB657.0 million,
represented an increase of 50.3% compared to that of RMB437.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was primarily because
Radiance Park 18 (B /\[& i 2 F7.0)) was added to our investment properties
portfolio, and accordingly we recorded a relatively high level of appreciation
in value in 2021 as compared to the corresponding period of 2020.

Share of Profits of Joint Ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded share of profits
of joint ventures of RMB98.4 million, while we recorded share of profits of
joint ventures of RMB992.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Such change was mainly attributable to the decrease in GFA delivered of the
property projects held by the Group's joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Share of Profits of Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's recorded share of profits
of associates of RMB641.1 million, while we recorded share of losses of
associates of RMB182.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
was primarily attributable to the increase in GFA delivered property projects
held by the Group's associates during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Profit before Tax

The Group's profit before tax decreased by approximately 1.1% to RMB6,465.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB6,536.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses for the year included the provision made
for PRC enterprise Income tax and land appreciation tax. The Group's income
tax expenses increased by approximately 2.0% to RMB2,771.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB2,717.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was primarily attributable to the increase in enterprise
income tax as a result of the increase in our taxable profit and property sales.

The effective enterprise income tax rate (i.e. income tax divided by profit
before tax) of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was 42.9%, as
compared to that of 41.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Profit for the Year

As a result of the change in the Group's financial data mentioned above,
the profit after tax of the Group during the year decreased by approximately
3.3% to RMB3,693.7 million during the year ended 31 December 2021 from
RMB3,819.1 million during the year ended 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net current assets was RMB48,027.6
million (2020: RMB49,834.5 million). In particular, the Group's total current
assets increased by approximately 0.6% to RMB163,474.6 million as at
31 December 2021 from RMB162,445.3 million as at 31 December 2020.
The Group's total current liabilities increased by approximately 2.5% to
RMB115,447.1 million as at 31 December 2021 from RMB112,610.8 million
as at 31 December 2020. The increase of the Group's net current assets was
mainly attributable to (i) increase in properties under development as we
expanded our business, such increase was partly offset by (i) increase in
contracted liabilities as a result of increase in sales of properties; (i) increase in
trade payables to satisfy our operation and development need.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's cash and bank balances was
RMB19,728.5 million (2020: RMB26,591.0 million). Excluding the restricted
cash and pledged deposits, our cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB11,221.9 million, of which RMB10,873.3 million, RMB97.7 million and
RMB250.9 million (2020: RMB20,732.1 million, of which RMB17,918.8 million,
RMB2,548.6 million and RMB264.7 million) were denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
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Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's outstanding borrowings amounted
to RMB52,794.2 million (2020: RMB53,774.0 million), of which RMB26,893.8
million (2020: RMB30,703.4 million) carried interests at fixed rate. Save for the
RMB4,541.1 million senior notes which were denominated in US dollars and
the RMB126.9 million bank loans which were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, all other borrowings of the Group were denominated in Renminbi.

The table below sets forth the components of the Group’s borrowings as at

the dates indicated:
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—F+ A=+ —H  AEENKEEERIESRE
BARMES2,794 2887w (ZTEZEF | ARM53,774.08
B HPhARMK68BEET(CE_TFE: AR
307034B &) BEEAEFE - BRAR4541 1 5ETE
EEBEUETHEMARBI2098BTIRITERUSB T
BN REBFAEEMERMUARETE

TREIAEBBEFTHBANERERESD

As of 31 December
BE+-B=+—8H

2021 2020
—EC—F TECEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTFT AREFT
Current BNHA
Bank loans — secured RITER—AHEF 126,875 12,561
Other loans - secured HthER—A 747,000 -
Current portion of long term bank loans RARITERBNEAE 2
— secured — Bk 7,730,586 5,727,540
Current portion of other loans — secured HmERWENERI D —F IR F 899,572 3,994,330
Corporate bonds NEIES 4,572,592 7,056,468
Senior notes BIRER 2,650,016 1,745,743
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BEIRFESAETIE 65,705 770,798
Total current BN ER4B%E 16,792,346 19,307,440
Non-current JEBNEA
Bank loans — secured RITER—BAHEF 24,789,490 22,612,905
Other loans - secured HittEm— B 1,870,000 3,255,100
Corporate bonds NEVMES 2,197,450 2,358,100
Senior notes BIRER 1,891,050 3,549,874
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BEIRFESRENIE 5,253,870 2,690,573
Total non-current JEBNHR4EER 36,001,860 34,466,552
Total borrowings fARAREE 52,794,206 53,773,992
Secured BigkE 41,483,098 39,063,807
Unsecured I 11,311,108 14,710,185
Total borrowings faTR 4Bz 52,794,206 53,773,992
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The following table sets out the maturity of the Group's total borrowings and ~ FR&F| A EBERIEERAEBRMUETE I ZSHFH B
the extent of the Group's total borrowings subject to fixed or floating interest AU FRARZBFS P B HARIZIERIB R ¢
rates as at the dates indicated:

As of 31 December
H#E=+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E”—F ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBEF T
Bank loans repayable: BEERITENR
Within one year —FRN 7,857,461 5,740,101
Between one and two years —EEME 12,280,310 11,909,435
Between two and five years MEERE 12,007,940 10,574,470
More than five years EEMUE 501,240 129,000
32,646,951 28,353,006
Other borrowings repayable: AEEBEEMER
Within one year —FR 1,646,572 3,994,330
Between one and two years —FERE 900,000 3,155,100
Between two and five years MEERFE 970,000 100,000
3,516,572 7,249,430
Other senior notes, corporate bonds and EEENHEBAEZER RBESK
proceeds from asset-backed securities repayable BEIRFESMEHRE
Within one year —FR 7,288,313 9,573,009
Between one and four years —FENERN 5,917,165 6,156,321
Over four years EM 3,425,205 2,442,226
16,630,683 18,171,556
Total 485t 52,794,206 53,773,992
By fixed or floating interest rates ZEE I F B EE 5
Fixed interest rate [E A =E 26,893,800 30,703,412
Floating interest rate HFEIA]E 25,900,406 23,070,580
Total Indebtedness (v 52,794,206 53,773,992
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Pledged Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's borrowings was secured by the Group's
assets that amounted to RMB70,721.9 million (2020: RMB64,652.0 million),
such assets included (i) property, plant and equipment; (i) land use rights;
(i) investment properties; (iv) properties under development; (v) completed
properties held for sale; and (vi) pledged deposits.

Financial Risk

The Group's businesses exposed us to various financial risks, including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order
to minimize such risk exposures of the Group, we do not use any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging. The Group does not hold or issue financial
derivatives for trading purpose.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to changes in market interest rate relates primarily to
the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group does not
use financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk, and uses variable rate bank
borrowings and other borrowings to manage its interest cost.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates its business in China, and substantial all of its
revenue and expenses are denominated in Renminbi, while the net proceeds
from the Listing was paid in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2021,
among the Group's cash and bank balances, RMB97.7 million and RMB250.9
million was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars, respectively,
such amounts were subject to the exchange rate fluctuation. The Group
does not have any policy to hedge against foreign exchange risk. However,
the Group will closely monitor its foreign exchange exposure, and strive to
maintain the value of the Group's cash.

Credit Risk

The Group divides financial instruments on basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings for the
purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and calculation
of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made only to counterparties
with an appropriate credit history and management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of the Group’s counterparties. The credit quality of these
customers is assessed after taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors. The Group also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
receivables. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount
of trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk, with credit risk spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between sustainability and
flexibility of funding through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The Group reviews our liquidity position on an ongoing basis.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group has arrangements with various banks for the provision of mortgage
financing and, where required, provides our customers with guarantees as
security for mortgage loans. The terms of such guarantees typically last until
the issuance of the real estate ownership certificate upon the completion of
guarantee registration or satisfaction of mortgage loan by the purchaser. As
a guarantor, if the purchaser defaults in payment, the Group is obligated to
repay all outstanding amounts owed by the purchaser to the mortgagee bank
under the loan and have the right to claim such amount from the defaulting
purchaser. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not incur any material
losses in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The Directors
considered that the likelihood of default in payments by purchasers is minimal
and therefore the financial guarantees measured at fair value was immaterial.
As such, no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has provided guarantee to the banks
amounting to RMB40,093.5 million (2020: RMB34,134.7 million) in total
for the financing granted to the purchasers of the Group's properties. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group has provided guarantee to the banks
amounting to RMB1,426.5 million (2020: RMB5,515.5 million) in total for
the financing granted to the Group's related parties and third parties. As at
31 December 2021, the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital,
bank overdrafts and acceptance liabilities or other similar indebtedness,
debentures, mortgages, charges or loans, or acceptance credits or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities
or any covenant. The Directors have confirmed that there had not been any
material change in the indebtedness, capital commitments and contingent
liabilities of the Group up to the latest practicable date for the purpose of the
indebtedness statement.

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings from time
to time during the ordinary course of business. The Group believes that the
liabilities resulting from these proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.

Commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment of RMB23,147.5
million (2020: RMB28,896.8 million) in respect of properties under
development, merger and acquisition of equity interest and capital injection
for investment in joint ventures and associates.

Off-Balance Sheet Commitment and Arrangements

Save for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, loan securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, acceptance liabilities (save for normal commercial notes),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance lease or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.
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Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

On 25 June 2021, Beijing Jinhui Chuangling Technology Co., Ltd. ("Beijing
Jinhui"), a 96% non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the
purchaser entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement with Shanghai
Greenland Hotel and Tourism (Group) Co., Ltd ("GHTG"), as the vendor,
pursuant to which Beijing Jinhui has conditionally agreed to acquire, and
GHTG has conditionally agreed to sell, the entire equity interests in Shanghai
Jiulong Hotel Co,, Ltd. (“Shanghai Jiulong Hotel") for the consideration in
the amount of RMB860,000,000. The hotel held by Shanghai Jiulong Hotel is
located in the core area of Shanghai with a superior geographical location,
which will help strengthen the Group’ development in the hotel business
sector. The acquisition of Shanghai Jiulong Hotel has completed in August
2021. Upon completion, the Group was interested in the entire equity interest
in Shanghai Jiulong Hotel and Shanghai Jiulong Hotel has become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The financial results of Shanghai Jiulong
Hotel has been consolidated into the Group's financial statements. Further
details of the above acquisition of Shanghai Jiulong Hotel were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 25 June 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has no other
significant investments held or material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Future Plan for Significant Investment

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other immediate
plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31 December 2021.
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

Net proceeds from the Listing (including the partial exercise of the over-
allotment options), after deducting the underwriting commission and
other estimated expenses in connection with the Listing, amounted to
approximately HK$2,691.9 million (equivalent to approximately RMB2,332.3
million). As of the date of this report, the net proceeds received from the
Listing have been used in a manner consistent with the proposed allocations
in the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has utilized all of
the proceeds from the Listing in the amount of approximately RMB2,332.3
million, of which: (i) approximately RMB233.2 million was allocated for general
business operations and working capital; and (ii) approximately RMB699.7
million was used to repay part of the Group's existing entrusted loans for the
Group's development projects; and (iii) approximately RMB1,399.4 million was
used to finance the Group's existing property projects.

As at 31 December 2021, our planned use and actual use of net proceeds
from the Listing was as follows:
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R RBERL DT FRERIER A R269198 8B T
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AR R _E_—F+_A=+—HB F£&£HEH
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Unutilised Utilised Unutilised
brought forward Utilised ended (up to (asat
Percentage of Availableto  (asat 1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December
net proceeds utilise 2021) 2021 2021) 2021)
BE
(RZBZ— IBI-f (BE

—B—-B) +ZR=t+-H “BC-F (RCBC-F
Frig A GELEH L#ER +ZA=+-RA) +ZA=t+-A)
BELA  IHBEEE  HRBAER gELE BBREE  HABAER
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
\E¥EEBD (\R%EEBD \EBEED EBEED (AREKEERD)

Construction costs for the development of ~ AEBRAYEERRN
the Group's existing property projects BRAE 60% 13994 11172 11172 13994 00
Repayment of trust loans BRELEN 30% 699.7 795 795 699.7 00

For general business operation purposes and —MREHESERRR
working capital BEES 10% 2332 - = 2332 00
100% 23323 11967 11967 23323 0.0
Employees (==

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a total of 3,383 employees, with
most of them were based in China. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
staff costs (including Directors) was approximately RMB605.6 million (2020:
approximately RMB450.2 million). The Group determined the salary based on
the qualifications, position and experience of each employee. The Group has
established a regular assessment mechanism to assess the performance of our
employees, the assessment results are used as the basis for determining salary
increment, bonuses and promotions.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTOR AND

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Ting Keung (M 38), aged 55, founded our Group in September
1996. Mr. Lam was appointed as our Director on 17 October 2019 and was re-
designated as our executive Director on 16 March 2020. Mr. Lam is currently
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group as well.
He is primarily responsible for the leadership, overall strategic planning, major
investment and decision making of our Group. Mr. Lam also has over 27 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Currently, Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (EBIBUA A EZE2HEES)
since March 2013, a standing member of All-China Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese (FRZEZFEFBEEFH G F) since July 2009, a vice
president of the Overseas Chinese Charity Foundation of China (FEIZEFA
HE L) since December 2015, a vice president of the Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association (FEfE ™ # & &) since December 2010. He is
also a permanent honorary chairman of Hong Kong-Fujian Association (& &
BEMLEME), Hong Kong Federation Overseas Chinese Association (&7
BE B E) and Hong Kong-Fuzhou Shiyi Fellow Association (& 48 M
+ERB4E) since May 2008, December 2018 and July 2002, respectively. Mr.
Lam obtained the Enthusiastic Overseas Chinese Outstanding Contribution
Award (BU LB INEEH A\ 8 H B BREE) granted by Overseas Chinese Affairs
Office of the State Council (BElF5BR B /A %) in December 2017 and the
2018 Annual Overseas Chinese Charity Star (2018 FEEBENEEZE)
granted by Overseas Chinese Charity Foundation of China (T EIZEEA & E
£ ) in December 2018.

Mr. Lam is the father of Mr. Lam Yu, our executive Director.

Mr. Lam is the sole director of Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine,
both of which have interests in the Shares that are discloseable under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lam Yu (#43), aged 31, was appointed as our Director on 17 October
2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director on 16 March 2020.
Mr. Lam Yu is also an executive president of our Group and is primarily
responsible for the management of Presidents’ Office, human resources and
Administrative Management Office of our Group. He joined our Group in
March 2011 as a director of Yancheng Jinhui Juye and had been a director of
our various subsidiaries.

Mr. Lam Yu participated in the Advanced Seminar for Chief Executive Officers
on Real Estate Development and Investment and Finance at Tsinghua
University (B 3 K2 5 & 55 3 B Bl B2 8 S ARHE DD from May
2010 to March 2011.

Mr. Lam Yu is the son of Mr. Lam, our executive Director.
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Mr. Huang Junquan (Ef83), aged 49, was appointed as our Director
on 17 October 2019 and was redesignated as our executive Director on 16
March 2020. Mr. Huang is also a senior vice president of our Group and is
primarily responsible for the project operations, architecture design and brand
marketing of our Group. He joined our Group in January 2009 as the vice
president of Radiance Group and was promoted as the senior vice president
and director of Radiance Group in September 2018.

From September 1995 to December 2005, Mr. Huang served in Xiamen
Zhongjian Northeast Architectural Design & Research Institute Co., Ltd. (/BP9
2R IR 5B A B2 F)) with his last position as the director in a branch
office, where he was primarily responsible for the design management of the
Fuzhou branch. From January 2006 to December 2008, he served as a director
in the Fuzhou branch of Beijing Zhonghuajian Planning and Design Institute
Co, Ld. OERAERRBRXARRBRATDEBRED AT, where he
was primarily responsible for the design business and overall operation of
such company.

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in architecture from Tianjin University
(K7EARZ)in the PRC in July 1995. He obtained qualifications for Class 1
Registered Architect (—#R&E 2 ZEET) granted by MOHURD, Ministry of
Human Resource and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (F
EAREMBEANE R ERESR) formerly known as Ministry of
Personnel of the People’s Republic of China (FA#E A R HAE A FE=6)and
Fujian Provincial Department of Human Resource and Social Security in April
2001. He obtained the qualification of Senior Architect (75 4R 32 52 8f) granted
by FREIRFEFRILERFHHIZERT (China Construction Northeast Architectural
Design & Research Institute) in September 2002. He is the vice president of
Fuzhou Real Fstate Association ({2 B EX£1H ) .

Mr. Xu Xiaodong, aged 39, has over 15 years of experience in financial
management, treasury management, capital market financing, risk
management and internal control management. Mr. Xu joined the Group in
December 2016 and was promoted as assistant executive president of the
Group in November 2020. In September 2021, Mr. Xu was appointed and is
currently serving as a director of Radiance Group Co., Ltd., an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Xu is primarily responsible for the financial and treasury management
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked at Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, Deloitte & Touche LLP (Singapore),
China Resources Land Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1109), Sincere Holding Group Co., Ltd., Hopson
Development Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 754).

Mr. Xu is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (CICPA), a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (CIMA) and a member of China Certified Tax Agents
Association (CCTAA). Mr. Xu is also a qualified practitioner under the Securities
Association of China (SAC) and Asset Management Association of China
(AMACQ).

Mr. Xu holds a bachelor's degree in science and management from Nanjing
University, a master's degree in professional accounting and a master’s degree
in economics from Peking University and an MBA degree from Tsinghua
University. He is currently pursuing a doctorate degree at Emlyon business
school.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Huagiao (3815#8), aged 58, was appointed as the independent
director of Radiance Group in June 2016. Mr. Zhang's appointment was solely
to enable him to serve as an independent director of Radiance Group upon
its listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the application for which was
still pending at the time of his appointment. As such listing has not taken
place, he has not taken part in the day-to-day operations and management
of Radiance Group or of the Group. Mr. Zhang was further appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2020. Mr. Zhang is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From July 1994 to July 1995, Mr. Zhang worked as analyst in Equity Capital
Markets Department of Swiss Bank Corporation Warburg. From June
1999 to April 2006, he worked in the equities department of Union Bank
of Switzerland (Hong Kong branch) (% =#R1T), a Swiss multinational
investment bank and financial services company, with the last position as
the co-head of the China research team. From May 2006 to September 2008,
he served in Shenzhen Investment Limited GRIIIERRARAE) with his
last position as chief operation officer and executive director, a real estate
development company , the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0604). From September 2008 to June 2011, he was employed by
UBS AG with the last capacity as a deputy head of UBS China IBD with the
corporate rank of managing director in the Investment Banking Department.
From September 2011 to April 2012, he served as an executive director and
chief executive officer of Man Sang International Limited (R4 EIEARA
B]), a real estate development company, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0938).
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In addition, Mr. Zhang currently holds directorship in the following companies

listed on the Stock Exchange:

SN R E BRIEE TN L ARMNES !

Name of Entity Stock code Position and Period of Time
BRE%E BeAREaR B A1 K2 A HA
Fosun International Limited 0656 independent non-executive director;
EEBERARAE since March 2012
BIFMITES;
B2012F38
Logan Property Holdings Company Limited 3380 independent non-executive director;
BECHEERBIRAR since November 2013
BIFMITES ;
BH20135F11 B #E
Zhong An Group Limited 0672 independent non-executive director;
REZEBRRAR since January 2013
BIFHITES ;
B2013F1 B
Luye Pharma Group Limited 2186 independent non-executive director;
GEMNEEBBRAT since June 2014
BUIERITES;
BH2014F68 i
Haitong International Securities Group Limited 0665 independent non-executive director;

EEEEESEEARAR

since May 2021
BIUIFRITES;
H202145 3




Mr. Zhang also served as an independent non-executive director of
Yancoal Australia Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX code: YAL), from April 2014 to January 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of China Rapid Finance Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: XRF), from April
2017 to March 2019.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial and banking from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (A7 & 87 &8 A K 22) (formerly
known as Hubei Financial and Banking Institute GEICEA4RE2P%)) in July
1983. He also obtained a master’'s degree in economics from both the
Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China (1 A R R1THZTAEER)
in the PRC in July 1986 and Australian National University in Australia in April
1991, respectively.

Mr. Tse Yat Hong (3 B E), aged 52, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 5 October 2020. Mr. Tse is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management to our
Board.

From January 1994 to May 2000, Mr. Tse worked as an audit manager in an
international accounting firm. From June 2000 to May 2019, Mr. Tse worked
as the chief financial officer in Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
CRYIBEREEZERBRAE), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0152), where he was primarily responsible for the
overall financial management and capital market operation of such company.
From August 2000 to March 2008, Mr. Tse also worked as the company
secretary of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited. From September 2004
to September 2007, Mr. Tse worked as a joint company secretary of Shenzhen
Expressway Company Limited CRIIBER AR D BRAE).

Mr. Tse is currently an independent non-executive director of China Bohai
Bank Co. Ltd. GE/BIRT1TRRIDBIEAT), the H shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9668), an independent non-executive
director of China Huirong Financial Holdings Limited (1Bl [E B4 & BRi%=Ae B
FR/AT)), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1290) and an independent non-executive director of Sky Light Holdings
Limited CRFIZRRBR/AT]), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3882) and an independent non-executive director of
E-Star Commercial Management Company Limited (2R EXEERMNE
FR/AT)), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
6668). Mr. Tse served as a non-executive director of Shenzhen Expressway
Company Limited from January 2009 to December 2017, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0548) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600548).

Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor ‘s degree in science from Monash University in
Australia in April 1992. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) and a FCPA of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Chung Chong Sun ($8I#1), aged 46, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2020. Mr. Chung is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

From July 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chung worked as an associate of the
investment bank department in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) as
his last position, where he was primarily responsible for the projects of initial
public offering, corporate finance and financial advice. From May 2000 to July
2001, Mr. Chung worked as a senior executive in Deloitte & Touche Corporate
Finance Limited, where he was primarily responsible for the projects of
initial public offering, corporate finance and financial advice. From August
2001 to August 2003, Mr. Chung worked as an associate director of merger
and acquisition department in Cooperative Rabobank U.A. Hong Kong
Branch, a Dutch multinational banking and financial services company. From
August 2003 to December 2005, Mr. Chung worked as an investor support
officer in InvestHK of the government of Hong Kong. From December 2005
to September 2018, Mr. Chung worked as senior vice president of Issuer
Services, Market Development Department in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited. From September 2018 to July 2019, Mr. Chung worked as
a chief financial officer in Xiaoi Robot Technology (H.K.) Limited, where he
was primarily responsible for financial functions, risk management, fund
raising, capital market operation and investor relations. He has been the
director of Resourceful Minds Limited CEE&HE BRA E) since September
2019, a consulting company, where he has been primarily responsible for the
development strategies and daily operation of such company.

Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-executive director of Strawbear
Entertainment Group (FEEFRIR%LEEE), a drama series producer and
distributor in the PRC, covering the investment, development, production and
distribution of TV series and web series, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2125)

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in May 1997. He is also a CPA
of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a CPA of Washington
State Board of Accountancy and a CFA of CFA Institute. Mr. Chung has
been appointed as a member of the Advisory committee of IT Innovation
Lab in Secondary School Initiative of Hong Kong secondary schools by the
government of Hong Kong since September 2020. He had also been served
as a contact convener of the artificial intelligence and high technology
committee in Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China (Shanghai) (47
&8 &) @& —_E8) from November 2018 to November 2019.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Guo Yanfang (2B8f%), was appointed as our vice president on 2
February 2021 and is primarily responsible for the cost and procurement
management of our Group. Ms. Guo joined our Group as an assistant
president of Radiance Group in April 2016.

Prior to joining our Group, from May 2000 to October 2004, Ms. Guo worked in
Beijing Xinkang Properties Development Co, Ltd. GERHMEREHERRZEE
FR/AT)), a property development company. From March 2005 to September
2006, she worked as a manager in the budget contract department of Beijing
Modern Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. JtREREBXEARAT), a
property development company. From February 2007 to February 2010, she
worked as a director in the project cost center of Beijing Tongrui Real Estate
Co, Ltd. GERBHEZEEBIRAT), a property development company,
where she was primarily responsible for the target cost, purchasing and pre-
settlement management. From February 2010 to July 2014, she worked as a
deputy general manager in the operation department of Qingdao Longfor
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (EEREMEERREREBRAD), a
property development company, where she was primarily responsible for the
development strategy and operation plan. From July 2014 to April 2016, she
worked as the responsible officer in cost purchasing department of Longfor
Group Holdings Limited (BE#SEEZERBRAE]), a property development
company, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0960), where she was primarily responsible for cost review.

Ms. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree in heating ventilation and air
conditioning from Harbin University of Civil Engineering and Architecture (F&
FBEE KE) . She obtained the qualification of Senior Engineer specialized
in heating ventilation granted by China Construction Eighth Engineering
Division Co,, Ltd. (FEIZHEE/NTZFEBRAE) in July 2007.

Mr. Chiu Ngam (#3), was appointed as our chief financial officer and
company secretary in August 2019 and November 2019, respectively, and is
primarily responsible for the financial management and company secretarial
matters of our Group. Mr. Chiu obtained a bachelor's degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
Hong Kong. He is also a FCPA of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), a CPA of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA of Washington State Board of Accountancy, a member of
INSOL International, a member of taxation faculty of HKICPA and a member
of restructuring and insolvency faculty of HKICPA. Mr. Chiu has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, financial management, merger and acquisition,
capital market financing and listing compliance. He had served in numerous
companies listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
has been appointed as chief financial officer for more than 10 years in China
real estate industry. Mr. Chiu has been awarded “The Best CFO Award” of “Year
2021 China Financing Awards” by China Financial Market Magazine.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ngam was appointed as our company secretary on 19 November
2019. For further details of his qualification and experience, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Senior management” in this section.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXELRRS

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company applied the
principles of and fully complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code’ except for the following deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
its compliance with the CG Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consists of four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lam Ting Keung (Chairman), Mr. Lam Yu, Mr. Chen Chaorong
and Mr. Huang Junquan and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhang Huagiao, Mr. Tse Yat Hong, and Mr. Chung Chong Sun.
Subsequently, Mr. Chen Chaorong has stepped down as an executive Director
and Mr. Xu Xiaodong has been appointed as an executive Director, both with
effect from 25 March 2022. An updated list of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the
Company, respectively.

Mr. Lam Ting Keung is the father of Mr. Lam Yu, an executive Director.
Other than that, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the members of the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The three independent non-executive Directors represent more
than one-third of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors of a
listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interest of Shareholders. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
performed the following corporate governance duties:

1. reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance;

2. reviewed the compliance with Model Code for Directors;

3. reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors;

4. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and internal

control system; and

5. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
oversees all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior executives.
All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times. As at 31 December
2021, the Board comprised seven Directors, including four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. Their names and biographical
details are set out in the “Biographies of Director and senior management”
section of this report. Liability insurance for Directors and senior management
of the Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their
duties.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy
and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the
day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should report
back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board
by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry significant
weight in the Board's decision. The functions of independent non-executive
Directors include bringing an impartial view and judgement on issues of
the Company’s strategies, performance and control; and scrutinising the
Company's performance and monitoring performance reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and have
made positive contributions to the development of the Company through
providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three
years.
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Confirmation of independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and each of
the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual written
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the
Company'’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and experience,
including commercial property operation, overall business management,
finance and investment. They obtained degrees in various majors including
business administration, electrical engineering and automation, real estate,
computerized accounting. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors who have different industry backgrounds, representing
over one-third of our Board members. Furthermore, the Board has a wide
range of age, ranging from 31 years old to 58 years old. We have taken
and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels
of our Company, including but without limitation at our Board and senior
management levels. As of 31 December 2021, one of the senior management
members of the Company is a female. Taking into account our business model
and specific needs, we consider that the composition of the Board satisfies
our board diversity policy.
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With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the board diversity policy
further provides that the Board shall take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The
Board would ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved
with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing our Board
to gender parity. Going forward and with a view to developing a pipeline of
potential successors to the Board that may meet the targeted gender diversity
ratio set out below, we will (i) continue to make appointments based on
merits with reference to board diversity as a whole; (i) take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of the Group by recruiting staff of different
gender; (i) consider the possibility of nominating female management staff
who has the necessary skills and experience to the Board; and (iv) provide
career development opportunities and more resources in training female staff
with the aim of promoting them to the senior management or board of the
Company so that we will have a pipeline of female senior management and
potential successors to our Board in a few years' time.

The Nomination Committee will use its best efforts to identify and
recommend female candidates to the Board for consideration for
appointment as Directors with an ultimate aim to achieve at least 20% female
representation in the Board within five years of Listing, subject to there being
suitable candidates and the Directors being satisfied with the qualification
and experience of the relevant candidates after a reasonable review process
based on selection criteria designed with the best interests of the Company’s
business in mind. The Directors will exercise fiduciary duties in the process,
acting in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole
when making the relevant appointments.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring diversity of the Board
members and will use its best efforts to identify and recommend suitable
candidates, including female candidates, for the Board's consideration. We
also welcome candidates of different gender to apply for our mid to senior
level positions. The ultimate decision of the appointment will be based on
merits and the contribution which the selected candidates could bring to
our Board and management team. The Board believes that such merit-based
selection criteria will best enable the Company to serve the Shareholders and
other stakeholders going forward.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years.
Such term is subject to his retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association. Pursuant to the Article 16.2 of the Company’s Articles, the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

Pursuant to the Article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual general meeting
of the Company one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director required to
stand for re-election pursuant to Article 16.2 shall not be taken into account
in determining the number of Directors and which Directors are to retire by
rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at
which he retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. The Company at
any annual general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated
office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Pursuant to the Article 16.6 of the Articles, the Company may by ordinary
resolution at any time remove any Director (including a Managing Director
or other executive Director) before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything in these Articles or in any agreement between the
Company and such Director and may by ordinary resolution elect another
person in his stead. Any person so elected shall hold office during such
time only as the Director in whose place he is elected would have held
the same if he had not been removed. Nothing in this Article should be
taken as depriving a Director removed under any provision of this Article of
compensation or damages payable to him in respect of the termination of
his appointment as Director or of any other appointment or office as a result
of the termination of his appointment as Director or as derogatory from any
power to remove a Director which may exist apart from the provision of this
Article.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On the first occasion of each Director's appointment, the Company would
arrange a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction session on his/her
appointment to ensure he/she would have a proper understanding of the
Company's businesses and operations as well as his/her responsibilities under
relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations as a director of a listed company.

As part of continuous professional development of the Directors, the
Company also provides briefings and other trainings to develop and refresh
the Director's knowledge and skills. and continuously update Directors on the
latest developments regarding the Group's business, the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors attended the
aforementioned comprehensive training, a training session on update on
the recent Listing Rules amendments, and read relevant materials to keep
themselves abreast of requlatory developments and changes.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a year.
In addition to regular Board meetings, the Directors also participate in
deliberation and approval of routine and operational matters of the Company
by way of written resolutions with supporting explanatory materials,
supplemented by additional written information from the management when
required. Additional Board meetings would be held whenever warranted.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held five Board
meetings and one general meeting. Apart from that, the chairman also held a

meeting solely with the independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each Director is set out below:
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BRESHLFECROT
Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2021

BZE2021F12A31BLLEE
HEGERY RITEERY

Name of Directors Board General meeting
EEH4 55y BERAE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Lam Ting Keung MIE SR E 5/5 11
Mr. Lam Yu MFERE 5/5 11
Mr. Chen Chaorong FREA 4 5/5 11

(resigned on 25 March 2022) (F£20224E3525H BFE)

Mr. Huang Jinquan HERKE 5/5 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIERITES

Mr. Zhang Huagiao RICE A 5/5 1/1
Mr. Tse Yat Hong HBRELE 5/5 11
Mr. Chung Chong Sun Al E 5/5 11

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

83




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for the
Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that he had complied with
all applicable code provisions under the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2021.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the Company
are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to deal in securities
of the Company at any time when he/she possesses inside information of the
Group. No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
officers and employees was noted by the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The determination to pay dividends will be made at the discretion of our
Directors, depending on our results of operations, working capital, financial
position, future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which our Directors may consider relevant. Dividends may be paid
only out of our distributable profits as permitted under the relevant laws.
Any final dividend distribution shall also be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in a Shareholders’ meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures and internal procedures
of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability. The Company is
committed to the view that the Board should include a balanced composition
of executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgment. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company has complied with the code provisions stated in the CG Code
except for the deviation from CG Code provision A.2.1.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Lam Ting Keung is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Lam has
been taking up day-to-day responsibilities in operating and managing the
Group since its establishment, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Lam Ting Keung taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore, the Directors consider
that the deviation from CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board views that such management structure
is effective for the Group's operations and sufficient checks and balances are
in place.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms of
reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs. All the Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference
which have been posted on Stock Exchange’s website and/or the Company's
website.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 5 October 2020. The
primary duties of our Audit Committee are to assist our Board by providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of our Group's financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system, to monitor the scope,
effectiveness and results of internal audit functions, to oversee the audit
process, to develop and review our policies and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Chong Sun (being the chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Zhang Huagiao and Mr. Tse Yat Hong.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held two B ZE2021F 12831 HILFE > BEREZEGHARTASRE
meetings with the senior management and independent auditor of the IEABRBIUZEBMERITMRNEGH > ZEBILZEMY
Company to consider the independence and audit scope of independent IR BIZEHBE > WEHETHARSELANFEZTZR
auditor, and to review and discuss the risk management and internal control ~ # - A AT R EBFANEN BRI - AR BNH PR EE
systems, the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function, interim M BEBREAURBIZBANERRBRE  REODESGE
and annual financial statements of the Company and the opinion and report ~ ¥R&IZ2 2 Ht o

of independent auditor before reporting and submitting to the Board for their

approval.
The attendance of each member is as follows: ERENHELDERNT
Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2021
HE20215
12A31HLEFE
HEGERYRITEERHY
Name of members Audit Committee
REES BZEEY
Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Chairman) BRI (FEBRLZEEEE) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RIEBRE 2/2
Mr. Tse Yat Hong HERESEE 2/2
Remuneration Committee NEEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms — Z<AB] B 722020510858 28R L ™ #R 81 553 2516 B 1L F B
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules on 5 October HE & WU EEIPEBEEE FMES TN TER
2020. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish ~ BHABIFT MG EE R Kk S E 09 Bl BUR R 228 MU K
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for our Directors  FHIEEEA ZHHREEEZ -

and senior management and make recommendations on employee benefit

arrangement.

During the year and as at the date of publication of this report, the FRARAREFZELL  FHNEETEE=ZLME H
 Remuneration Committee consists of three members, two of whom are qﬂﬁ%?%ﬁﬁ?lﬁﬁﬁ%?"E%ﬁé%?ﬁ'fbﬁ?ﬁi (FHNZE
~indey EEIE) RIS EN2022F3825AFHE B AEEE

riﬁﬁmamn@mmmW5qﬂil.iﬁ$%iwvmﬁﬁﬁxaiﬁh




During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review the remuneration structure of the Directors and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management for 2021.
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The attendance of each member is as follows: EMENEFELRHUWT
Number of meetings
attended/Number of
meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2021
#HE20215
128318 LLFE
HEEERY ETEERY
Name of members Remuneration Committee
REHH HNEE S
Mr. Zhang Huagiao (Chairman) RICBLEE GNZE T /E) 11
Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned on 25 March 2022) BEBRE (7R202243525H BHE) 11
Mr. Tse Yat Hong BREAZR ST 4 71

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 5
October 2020. The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. Lam (being
the chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Zhang Huagiao and Mr.
Chung Chong Sun.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to review the structure and composition of the Board and its
committees, made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors and assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

HE2021F N3 HIEFE  REEEGHET g%
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The attendance of each member is as follows: ERENEEDERUT !
Number of meetings
attended/Number of
meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2021
HE2021F
128318 LLEE
HEZERY ETEERY
Name of members Nomination Committee
REHH REEES
Mr. Lam Ting Keung MERNLE FEERZEZF/E) 1/1

(Nomination Committee Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RIEBARE /1
Mr. Chung Chong Sun Al E /1

Nomination policy

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying
candidates for directorship, including recommendations from Board members,
management, and professional search firms. In addition, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates for directorship properly submitted
by the Shareholders. The evaluation of candidates for directorship by the
Nomination Committee may include, without limitation, review of resume
and job history, personal interviews, verification of professional and personal
references and performance of background checks. The Board will consider
the recommendations of the Nomination Committee and is responsible
for designating the candidates for directorship to be considered by the
'_Sharehol_ders for their eIection at the general meeting of the Company, or
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The Nomination Committee should consider the following qualifications as a
minimum to be required for a candidate in recommending to the Board to be
a potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

- the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

- proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the
ability to exercise sound business judgment;

- skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

- the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company's success;

- an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required for
a member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy
necessary to diligently carry out those responsibilities;

- independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as required under
the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is in conformity
with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
The directors prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis,
International Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted and the
appropriate accounting policies have been consistently used and applied.
The Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's
performance in the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant
to code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The work scope and reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young, the
Company'’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 110 to 115 of this report.
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Risk management and internal control system

The Board has established a comprehensive risk management and internal
control system, which consist of an organization framework, as well as
policies, procedures and risk management methods that the Board considers
to be appropriate for our business operations. The system is designed to
allow us to identify, report and address those risk and incidents that may
significantly affect our performance or otherwise expose us to significant
losses, liability or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The risk management system comprises the formulation and implantation
of a set of policies and procedures relating to relevant risk areas, including
compliance with laws and regulations, construction quality, work safety and
environmental matters. We are constantly monitoring the effectiveness of our
risk management system. The Board oversees the implementation of the risk
management and internal control measures and is responsible with reviewing
the effectiveness of such system. The Board is responsible for approving
our business and investment plans, adjusting the risk management plans
and strategies in response to risks identified in our business operations. The
internal control system covers various aspects of the operations, including
information system control, procurement and accounts payable control, cash
management, compensation management and financial reporting control.
The Company has an internal audit function which has also been carried out
under the leadership of the Board and the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has implemented
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. In particular, the Group:

- has conducted its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012;

- has established its own disclosure obligation procedures, which set
out the procedures and controls for the assessment of potential inside
information and the handling and dissemination of inside information.
The procedures have been communicated to the senior management
and staff of the Company, and their implementation was monitored by
the Company; and

- has made broad, non-exclusive disclosure of information to the public
through channels such as financial reports, public announcements and
its website.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Audit Committee and the executive Directors,
and will be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the
Board. During the year ended 31 December 2021, these systems covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
were reviewed and considered effective and adequate.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid or payable to
Ernst and Young in respect of its audit services and non-audit services was
approximately RMB5.2 million and HK$68,000, respectively. The non-audit
services in 2021 consisted of taxation consulting services.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted full disclosure of remunerations of Directors
with disclosure in note 8 to the financial statements. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and
performance of the Group.

The remuneration of the members of senior management by bands in 2021 is
set out below:

Remuneration bands
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chiu Ngam confirmed
that for the year ended 31 December 2021, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr. Chiu is set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Director and senior management” on page 75
of this report.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles, one or more Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands for Shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a new resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures
set out in the above paragraph heading “Convening an extraordinary general
meeting”.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time make enquiries to the Board in writing to the
Board or its company secretary at the principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 6701-02, 67/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong or by email at irhk@radiance.com.cn or directly by raising
questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's
website.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development. An analysis of the Group's
revenue and operating results for the year ended 31 December 2021 by its
principal activities is set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group on page 123 to 151 in this report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the "Chairman’s Statement” section of this report and the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group on
page 116 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion on the Group's future
business development during the year are set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 22 to 27 and pages 30 to 68, respectively, of this report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 30
to 68 of this report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2021are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements on page 275 in this
report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) risks related to the
performance of the economic conditions in the PRC and the PRC property
markets; (i) uncertainty as to identifying desirable locations or acquiring
land use rights for future property development on favorable terms; (iii)
uncertainty as to obtaining sufficient funding for land acquisitions and future
developments and capital resources may not be available on favorable terms;
(iv) risks related to the fluctuation of profitability of property projects; (v)
risks related to the government policies and regulations regarding the PRC
property industry; and (vi) risks related to the increasing raw materials price
and labor costs.

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Environmental policies and performance

Itis the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable
and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives to minimise
its environmental impact and comply with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations. The measures it takes to ensure its compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations include: (i) strictly selecting
construction contractors and supervising the process of construction; (ii)
applying for review by the relevant government authorities in a timely manner
after the project is completed; and (iii) actively adopting environmentally
friendly equipment and designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with
respect to environmental protection and make energy conservation and
emission reduction as primary considerations when designing its property
projects. None of the Group's properties had received any material fines or
penalties associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The 2021 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Group shall be published separately.

Relationship with Employees

The Group believes high-quality employees who value its corporate culture
are essential elements to promote its sustainable growth. The Group
intends to attract and retain skilled and talented employees from reputable
universities of PRC through various initiatives, including creative trainee
programs, competitive compensation packages and effective incentive
system. To motivate, attract and retain employees, the Company has adopted
the Share Option Scheme. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the section headed “Director’s report — Share Option Scheme”.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of
the Group, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Employees”.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group's businesses. It
reinforces business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing communication
in a proactive and effective manner. For further details regarding the Group's
major suppliers, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Major
Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers satisfaction with services and products has a profound effect
on the profitability. The Group’s dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with its customers and potential customers to uncover
and create customer needs and help customers make informed decisions.
Identification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping the market trend
are critical for the Group to timely adjust our operating strategies to fit the
market requirement. For details regarding the Group’s major customers,
please refer to the sections headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and
Suppliers”.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with the Shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group's subsidiaries are
incorporated in the BVI, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's operations are
mainly carried out by the Group's subsidiaries in China while the Group also
has a corporate and administrative office in Hong Kong.

Its establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the BVI, the PRC and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, the BVI, the PRC and Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 of HKO0.16 dollars (equivalent to RMBO0.13) per ordinary
share (to be distributed out of the Company’s share premium account) (the
“2021 Proposed Final Dividend") in the form of cash. The 2021 Proposed Final
Dividend shall be declared and payable in Hong Kong dollars.

Based on the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this report, the 2021 Proposed Final Dividend amounted to approximately
RMB525,879,510.

The 2021 Proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the 2022 AGM to be held on 20 May 2022 and is expected to
be paid on or around 23 September 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has 4,045,227,000 Shares in
issue.
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SENIOR NOTES, CORPORATE BONDS AND ABS
PROGRAM

Details of senior notes of the Company during the year are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

In June 2021, Radiance Group Co., Ltd* (&BEBRNDAERAT), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has issued the “First
Tranche of 2021 Corporate Bonds” to qualified professional investors, with a
principal amount of RMB1.35 billion at a coupon rate of 6.95%.

In July 2021, Radiance Group Co., Ltd* (EEEBRD B RAF), an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has issued the “Second
Tranche of 2021 Corporate Bonds” to qualified professional investors, with an
aggregate principal amount of RMB0.85 billion at a coupon rate of 6.95%.

In July 2021, Radiance Group Co., Ltd* (E¥EEB RN B RAF), an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has issued established “SWS
MU - Radiance Commercial Properties Asset-backed Securities Program” and
issued Radiance Commercial Properties Asset-Backed Securities to qualified
investors, the total issue size of the ABS Program was RMB1.75 billion. The ABS
are classified into three tranches according to its risks, earnings and duration,
which were Senior A ABS, Senior B ABS and Subordinated ABS, at a coupon
rate of 6%, 6.5% and no fixed coupon rate respectively.

In September 2021, Radiance Group Co., Ltd* (EFEEBE RN AERAT), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has issued established
“CICC - Radiance - Beijing Radiance Plaza Asset-backed Securities Program”
and issued Beijing Radiance Plaza Asset-Backed Securities to qualified
investors, the total issue size of the ABS Program was RMB3.8 billion. The ABS
are classified into three tranches according to its risks, earnings and duration,
which were Senior A ABS, Senior B ABS and Subordinated ABS, at a coupon
rate of 4.75%, 5.8% and no fixed coupon rate respectively.

In September 2021, the Company issued senior green notes due March 2024
with an aggregate principal amount of US$300 million bearing interest at a
rate of 7.8% per annum.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on pages 244 and pages
276 to 277 of this report. In respect of Company, the amount of reserves
available for distribution under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands as
at 31 December 2021 was RMB1,052.9 million.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

2021 Notes

Between 1 January 2021 to 5 October 2021, Radiance Capital, purchased the
2021 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$53,500,000 in the open
market.

Between 6 October 2021 to 13 October 2021, Radiance Capital purchased the
2021 Notes in principal amount of US$19,350,000 in the open market.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Radiance Capital has purchased
the 2021 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$72,850,000 (the
“Repurchased 2021 Notes”) in the open market, representing approximately
29.14% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2021 Notes originally issued.

On 15 October 2021, an aggregate principal amount of US$70,000,000 of the
Repurchased 2021 Notes have been cancelled. On 29 October 2021, Radiance
Capital redeemed the 2021 Notes in full at their outstanding principal amount
of US$180,000,000 together with interest accrued to the maturity date. Upon
redemption of the outstanding 2021 Notes, all the redeemed 2021 Notes have
been cancelled.

2022 Notes

Between 1 January 2021 to 5 October 2021, Radiance Capital purchased the
2022 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$3,200,000 in the open
market.

On 6 October 2021, Radiance Capital purchased the 2022 Notes in principal
amount of US$18,200,000 in the open market.

Between 7 October 2021 to 21 October 2021, Radiance Capital purchased the
2022 Notes in principal amount of US$3,700,000 in the open market.

Between 22 October 2021 to 31 December 2021, Radiance Capital purchased
the 2022 Notes in principal amount of US$117,488,000 in the open market.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Radiance Capital has purchased
the 2022 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$142,588,000 (the
“Repurchased 2022 Notes") in the open market, representing approximately
47.53% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Notes originally issued.

As at the 31 December 2021, no principal amount of the Repurchased 2022
Notes has been cancelled, and the aggregate principal amount of the 2022
Notes which remained outstanding was US$$300,000,000, representing 100%
of the initial aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Notes.
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2023 Notes

On 13 December 2021, Radiance Capital purchased the 2023 Notes in an
aggregate principal amount of US$10,600,000 in the open market.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Radiance Capital has purchased
the 2023 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$10,600,000 (the
“Repurchased 2023 Notes”) in the open market, representing approximately
4.24% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes originally issued.

As at the 31 December 2021, no principal amount of the Repurchased 2023
Notes has been cancelled, and the aggregate principal amount of the 2023
Notes which remained outstanding was US$$250,000,000, representing 100%
of the initial aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company and its subsidiaries did not
purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB14.1 million (2020: RMB38.6 million).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the state
of the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 116 to 277 in this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report were:
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Name of director Position ExH4 BR i1
Mr. Lam Ting Keung Executive Director MER I E HITES
Mr. Lam Yu Executive Director MF L HITES
Mr. Chen Chaorong (resigned  Executive Director FREAE L4 HiTES
on 25 March 2022) (F220224F3/5 25 H FE1E)
Mr. Xu Xiaodong (appointed  Executive Director RINERE HiTES
on 25 March 2022) (7420224F3 /5 25 H Z1F)
Mr. Huang Junquan Executive Director =EBR&E HITES
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao Independent non-executive Director RICKERE BIYIERITES
Mr. Tse Yat Hong Independent non-executive Director HHERESLE BIUIERTES
Mr. Chung Chong Sun Independent non-executive Director BRI ST BIUERTES

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.
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The Company at the general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office. Accordingly, Mr. Lam Ting Keung, Mr. Huang Junquan and Mr.
Chung Chong Sun shall retire from office by rotation at the 2022 AGM and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles, Mr. Xu Xiaodong who was
appointed as executive Director on 25 March 2022, shall hold office only until
the Annual General Meeting, being the next following general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company and each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of 3 years. None of the
Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at the 2022 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. There
is no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might likely compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Lam, being the executive Director and the Controlling
Shareholder, Ms. Lam, Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine, all being
the Controlling Shareholders, has confirmed to the Company that, since the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2021 he/she/it has complied with the
Deed of Non-competition dated 13 October 2020 (the “Undertakings”) as
disclosed in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of
compliance and the confirmation provided by the Controlling Shareholders
as part of the annual review process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has
received the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders regarding
the Undertakings; (ii) there was no competing business reported by the
Controlling Shareholders; and (iii) there was no particular situation rendering
the full compliance of the Undertakings being questionable, the independent
non-executive Directors are of the view that the Undertakings have been
complied with and been enforced by the Company in accordance with the
terms.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Share Option Scheme

1)

2)

3)

4)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph (2) below) had or may have
made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company
with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their performance
efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of our Group.

Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe
for such number of new Shares as the Board may determine at an
exercise price determined in accordance with paragraph (6) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and
such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will
contribute or have contributed to our Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue
on Listing Date, and such 10% limit represents 400,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 9.89% of the total Shares in issue as at the
date of this report.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.
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5)

6)

7)

Acceptance and exercise of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance in favor of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company on
or before the relevant acceptance date.

The exercise period of any share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but such period must not exceed ten years from the date
of grant of the relevant share option. There is no minimum period
specified by the Share Option Scheme, for which the option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, but must be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)  the nominal value of a Share.

The duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 4 October
2030, i.e. for the period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which no further
options shall be granted, but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options granted
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the rules of the Share Option Scheme. As at the
date of the report, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 8 years and 6 months.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Statutory and general information — D. Share Option
scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of
this report, no option has been granted by the Company pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme.

5)

6)

7)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERESITHABR AT o H B %
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING B RYBZ (D ~ HHRARR (D BB REE IR == B
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR =}

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors 2021128310 EERA AT RSTHRAEREAT
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and ~ S E K EE (& B85 R EEE K HIEXVER) IR MK ~ *E
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning  BERR S R BB P H A BREZ S M IPERAIFEIEE

of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be entered in the register kept ~ SER AR TEENE DEHHY/E¢E?F@+TH‘J%D§¢QTEZ
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise — B FRAVER R KA T ¢

required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code, are set out below:

Interests in shares of the Company RAEAB RPN E LS
Approximate
Name of Director/ Number of Shares or percentage of
Chief Executive Nature of Interest underlying Shares shareholding
15 5
BEX BRETHABHA EHEEE HEARH B B4R B o LE
Mr. Lam Interest in controlled corporations et 3,400,000,000 84.05%
Mo E R EE R e
Notes: I -
(1) Pursuant to Division 7 of Part XV of the SFO, 3,400,000,000 Shares held by Mr. (1) RIBEZHFRPERHAEXVHBHE/ 2B MEERFEHN
Lam are deemed corporate interests through Radiance Group Holdings and 3,400,000,00002 &R BB TRERZERKBERFENA
Glowing Shine. Bl o

Interests in shares/debentures of associated corporations of R ZAAT BB EEIRGD EREFNEDR
the Company

Approximate

Number of shares/ percentage in

Amount of relevant shares/

Name of Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest debentures debentures

ihiE =) {LAERAR (R

BEENY 1R B E TR EmEE BREESEE BAEIEHFOEST

Mr. Lam Radiance Group Holdings Beneficial owner 6,172,150 sharesh& 64.97%
ML SIEEETER BmEA A

Lam Yu Radiance Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner USD20,000,0003E 75 2.5%
HF EREARERRAR BmEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and & EXFriFEE N 1R2021FE 128318 B EE R A AT
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the  RE{THABRA A B EBE LB RMD - BRARM &
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated  EHEFZR#EE EE LR IRIEE S RBEKRAIE3I2GEE
corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352  FHIESEMA RRFZETAI BT AR B KRB FrBE
of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  fAl#EZEE K& ©

pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2021, as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying Shares:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EROHRS

FERREEMALRELQE KRG RAEMH
RIDHIERmRRE

7R2020F 128310 » LA R B FRED > AR B R IBE H KR
BB E336KBREENELMAALHE UWTAL (ESH
EATRSITHRAERIN PRIRM BRI RMD P HEA 5%
DRy

Number of Shares
directly or indirectly

Approximate
percentage of Shares

Name of substantial shareholder held in issue
Bz Mz HBE8T

TERRATE HENRGH®E R EBABT DL
Radiance Group Holdings 3,400,000,000 84.05%
TEERER
Glowing Shine 3,400,000,000 84.05%
=)

Note: M5E :

(1) Radiance Group Holdings is owned as to 64.97% and 35.03% by Mr. Lam and Ms. (1) SBEBPZERBMEERML T B HEE64.97%K%35.03%1

Lam, respectively.

) Radiance Group Holdings is the beneficial owner of all the issued shares in
Glowing Shine and, therefore, Radiance Group Holdings is deemed, or taken to
be interested in the Shares owned by Glowing Shine for the purpose of the SFO.

(3) Mr. Lam is the sole director of Radiance Group Holdings and Glowing Shine.
By virtue of their respective ownership of shares in Radiance Group Holdings,
each of Mr. Lam and Ms. Lam is deemed or taken to be interested in the Shares
owned by Glowing Shine for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had not
been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares that were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements and the continuing connected transactions disclosed in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
his connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, during the
year ended 31 December 2021, there was no other contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor other contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTEREST

As notified by the Company’s compliance advisor, Maxa Capital Limited (the
“Compliance Advisor”), except for the compliance adviser agreement entered
into between the Company and the Compliance Advisor dated 29 October
2020, neither the Compliance Advisor nor its directors, employees or close
associates had any interests in relation to the Company, which is required to
be notified to the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue attributable to the five
largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier amounted to approximately 17.7% of the Group's
total purchases and the Group five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 46.4% of the Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company's issued
Shares, had an interest in the share capital of any of the fivelargest suppliers
and customers.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the following is the continuing connection
transaction, as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules entered into by
the Company which is subject to reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement. Save as disclosed below and in the Prospectus, the Company did
not enter into any additional connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction during the year ended 31 December 2021 which is required to be
disclosed in this report.

Property Management Services

On 13 October 2020, the Company entered into a property management
related services framework agreement (the “Property Management Related
Services Framework Agreement”) with Radiance Lifestyle Holdings Limited
("Radiance Lifestyle Holdings"), pursuant to which we agreed to engage
Radiance Lifestyle Holdings and/or its subsidiaries to provide property
management and related services to our Group, including but not limited to
(i) management services for unsold units and unsold car parking spaces; (ii)
pre-delivery management and value-added services which primarily include
(a) planning and design consultancy; (b) inspection, cleaning and repair of
units; (c) site security; and (d) ancillary facilities management services; and (iii)
sales management services which primarily include property management
of display units, and off- and on-site sales offices (the “"Property Management
Related Services”). The Property Management Related Services Framework
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total amount of service fee
payable by the Company to Radiance Lifestyle Holdings and/or its subsidiaries
for the Property Management Related Services amounted to RMB264
million, which is within the annual cap of RMB301 million as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The maximum transaction amounts under the Property Management Related
Services Framework Agreement for the years ending 31 December 2022 shall
not exceed RMB401 million.

Radiance Lifestyle Holdings is wholly owned by Radiance Group Holdings,
which is in turn owned as to 64.97% by Mr. Lam and 35.03% by Ms. Lam.
Radiance Lifestyle Holdings is therefore a connected person of our Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction under
the Property Management Related Services Framework Agreement will
constitute a continuing connected transaction for our Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As each of the applicable percentage ratios (except for the profit ratio) under
the Listing Rules in respect of the highest annual cap in relation to the
Property Management Related Services Framework Agreement is expected
to be over 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, such transaction will
constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company that are
exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement but
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the relevant agreements governing the transaction on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst and Young, the
auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on the continuing connected
transactions and has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transaction mentioned above (i) has not been approved by the
Board; (ii) was not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iii) has exceeded the
annual cap.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transaction” above, certain of these transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are not required to be disclosed in this
report under the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, under which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Specific performance of controlling shareholders under Rule
13.18 of the Listing Rules

On 25 May 2021, the Company as borrower accepted a facility letter issued
by Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender, pursuant to which a loan facility of not
more than US$20,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollar) was made
available to the Company. The facility was available for drawdown within three
months from 25 May 2021 (subject to fulfilment of the conditions set out in
the facility letter) and the maturity date of the loan under the facility letter
was 12 months from the date of drawdown. The facility letter contains, among
others, the following specific performance obligations on the controlling
shareholders:

(i) Mr. Lam shall remain as the chairman of the Board and the executive
director; and

(if) Mr. Lam and Ms. Lam collectively own at least 70% of the, direct or
indirect, beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of,
and carrying at least 30% of the voting rights in, the Company, free
from any security.

On 7 June 2021, US$20,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollar) was
drawn down by the Company and the principal amount of HK$155,180,000 of
such loan remained outstanding as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have any other disclosure
obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of director and senior
management” in this report, the Company is not aware of any change in
any of the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) since the last published interim
report and up to the date of this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange has granted the Company a public float waiver under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules to accept a lower public float percentage
of the total issued share capital of 15.95%. Details of the waiver is set out in
the section headed “"Waivers from Strict Compliance with the Listing Rules —
Waiver in relation to Public Float” of the Prospectus.

As at the date of this report, based on information that was public available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the public float
waiver.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and
complied with all applicable the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year under review.
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out
in the "Corporate Governance Report” section of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out in the section headed “Financial summary” on
pages 278 to 279 of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts,
except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which provides appropriate cover for the
Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and remained in force as at the date of this report
for the benefit of the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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2022 AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2022 AGM will be convened and held on Friday, 20 May 2022. A notice
convening the 2022 AGM will be published on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to the Shareholders in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For
the purposes of determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak
and vote at the 2022 AGM and the Shareholders' entitlement to the 2021
Proposed Final Dividend, the Register of Members will be closed during the
periods described below:

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2022 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 17 May 2022 to Friday,
20 May 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the
Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16 May 2022.

For determining the entitlement to the 2021 Proposed Final
Dividend

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 2 June 2022 to
Monday, 6 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of the Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the 2021 Proposed Final
Dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor since the Listing Date. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the 2022 AGM. Ernst &
Young, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2022 AGM.

By order of the Board

Lam Ting Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIZHEMER S

To the shareholders of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Radiance Holdings
(Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 116 to 277, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MBEEZEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B LA RS

FHEEZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERPNARERREREE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEGE

The Group owned investment properties in Mainland China which
were measured at fair value and their aggregate carrying amount was
approximately RMB13,939,800,000 as at 31 December 2021, including
completed investment properties and investment properties under
construction.
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The Group engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally qualified
valuer, to perform the valuations of these properties as at 31
December 2021. Significant judgement was required to determine
the fair values of the investment properties, which reflected market
conditions as at the end of the reporting period. The fair value of
completed commercial properties was determined using the income
approach by taking into account the rental income of the properties
derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine the fair
value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. The fair value of commercial
properties under construction was determined using the cost method,
which has taken into account the market value of land use right plus
the construction cost incurred so far and applied appropriate gross
margin. Changes in these assumptions would have significant effects
on the valuation of investment properties. Accordingly, the valuation
of investment properties was identified as a key audit matter.
BEEECZREBUSFESSREEMMPERTEETERES
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We have assessed and evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of management in the valuation of
investment properties.

BT KTEEEEETREYEGERNHREIES 2K
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We have evaluated the competency, independence and objectivity of
the external valuer. We obtained an understanding of the valuation
approach and key assumptions used by the external valuer.
ELET A EMEMNEN - BIMEREERE - EEE 7 #I
A EMERANGER EREIERR-

We have assessed the validity of the property related data used as
inputs for the valuations and involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology and the underlying
assumptions. We have evaluated the source data used in the valuation
by benchmarking them to relevant market information on a sampling
basis.
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We have assessed the disclosures related to the valuation of
investment properties in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
ESE2TRTEAEINRT TGS BRERNEHEALE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

RREZEE

FHEEZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBRPNMAREMBEZER

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REYEEGE (B

The accounting policies and disclosures of the investment properties
were included in note 2.4, note 3 and note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CEMENGA BRI EH N AT HERRMET24  WHeE3 &
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Provision for land appreciation tax

THIEERREE

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China focusing on
the development of residential properties and the development,
operation and management of commercial and mixed-use properties.
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") in mainland China was one of the
main components of the Group's taxation charge. LAT is levied on
the sale of properties at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
based on the appreciation of land value. As at 31 December 2021,
the management of the Group estimated the provision for LAT based
on their understanding and interpretation of the relevant tax rules
and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties less total
deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use
rights, property development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. Provision for LAT in mainland China is significant to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and involved
significant management’s judgement and interpretation of the
relevant tax provisions. Accordingly, provision for LAT was identified as
a key audit matter.
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The accounting policies and disclosures of the provision for land
appreciation tax were included in note 2.4, note 3 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
THUEEREHEN S S B R BEHN GRS B IRRMIE2.4 I
sE3 K fisE100

N2 2@l Em ERAT 2021558

We have assessed and evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of management in the calculation of
the provision for land appreciation tax.

BT KTEEEEEHAE I MIZER B FBRARER 2
RETREBITHBEIE

We have involved internal tax specialists to assist us to perform a
review on the LAT position, including the review of the estimates and
assumptions used by the Group and the evaluation of tax exposure
based on communications with the relevant tax authorities and
applying our knowledge and experience. We have also recalculated
the tax computation and compared our calculations with the amounts
recorded by the Group.
EECEENBMBER G ESH T MIBERRETER
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We have assessed the disclosures related to the provision for land
appreciation tax in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information_of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the-consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ralEmkEMEZEWER
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12831HILEEE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET ARBEF T
REVENUE 1§ 5 40,025,826 34,875,174
Cost of sales THE A (32,278,375) (27,162,266)
Gross profit EF 7,747,451 7,712,908
Other income and gains H U A B Wz 5 183,846 436,406
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHES (1,449,318) (1,152,834)
Administrative expenses THREX (1,195,415) (1,196,128)
Finance income ERT PN 183,478 95,302
Finance costs B FE R A 7 (349,885) (525,246)
Other expenses HhpEsz (44,875) (80,592)
Fair value gains on investment properties KREMEN LN FEW T 14 656,986 437,006
Fair value losses on financial assets at BAFESTAEGN
fair value through profit or loss TRHEEN QAT ERIE (6,085) (77)
Share of profits and losses of: FE1L T A B RA A58 -
Joint ventures BEhE 17 98,366 992,533
Associates LN 18 641,082 (182,519)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI AT 6 6,465,631 6,536,759
Income tax expense FRiEMmEs 10 (2,771,936) (2,717,686)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FAiEF 3,693,695 3,819,073
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAHMZEWA  NRRE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX = =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAZEBALLEE
THE YEAR 3,693,695 3,819,073
Attributable to: DUF B IERE L :
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ=DN 3,274,774 3,127,526
Non-controlling interests JEEER = 418,921 691,547
3,693,695 3,819,073
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREEEEFEARM
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT & &7
Basic and diluted earnings per share SREAREERT RMBO.81 yuan RMBO0.89 yuan
12 AR¥0.817T AR #0897

N6 @EER Em) BRAT 2021FER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIRRR

31 December 2021
20215128318

2021 2020
20214 20205
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTT AREBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE 13 518,174 354,532
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15 778,769 121,185
Investment properties KEYE 14 13,939,800 10,952,600
Intangible assets ﬁﬁ:ﬁ% 16 18,773 17,609
Investments in joint ventures REEtENKE 17 3,068,915 2,461,115
Investments in associates REEARNEE 18 5,395,080 4911,875
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABREN
profit or loss TREE 26 105,519 110,300
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE E 19 2,944,990 2,884,290
Other non-current assets HIEREFEE 25 1,402,644 1,402,644
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 28,172,664 23,216,150
CURRENT ASSETS BB E
Properties under development Ealtdasky/ES 20 106,108,703 103,990,664
Completed properties held for sale FEHRENBITYE 21 12,246,662 12,450,866
Trade receivables B 5 EIE 22 53,467 24,191
Contract cost assets SR EEE 23 945,195 771,064
Due from related parties JFE Ll 78 B 5 TR 3B 42 8,639,706 7,314,208
Prepayments, other receivables and FEAT IR ~ MR NGRIE K
other assets Hth&EE 24 14,683,828 10,455,096
Tax recoverable BIU B 18 990,244 814,489
Financial assets at fair value through BATFESABRN
profit or loss TREE 26 78,357 33,808
Restricted cash TREIRE 7,656,569 5,420,396
Pledged deposits BIEREM 850,000 438,433
Cash and cash equivalents IRITHERRIRE 11,221,917 20,732,123
Total current assets MENEERE 163,474,648 162,445,338
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBIRRR

31 December 2021
20215128318

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREF ARETF T
CURRENT LIABILITIES REIEE
Trade payables BN IE 28 13,603,572 12,922,569
Other payables and accruals HihERIBERESE R 29 2,736,127 2,890,303
Contract liabilities HHEE 30 72,460,294 69,086,961
Due to related parties &1 R B 75 FI8 42 4,978,342 4,604,199
Tax payable FE(TIRIE 10 4,864,788 3,783,703
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HEIRIT R EMERR 31 9,504,033 9,734,431
Proceeds from asset-backed securities NEERFESESD
Frig8718 32 65,705 770,798
Senior notes BIRER 33 2,650,016 1,745,743
Corporate bonds NEVES 34 4,572,592 7,056,468
Lease liabilities within one year —FEANNEEERE 15 11,618 15,637
Total current liabilities MEIE(ELEEE 115,447,087 112,610,812
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEESRE 48,027,561 49,834,526
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BELERRBAG 76,200,225 73,050,676
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREAE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings stEIRTT R EMMER 31 26,659,490 25,868,005
Proceeds from asset-backed securities NEERFESESN
Fri8 7 IB 32 5,253,870 2,690,573
Senior notes BIRER 33 1,891,050 3,549,874
Corporate bonds NEES 34 2,197,450 2,358,100
Lease liabilities HESE 15 5,333 7,402
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEAE 19 2,621,327 2,464,316
Total non-current liabilities JERB AR 38,628,520 36,938,270
Net assets BEZEE 37,571,705 36,112,406
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BATEE ABE#ED
Share capital &7 35 35,095 35,095
Reserves HE 36 23,602,105 21,527,316
23,637,200 21,562,411
Non-controlling interests JEIE G R o 13,934,505 14,549,995
Total equity iR 37,571,705 36,112,406

Mr. Lam Ting Keung
MERTE
Director

EBEF

N8  wmeER (=M BRAS 2021FER

Mr. Xu Xiaodong
mINERE

Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MEEDEER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12B31HIEEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRARER AR
Statutory Asset Non-
Share Share Capital surplus  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
HERE  BEEf
kx  RfEE  EXHE 1 e REEN @it EREE 0 REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR ARBTn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR%Tn
Note 35 Note 36@@  Note 36(b) Note 36(c) Note 36(d)
Wakss  MiEse@  MEse)  MiEslo  MiE36()
Asat 1 January 2020 120201818 = = (144926) 1,744,181 5287 15225700 16830242 4548960 21,379,202
Profit for the year Fiiaf - - - - - 312752 3,127,526 691,547 3819073
Other comprehensive income for the year  EREMEEWA - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER2ERALE - - - - - 30275 3,127,526 691,547 3819073
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserves 5HEEE R - - - 344,544 - (344,544) S S S
Issuance of new shares ELE 35095 2297175 = = = - 2332270 - 233210
Acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ WRBEFE IR KER - - (37,315) - - - (37,315) (91,554) (128869)
Capital contribution by the non-controlling i BA B JFERREHE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - 16,788 - - - 16,788 9,401,042 9,417,830
Dividends and distributions BRERDK > s s = 5 (707,100 (707,100 - (707,100
As at 31 December 2020 and 20208128318 R2021F1818
1 January 2021 35,095 2,297,175* (165,453)  2,088,725* 5287 17,301,582" 21,562,411 14,549,995 36,112,406
Profit for the year ERER = = - = - 3274774 3214774 418921 3,693,695
Other comprehensive income for the year  EREMZEWA - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERZERALE - - - - - 3274774 3274774 418921 3,693,695
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserves st 12 % e BERE & - - - 428,855 - (428,855) = = =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  WRBEFE IR KER - - (107,762) - - - (107,762)  (2,598,245)  (2,705,007)
Capital contribution by the non-controlling i BARJEERREHE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 2225438  2,225438
Capital reductions from the non-controlling M BABFERRKREHE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - (12) - - - (12) (650,743) (650,755)
Dividends declared to the non-controlling  EIMBARFFERKRERKE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (10,861) (10,861)
Dividends and distributions BRERDK - (1,092.211) - - - - (1,002211) - (1,092211)
At 31 December 2021 1015128318 35005 1204964% (273,227 2517,580° 5287% 20,147501 23637200 13934505 37,571,705

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *
RMB23,602,105,000 (2020: RMB21,527,316,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

ZEREROEGRSUBRARPIPNREHEARE
23,602,105,0007 (20204 : AR#21,527,316,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12831HIEFE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET ARBEF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHERERE
Profit before tax AR AT A 6,465,631 6,536,759
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation of items of property, ME-BERLZLHBEEINE
plant and equipment 6,13 44,136 44,778
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESERE 6,15(a) 36,408 26,702
Amortisation of intangible assets LS E 6,16 3,835 3,260
Impairment losses recognised for BAEE P E SN
properties under development BERBE 6,20 410,425 155,979
Impairment losses recognised for FEHEBBTYE
completed properties held for sale SRBRERE 1 6,21 298,081 147,203
Impairment losses recognised for THEERDIRERSE
financial assets 6,22,24 5,699 (572)
Exchange gain E R U T (100,735) (258,649)
Fair value losses from financial assets at BAFESABRN
fair value through profit or loss THEENATEBEE 6,085 77
Gain on derecognition of fair value BIEERIRAFESTA
through profit or loss B (14,327) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 5,39 (51,615) (21,502)
Remeasurement gain on investment in an REZHZEHAFKER
associate held before business combination —EBEATREN
EstElRa 5 - (35,052)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—B#E AN E 5 = (51,100)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures DMEEERE RN REBE 17 (98,366) (992,533)
Share of profits and losses of associates DMEBE AT B KREE 18 (641,082) 182,519
Fair value gains on investment properties KEYEN A TFERT 14 (656,986) (437,006)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWE -BEREE
plant and equipment BEERZFEEBE, () 116 (167)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFEHAEEEN R (6) =
Finance costs B # B A 7 349,885 525,246
Finance income BFEUTA (183,478) (95,302)
Increase in properties under development and HERMERFTEHE
completed properties held for sale B T LM (3,120,654) (19,128,872)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and FE A FRIE e EL At FE U R IE
other receivables (&) R (1,918,150) 1,909,370
Increase in restricted cash 52 PRl 2R = 38 N (1,952,584) (1,657,830)
Increase in pledged deposits BIE R FE R 0 167,842 (17,534)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables BS W aRIE (1Em) R (29,830) 1,835
Increase in contract cost assets BHIRAEEEN (198,400) (289,308)
Increase in trade and bills payables B8 5 FE (T T8 R FE {5 SR 4R 18 1D 944,408 4,515,034
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due & LK A Bt 7 =3B
from related parties B, (1) 14,811 (26,415)
Increase in other payables and accruals LA P (S R e FE 5
BAEM 1,503,429 1,844,634
Increase in contract liabilities SHaEEMN 4,551,897 11,921,902
Increase in amounts due to related parties JFE 15 RE Bét 7 s IE 1 11,568 8,299
Cash generated from operations REFRSRE 5,848,043 4,811,755
Interest received BEUYF 2 183,478 95,302
Tax paid BRE (3,264,802) (2,257,143)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEEMMBRERETREE 2,766,719 2,649,914

120 &1l (EE) SRAR 2021EE8



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12B31HIEEFE

2020
20204
Notes RMB'000
M EE AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBRESRERE
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR 39 (15,325) (71,649)
Purchases of items of property, BEME -BERKHEE
plant and equipment (207,610) (28,171)
Purchase of intangible assets HERTEE (4,999) (2,624)
Purchase of right-of-use assets EETREEE (654,850) =
Increase in investment properties KEYEEM (79,532) (9,394)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U RSP B8~ B - (337,129)
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through W BB1%Z AT E st ABEH
profit or loss ETMEE (303,000) (31,097)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAFESABEN
through profit or loss ETHMEE 271,474 202,602
Investments in joint ventures and associates REgrERBEATDNKE (958,120) (2,965,533)
Dividends received from joint ventures WESESTEMNKE = 281,330
Advances to related parties EREEE S EH PR 42 (4,925,608) (5,790,402)
Receipt of advances to related parties U ER 15 B B 5 E RO B =R 42 3,585,299 6,317,694
Disposal of items of property, HEME BEKRREER
plant and equipment 1,158 3,351
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZHFAREMERE (3,291,113) (2/431,022)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEBRSRERE
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BITEBLEEAERIE 33 1,916,339 3,811,809
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BT NBESPIEHIE 34 2,196,580 2,355,919
Repayment of proceeds from issue BEBITABBESMEMIE
of corporate bonds 34 (4,733,145) (2,264,000)
Repayment of proceeds from issue of senior notes B2 #ITE L EEDN
FriS I8 33 (2,579,782) =
Capital contribution from non-controlling MB AT IEIERREEE
shareholders of the subsidiaries 1,500,166 8,974,830
Interest paid BAFHE (3,699,378) (3,790,743)
Advances from related parties B S IR AR 42 3,464,716 2,375,210
Repayment of advances from related parties EER B IR ER 42 (3,102,141) (2,691,209)
Proceeds from asset-backed securities BEERIFBSESNAENE 5,300,000 =
Repayment of proceeds from BEBERFESMENIE
asset-backed securities (3,461,711) (1,125,593)
Increase in pledged deposits BRI ERIE M 27 (635,870) (2,257)
Increase in restricted cash TR &HIIR 1N (315,248) =
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and HEIRIT R EMMERR
other borrowings P18 IE 24,548,502 28,327,547
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BE BRIT R EMMER
other borrowings (23,907,308) (26,044,008)
Payment of lease liabilities HEaGNIm 15 (21,310) (25,901)
Dividends paid BAFE M (1,092,211) (707,100)
Acquisition of additional interest BENBABREIIMER
in subsidiaries (3,675,980) (128,869)
Capital reductions from non-controlling R R E
shareholders (644,153) -
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHRFTS A = 2,332,270
Net cash flows (used in)/from P EE (FRA)
financing activities FAiSIREREFEE (8,941,934) 11,397,905
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREZEY
EQUIVALENTS (R) B IniEEE (9,466,328) 11,616,797
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEERERER
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12831HIEEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR%TT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents FYRERRSEEBY
at beginning of year 20,732,123 9,218,547
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEEXREBHNFE (43,878) (103,221)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXRRERAEEEY
END OF YEAR 11,221,917 20,732,123

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND CASH RERRE%LEVERN DN
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances RE K IRITAER 27 19,728,486 26,590,952
Less:  Restricted cash B ZEREGIIRS 27 7,656,569 5,420,396

Pledged deposits BIRIFER 27 850,000 438,433
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BERERAIIRE K

in the statement of cash flows HEEEY 11,221,917 20,732,123




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the” Stock Exchange”) on 29
October 2020. The registered office address of the Company is PO. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year,
the Group was involved in property development and sales, property
leasing and the provision of management consulting services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Radiance Group Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

A 55 AR MY 51

31 December 2021
20215128318

REREEEH

KRBl A BRHESEEFMRIINEREAR -
KATRIDIR2020F 108298 EEBMEXZFFA
BRAT (TBAFTY) EMR EM o ARRBANFMMER
H#3EAPO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands ©

FRABRREZERAB - RER > REHBHEYERR
BRIHE - MERERIRMEEEHRRS

EERXR FRANERATDARERERRB BN
HeHSEMRUNTEERERBRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREERER @)

(Continued)

BB ATNER

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FRBEEZMBABBFFEHRIIWMT ¢

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FAFER
MM SRR BRI
ARHE Wit MR EEME AfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(ULF3t)
Directly held:
BERE
Jubilance Properties Limited British Virgin Islands US$0.003 100.00%  Investment holding
HERUHES 0.003% 7T REER
Indirectly held:
BHEFE -
Kam Fei Investment (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong ("HK") HK$990 100.00%  Investment holding
("Kam Fei Investment”) &5 ((&#8) 99078 TT RERRK
SERE (BH) ERAR
(T&1EHRE))
Radiance Capital Investments Limited (1) British Virgin Islands US§50 96.00%  Financing
("Radiance Capital Investments’) EBRLHEE S0%ETT RE
REAREERAT
(TEBEARSE))
td. HKS10 96.00%  Investment holding

A 'p\"'.", .

"4', ] i
B ) R
; ” A <

N

1087t

T
. 4 B

REZRK

Property development
B 2%




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REREEEH (@

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEWMBABRNHERIDT : (@)

Nominal
value of
registered

Effective
percentage of
the controlling
equity interest
attributable to

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021

20214128318

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(AF )
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Beijing Jinhui Hotel Management Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property management
("Beijing Jinhui Hotel Management’) HE /R E R ARE MEER
TREBEEERERAT 10,0007T
(TRRIEESEE])
Fuzhou Jinhui Juye Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Jinhui Juye Properties") /R E R NG Lok
BNEEEERMERRAR 50,0007T
(MEMEBEERME])
Beijing Ronghui Mingye Investment Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Investment holding
("Beijing Ronghui Mingye Investment”) HE/ HERM AR REZR
TRBEEERERRAT 30,0007T
(MERREEEEE))
Beijing Jinhui Yuanshan Investment Development (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property management
Co, Ltd. ("Beijing Jinhui Yuanshan Investment’) HE/ HERM AR MEERE
TREBRUREZRERRT 10,0007T
(MERERRLERE)
Beijing Juye Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB3,309,447 96.00%  Property development
("Beijing Juye Real Estate”) /R E AR and leasing
TREXEXERRE 3,3094477C MEREREE
(MErRExEX)
Beijing Beijian Land Port International (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB124,000 96.00%  Property development
Logistics Co,, Ltd. FE /R E R AR MERE
(“Beijing Beijian Land Port International”) 124,0007T

TRIBEEBERMABRAR
(MERICRREBEIR )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5
31 December 2021
20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BB ATINEN (@
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AABEEWBABTNFEBHRINWT | (B)
(Continued)
Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FRFEMS
B3l AR BIRZH
AEHB WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(XT3
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Tianjin Ronghui Investment Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Ronghui Investment’) FE,/RE R AR MmERE
REMERERERAH 200,0007T
(TRERIELRSE))
Tianjin Jinhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Jinhui Properties”) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
RECBREHNEREERAT 50,0007T
(TR2EEREME))
Chengdu Jinhui Juye Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Chengdu Jinhui Juye Real Estate”) e/ R ER M AR MR

R REEEXRRAR . 10,0007C
- (HBEEEXEX)

96.00%  Property development
MERHE




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REREEREN @

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) RN BATIMNER (4&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB FEMBRABNFBHRINUNT © (B)

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(AF )
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Fuzhou Ronghui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB106,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Ronghui Properties”) mE/ P EX M NG e
BNREBEMESRAT 106,0007T
(FEMRIERHE))
Ronggiao (FuZhou) Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China US$30,000 5760%  Property development
("Ronggiao (Fuzhou) Real Estate”) mE/ P EX M 30,000 75 MR
RifE (@) BEXERRA
(TRefE GBI B%))
Fuging Jinli Fangyuan Properties Co,, Ltd. (2)  PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 34.56%  Property development
(“Fuging Jinli Fangyuan Properties’) FE,/HRE M AR MERE
BESHFBERHERRAT 50,0007T
(MEEENFERME])
Fuging Jinfu Xinmao Properties Co,, Ltd. (2)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 3744%  Property development
("Fuging Jinfu Xinmao Properties) HE/ HERM AR MERE
BEERMEZBHEERAT 200,0007%
(BB RMEEHE])
Fuging Jinhui Juye Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuging Jinhui Juye Properties’) /R E AR MERE
BECBEXRMEERAT 50,0007T
(MBERBRERME))
Fujian Pingtan Zhujia Juye Architectural Decoration (1) PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000 96.00%  Construction
Co, Ltd. (‘Fujian Pingtan Zhujia Juye Architectural’) /i AR decoration
BEATEREEXRALHBRETLT 5,0007T BELE

(MBRATERZEXESR)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREERER @)

(Continued)
BRI BARNER @
KARNETEMBARMFBEHIMT | @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BIRZH
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Foshan Jinhui Properties Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Foshan Jinhui Properties’) /R E R ANE# MERHE
BUTEBEHEBRAT 10,0007T
(MBlLEEEME)
Foshan Penghui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Foshan Penghui Properties’) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
BUTREEHESRAT 10,0007%
(MBlLBEREE)
Chongging Jinhui Changjiang Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB741,701 96.00%  Property development
("Chongging Jinhui Changjiang”) e/ R ER M AR MERE

" EE@%’@E}IE%E%BE’AT j ] 74170178
= .
: mﬁgfﬁﬁ = AL T LAY
“Q < "ff’ ’aﬁ
96.00%  Property development
MERHE

]
E5Y



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2021

2021412831H

REREEEH (@

BB ARNER (@)

AATTEHEADNEERIIMT : @)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BIRZH
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(BF3h
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Changsha Hongtao Properties Development (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Co,, Ltd. ("Changsha Hongtao Properties") mE/ P EX M NG e
RO BERMEREERAT 50,0007
(IRABEREHE))
Xi'an Jinhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB746,424 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Jinhui Properties") /R E R NG Lok
AR BEHEREERAT 7464247T
((AZEBEME)
Shaanxi Jinhui Juye Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaanxi Jinhui Juye Properties) HE/ HERM AR MERE
AL EEXEHERRAT 10,0007T
((REEEEERME])
Xi‘an Jinhui Juye Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB392,157 96.00%  Property development
("Xi’an Jinhui Juye Properties’) HE/ HERM AR MERE
AZEBEXREMEREERAE 392,1577¢
((AREBEERME])
Xi'an Ronghui Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Ronghui Properties”) /R E AR MERE
AEREBRMEREERAT 100,0007%
((AZRMEBEHE])
Xi‘an Xingmao Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Xingmao Properties’) HE/ R E R AR MERE
AZEREMEREFRAT 50,0007¢

(AREREHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREERER @)

(Continued)
BRI BARNER @
KARNETEMBARMFBEHIMT | @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BIRZH
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Xi'an Jinhui Xingye Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE /R E R AR MERE
("Xi'an Jinhui Xingye Properties’) 50,00075
AEeBEXEHEREBRAT
((AZEEEXEME))
Xi'an Qujiang Yuanshan Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xi'an Qujiang Yuanshan Real Estate”) HE/ HE R AR MERE
AZMIRLEXFRAR 100,0007%
(MAZAIRUEZE)
Xi'an Qujiang Hechuang Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. . e,/ R ER AR L ESaE

“Xi'an Qujiang Hechuang Properties”)

)

¢

-

TETTIOT
A S AT

100,0007%

Ay
s ’b

Property development

MERE




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEREBRER @)

(Continued)

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEMBARNHERIDT : (@)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(AF )
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Shaanxi Fenghong Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ HE R AR MERE
(“Shaanxi Fenghong Properties”) 50,0007T
PRAE AL AR SR RAE
(TREELEHE))
Xixian New District Huisheng (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Rongyu Properties Development Co, Ltd. HE /R E R AR MR
("Xixian New District Huisheng Rongyu Properties”) 50,00075
ERME RN TR EREERAR
(MERMEERRT R E)
Shanghai Tiancui Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ HE R AR MERE
("Shanghai Tiancui Properties”) 100,0007T
TERERMERERRAT
(TLBREREHE))
Suzhou Ronghui Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ HE R AR MERE
("Suzhou Ronghui Properties”) 100,0007T
FNREE M ERERRAT
(TBMREEHE))
Taicang Jinhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Taicang Jinhui Properties’) HE/ HE R AR MERE
AREEFHERERRAD 100,0007C

(REEREHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

15

QAR REBEF (@

BRI BATNER (@
AANTEMBADNEBERINT &)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BIRZH
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Suzhou Jinhui Xinyuan Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Jinhui Xinyuan") HE/ HE R ANE# MERHE
FNEENEEXERAT 20,0007%
[E1BHE)
Hangzhou Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Hangzhou Jinghui Real Estate”) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
MNREEZERAT 50,0007%
(MM RIEEZ))
Hangzhou Ronghui Mingzhu Industrial Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Hangzhou Ronghui Mingzhu Industrial’) HE/ HRE R AR MERE

 WMBBHEEEEARAT
.a'ﬁ&%@g@ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ -

~—
“9-4

¢§¢f#

I

-

hi .

100,0007%

96.00%

Property development

MERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REREEREN @

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) RN BATIMNER (4&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB FEMBRABNFBHRINUNT | (B)

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B3I AT A BIRZH
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(BF3h
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Huaian Jinhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Huaian Jinhui Real Estate”) hE/ RE R AR b EEa
EZTBEXEERRA 100,000
(TEx2EE%))
Huai'an Ronghui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 9743%  Property development
("Huai'an Ronghui Properties’) /R E R NG Lok
EZRBREMERRA 200,000
(MEZREBEHE])
Lianyungang Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Lianyungang Ronghui Real Estate”) FE,/HRE M AR MERE
ERBRMEEXERAT 100,0007T
(MEEEmMBEE)
Yancheng Jinhui Juye Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ FERH AR MERE
("Yancheng Jinhui Juye Properties”) 100,0007T
BHTEREXREUEREERAT
(EREBEERME])
Fujian Jinhui Anhui Properties Co., Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fujian Jinhui Anhui Properties’) HE/ HERM AR MERE
BRESEBZHEMEERAT 100,0007T
(MBEEBZHEME])
Anhui Qihui Real Estate. Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Anhui Qihui Real Estate”) /R E i AR MERE
ZHREBEXRRAT 100,0007%

(ZHEEERX)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

15

QAR REBEF (@

BRI BATNER (@
AANTEMBADNEBERINT &)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BIRZH
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Anhui Wanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 67.20%  Property development
(‘Anhui Wanhui Real Estate”) HE /R E R AR MERE
ZHREBEXERAH 100,0007%
(I2HERIEEZX))
Zhenjiang Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Zhenjiang Ronghui Real Estate”) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
BIRBEXFRAT 100,0007%
(FETRIEEX))
Yangzhou Rongyu Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB246,500 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ER M AR MERE
("Yangzhou Rongyu Properties’) 246,5007T

Property development

MERE



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2021

2021412831H

REREEEH (@

BB ARNER (@)

AATTEHEADNEERIIMT : @)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B#EE  (B)

Wuhan Yaoxing Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 6240%  Property development
("Wuhan Yaoxing Properties’) hE/ RE R AR b EEa

RERERMERZERETAT 1,000,0007T
(MEERERHE))

Zhenjiang Rongyu Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE /R E R ARE MERE
("Zhenjiang Rongyu Properties Development”) 50,0007T

BINTEMERERRAT
(FEIRMFREHERE)

Chongging Jinyonghe Real Estate (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE /R E R ARE MERE
("Chongging Jinyonghe Real Estate”) 200,0007T

BB XREHEREERAS
(EB2XRBHE])

Anhui Jinhui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Anhui Jinhui Real Estate”) /R E R NG Lok

ZHETRENEREBRAT 50,0007T
(22 EREHE))

Fujian Xinlianhui Properties Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 81.60%  Property development
(“Fujian Xinlianhui Properties’) HE/ HERM AR MERE

BEZHERMEREERAT 10,0007E
(MEREMBRME))

Wuhan Sanjianghui Logistics Investment Co,, Ltd. (2)  PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 3840%  Property development
("Wuhan Sanjianghui’) HE /B R AR MERE

RESIERMTRERRAS 500,0007%

(MHE=1E))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREERER @)

(Continued)
BRI BARNER @
KARNETEMBARMFBEHIMT | @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BIRZH
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Shaoxing Qihui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Shaoxing Qihui Real Estate”) HE/ HE R AR MERE
REMEBEXERAH 50,0007%
(MREREEZ))
Xi‘an Yaowei Real Estate Limited (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB550,000 96.00%  Property development
(*Xi'an Yaowei Real Estate’) HE /R E R AR L ESaE
AZEREXERAT 550,0007T
(TAZEHEZX))
Wuxi Jinhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Wusxi Jinhui Properties’) HE/ HRE R AR MERE

EHSBRUEREARAR i 10,0007

96.00%  Property development
MERHE



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2021

2021412831H

REREEEH (@

BB ARNER (@)

AATTEHEADNEERIIMT : @)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(UF3h)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B#EE  (B)

Zhangjiagang Ronghui Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 67.20%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ hE R AR Yk
("Zhangjiagang Ronghui Properties") 50,0007T

KRR ARERMEREERRAE
(TRRBRIERME])

Huai'an Huiyao Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB69,497 96.00%  Property development
("Huai'an Huiyao Properties”) mE/ P EX M AR LESsE

EZBREMERRAT 69.4977C
(TEZEREHE))

Lianyungang Jinhui Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE /R E R ARE MERE
(‘Lianyungang Jinhui Properties”) 50,0007z

ERETEEMEREERAS
(FEEEERRME])

Fuging Jinchen Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
("Fuging Jinchen Properties") HE /R E R ARE MERE

BEERRHEREBRAR 200,0007T
(MBEERERHE))

Fuging Jinghai Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
("Fuging Jinghai Properties”) HE/ HERM AR MERE

BEREEHEREBRAT 200,0007T
(MBARBEHE])

Chongging Yuhui Yaocheng Properties (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ERH AR MERE
("Chongqing Yuhui Yaocheng") 30,0005

EENERNEHEREARETAH

(EEAEEHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREERER @)

(Continued)
BRI BARNER @
KARNETEMBARMFBEHIMT | @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BIRZH
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Wuxi Yunhui Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
("Wuxi Yunhui Properties’) /R E R ANE# MERHE
BHZERMERERRAD 200,0007T
(MEHEEEME)
Fuging Jinhai Properties Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 67.20%  Property development
(‘Fuging Jinhai Properties’) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
BELERMERERRAR 500,0007T
(MBESBRME))
Foshan Chanhui Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
("Foshan Chanhui Properties’) HE/ HRE R AR MERE

¥ ﬁmm&ﬁ%wgm&m 1T 1Y i 10,0007%
.é;:aérw EEt{ﬂ { 1A | LAL T LAY
e '\Q . f "Qj" ﬁ
' 96.00%  Property development
MERHE

------

"""""



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEREBRER @)

(Continued)

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEMBARNHERIDT : (@)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Effective

percentage of

Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest

registration and

registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B3I AT A BIRZH
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(AF )

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B#EE  (B)

Huai'an Xianghui Properties Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Huai'an Xianghui Properties”) mE/ P EX M NG e

ELHBREMERRAG 50,0007
(TEZHIERHE))

Huai'an Xinyao Properties Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Huai'an Xinyao Properties’) /R E R NG Lok

EZEREHMERRAT 50,0007T
(MEZEREHE])

Shanghai Jiulong Hotel Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB186,341 96.00%  Hotel operation
("Shanghai Jiulong Hotel") HE/ HERM AR BIREE

LENEERERAR 186,3417¢
(TLBhsEEE)

Xuzhou Rongyu Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (2)  PRC/Mainland China RMB371,910 48.00%  Property development
("Xuzhou Rongyu Real Estate”) HE/ HERM AR MERE

BNRFEHERERRAT 371,9107C
(MEMNRTEHED)

Lianyungang Huiyao Real Estate (2)  PRC/Mainland China RMB313,200 48.00%  Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. HE/HERH AR MERE
("Lianyungang Huiyao Real Estate”) 313,2007%

ETBBREMEREERRT
(MEEERERME))

Huai'an Jiajing Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB180,000 5760%  Property development
("Huai'an Jiajing Real Estate”) /R E i AR MERE

EZEREHMERRAS 180,0007T

MEZEREHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ABKREERER @)

(Continued)
BRI BARNER @
KARNETEMBARMFBEHIMT | @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BB
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Beijing Jinhui Beiwang Business (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Business management
Management Co,, Ltd. HE /R E R AR ERERE
("Beijing Jinhui Beiwang") 50,00075
TREBLEHEEEFRAT
(MEREBEE))
Tianjin Huiyao Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Huiyao Real Estate”) HE/ HE R AR MERE
REBREEHMEREERAT 50,0007%
(TREEREHE)
Shijiazhuang Qiyang Real Estate Development (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 76.80%  Property development

ARE
50,0007%

MERE

Co, Ltd. (‘Shijiazhuang Qiyang Real Estate’)

T,/ A
EXEAMEbERSER2
=) f’ L !g-.u ﬁ'rf #‘.—'

_.../ ~ RumBiggo0 Property development



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REREEREN @

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) RN BATIMNER (4&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB FEMBRABNFBHRINUNT | (B)

(Continued)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B3I AT A BIRZH
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEZEA TEREE
('000)
(BF3h
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B##55 . (B)
Ningbo Lanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Ningbo Lanhui Real Estate”) mE/ P EX M NG e
ERERBEXERAT 50,0007
(MEREEE%))
Huai'an Yunhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB450,000 5808%  Property development
("Huai'an Yunhui Real Estate”) /R E R NG Lok
EZEBRMERRAT 450,0007%
(MEZZEBEHE)
Yancheng Zhaorui Real Estate (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB46,000 4896%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ FERH AR MERE
("Yancheng Zhaorui Real Estate”) 46,0007T
KRB ERERRAT
(TERIKImEHE))
Chengdu Ruihua Enterprise (Group) Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB25,000 96.00%  Property development
("Chengdu Ruihua Enterprise”) HE/ HERM AR MERE
MEECE (EF) BREEAH 25,0007T
(TR E IR ERE))
Xiaogan Quanzhou Hongbo Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Xiaogan Quanzhou Hongbo") HE/ HERM AR MERE
ZRENBEBEXERAT 100,0007T
(FER2MBE)
Hubei Chijing Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB133,333 7200%  Property development
("Hubei Chijing Real Estate”) HE/HER AR MERE
AR EHERRAE 133,3337%
(A= EHE])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5
31 December 2021
20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BB ATINEN (@
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ANBEEWBABTNFEBHRINWT | (@)
(Continued)
Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FRFEMS
B3l AR BIRZH
AEHB WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Huai'an Chijing Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB17,973 96.00%  Property development
(‘Huaan Chijing Real Estate”) HE/ HE R AR MERE
EZHREMERRAS 17,9737C
(TEZEZEME))
Zhengzhou Jinhui Rongyu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Zhengzhou Jinhui Rongyu’) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
BN BUTEHEREBRAT 50,0007T
(T S IERF))
Zhengzhou Huiyao Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
S Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ER M AR MERE
N L (‘Zhengzhou Huiyao Real Estate”) 30,0007T

Sh @EEH!EF HRAT '

fw “ 'J"’“‘. 'Jﬁ*sa ﬁ-rf T
DMe I __../ > - RMB50,000 I Property development
1 AN Sk



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REREEEH (@

BB ARNER (@)

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021

20214128318

AATTEHEADNEERIIMT : @)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B3I AT A BIRZH
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(AF )

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B#EE  (B)

Chonggqing Jinhui Changjiang (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000 96.00%  Property management
Assets Management Co,, Ltd. HE /R E R ARE MEER
("Chongging Jinhui Changjiang") 8,00075

EESBRIBEEEERAA

(EE2ERL)

Chongging Yuhui Jiajing Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ HE R ARE MERE
("Chongging Yuhui Jiajing Real Estate”) 30,0007%

BENEREREHAEREARAT

(EEREZREHE)

Hefei Qizhuo Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000 96.00%  Consulting
("Hefei Qizhuo Real Estate”) HhE /R E R AR B3

BREM=EEMELDBRAT 1,0007%

(IRERMEEHE)

Anhui Lanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Anhui Lanhui Real Estate”) /R E R NG Lok

ZHEREXERAT 50,0007T

(ZHBBEX))

Anhui Gaoyue Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Anhui Gaoyue Real Estate”) HE/ HERM AR MERE

ZHBEREXZERAT 50,0007T

(r2@EnEX)

Chongging Huiderui Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB750,000 5760%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ERH AR MERE
("Chongqing Huiderui Real Estate”) 750,00075

EERRERMEREARAR
(EEREERME)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEME
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

NTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Co
Particulars of the Company's principal su
(Continued)

ntinued)
bsidiaries are as follows:

QAR REBEF (@

BRI BATNER (@
AANTEMBADNEBERINT &)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BB
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Ningbo Qihui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 57.60%  Property development
(‘Ningbo Qihui Real Estate) HE /R E R AR MERE
ERMEBEXERAH 500,0007T
(MERRIEEZ))
Taicang Ronghui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB512,500 96.00%  Property development
(‘Taicang Ronghui Real Estate”) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
ARRERMERERRA 512,5007¢
(TRERIERME)
Yangzhou Rongyu Youbu Real Estate (2)  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 4704%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ER M AR MERE

("Yangzhou Rongyu Youbu Real Estate”

| siETERuEREERL

Y
oo s o e
5 A

' i

l I R
-

A 1 u

e

S

. S

10,0007T

o
1

Property development

MERE




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2021

2021412831H

REREEEH (@

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEMBARNHERIDT : (@)

Nominal
value of
registered

Effective
percentage of
the controlling
equity interest
attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(AF )
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Ningbo Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Ningbo Jinghui Real Estate”) HE /R E R ARE MR
ERREEXERAR (BRREEX) 50,0007¢
Ningbo Yunjing Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Ningbo Yunjing Real Estate”) HE/ FERH AR MERE
BREREXERAT ((BREREE) 50,0007%
Shaoxing Yuehui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaoxing Yuehui Real Estate”) FE,/ R E AR MERE
REMBEXERRAA 50,0007T
(MREHBE))
Shaoxing Ronghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaoxing Ronghui Real Estate”) HE/ P ERM AR MERE
RERBEXERAA 50,0007T
(MREREEX))
Shaoxing Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Shaoxing Jinghui Real Estate”) mE/ P EX M NG IR
BRARBEXERAF 50,0007
(MBEREEX))
Ningbo Yunhui Real Estate Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Ningbo Yunhui Real Estate”) /R E R NG Lok
EREBEXERAT 50,0007T
(MEREREX))
Shaoxing Xianghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Shaoxing Xianghui’) HE/RE R AREK e
BEFBEXERAR 50,0007T
(MRErNE))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

QAR REBEF (@

ARMNBATNEL @)
SADTEWEATNRERNNT : @

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BB
REBTE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Tianjin Juye Trade Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB550,000 96.00%  Trading
(‘Tianjin Juye Trade”) FE,/RE R AR g5
REEXEEBZERAH 550,0007%
(TREEXES))
Huizhou Yuxiangxin Real Estate Co. Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Huizhou Yuxiangxin Real Estate”) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
ENTHREEREERRAR 10,0007%
(FEMTHEEENE)
Huizhou Runyang Real Estate Development (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 96.00%  Property development
Co, Ltd (Huizhou Runyang Real Estate’) ; e/ R ER M AR MR
HEREMER KE"& 5 " ﬂ“ lﬁ 30,0007%
s GNP,
S ! ' ' ’- 96.00%  Investment holding

FIAD J,_.J. AR

hina

REER




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

REREEEH (@

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEMBARNHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B A A BB
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEEAL FEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE  (B)
Xi'an Juye Construction Mainland (1) PRC/Mainland China 1,100,000 96.00%  Construction
China Engineering Co, Ltd. HE /R E R ARE BE
("Xi'an Juye Construction”) 1,100,0007T
BAERERETRARAA
(MAZEZREA)
Tianjin Qihui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Qihui Real Estate”) e/ hE R AR Yk
RERERMERERRAD 50,0007C
(IRERERHE))
Tianjin Xianghui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Tianjin Xianghui Real Estate”) FE/RE MM ARE MERE
REEERMEREBRAD 50,0007T
(IREHEREHE])
Shenyang Huiyao Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ FERH AR MERE
("Shenyang Huiyao Real Estate”) 20,0007T
BlERREENEREERAT
(MEGEREHE])
Tianjin Shenghui Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(“Tianjin Shenghui Real Estate”) HE/ HERM AR MERE
REBRBEMERZERAT 50,0007T
(IREEEEHE])
Tianjin Lanhui Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
(‘Tianjin Lanhui Real Estate”) HE /B R AR MERE
REEBREHMEREERAT 50,0007%

(REBEEEHE))
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5
31 December 2021
20215128318

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

15

QAR REBEF (@

BRI BATNER (@
AANTEMBADNEBERINT &)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BB
CELE WisE SRS EME EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Beijing Jinhuichuangling Technology Co., Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Management
('Beijing Jinhuichuangling”) HE/ HE R AR consulting
TREBAERKBRAT 50,0007T i
(MER&1ERIE)
Huaian Huisheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 5280%  Property development
(‘Huaian Huisheng Real Estate”) FE/ PE R AR L ESaE
EZRBREHMERRASD 50,0007%
(TEZRIEREME)
Shijiazhuang Wanyue Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ER M AR MERE

("Shijiazhuang Wanyue Real Estate"),

ﬂﬁ?aﬁ?é“ﬁl‘ﬂ’&?

‘*‘I@ *"’f N AT

__..‘/ >

50,0007%

Property development

MERE




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

REREEEH (@

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEMBARNHERIDT : (@)

(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
FARER
B3I AT A BIRZH
AEHB Wizt EMRERME EfE BEZEA TEREE
('000)
(BF3h

Indirectly held: (Continued)

B##55 . (B)

Shijiazhuang Jinhui Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB750,000 52.80%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ hE R AR Yk
("Shijiazhuang Jinhui Real Estate”) 750,00075

ERHEBRMEREERAR
((EREEERME))

Fuzhou Xianghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Xianghui Real Estate”) hE/ RE R AR LESsE

BNHBEHMERRAS 10,0007
(MEMEBRME])

Fuzhou Jinghui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Jinghui Real Estate”) /R E R NG Lok

BNRBREMERRAS 100,0007T
(MEMNRERHE)

Fuzhou Lanhui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 96.00%  Property development
("Fuzhou Lanhui Real Estate”) /R E R NG Lk

BNEBEHMERRAR 50,0007T
(MeMBrEEHE)

Quanzhou Gaoyue Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000 81.60%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ FERH AR MERE
("Quanzhou Gaoyue Real Estate”) 140,0007T

FMEREMEREFRAT
(TRNEREHED)

Quanzhou Ruiyao Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000 81.60%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ERH AR MERE
("Quanzhou Ruiyao Real Estate”) 150,0007T

SMEREHEREERAR
(TRMIRREHE])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5
31 December 2021
20215128318

- BEARERMER

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

15

QAR REBEF (@

BRI BATNER (@
AANTEMBADNEBERINT &)

Effective
percentage of
Place of of Nominal the controlling
incorporation/ value of equity interest
registration and registered attributable to
Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
AT LG
B3l AR BB
CELE Wizt EEf RS E A EfE BEEAL TEEH
('000)
(UF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B#EE (B
Quanzhou Zhaoming Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (3)  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 4896%  Property development
(‘Quanzhou Zhaoming") HE /R E R AR MERE
SIMNKHEXFRAT (TRMIEH) 200,0007T
Quanzhou Huiyao Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 86.40%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. HE/ HERM AR MERE
("Quanzhou Huiyao Real Estate”) 200,0007T
FNEREHERERRAD
(TRNBREME))
Lianyungang Jinghui Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB729,730 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ R ER M AR MERE
("Lianyungang Jinghui Real Estate”) 729,7307C

£

ARAZ

7

Property development

MERE




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Place of of
incorporation/
registration and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

REREEEH (@

BRI B ABNER (@)
FABAEEMBARNHERIDT : (@)

Effective

percentage of

Nominal the controlling
value of equity interest
registered attributable to

Name of companies Note business share capital the Company  Principal activities
KATRELM
Mk AT B
GRS Wik SRR EME afE BEESE FEBER
('000)
(BLF3h)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B35 (B)
Xuzhou Jinhui Real Real Estate (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB155,000 96.00%  Property development
Development Co, Ltd. e/ hE R AR Yk
("Xuzhou Jinhui Real Real Estate”) 155,00075

ENEEEMERERRAR
(MEMEEEE)

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company
to translate their Chinese names as they do not have an official English

name.

The legal form of all the principal subsidiaries disclosed above

are limited liability companies.

Notes:

(M

)

These entities are subsidiaries of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of
the Company'’s control over them.

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has been entitled with
enough voting right to control and operate these entities. Thus, these
entities are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group by holding less
than 50% of equity interests in them.

These entities are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group by holding
less than 50% of equity interests in them because the non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company, hold their 51% equity interests to
control and operate them.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

FRERTEAMZEERARNZANLBRAEERE
BEREBEAPXNLBENIZ I HEANEL H
WEBHENZER ULRBEZARERBRARZE
BEAAREBEREEAF

(4)

ZEBREA/TRANFEZENBLAR  BEraH
HEA TG SARIEREBAR -

REEAGERME *EEZARENREENE
FIREEZEER FIt ZFERFAEEDN50%
HiEm  ZEBERRARIGEAEENNBELQR -

TEBFBEZEEBT LN 0% KRE  ZEBEK
ARIGEAREENE AR AA2BHNEZEN
BRBKAHES 1% REUEFREEZEERE-

ERILEERRHENERBEAZEABRE
EEBEEFEERBONERTNWEAT -EF
R RHEAMNBATDNFEFERRBEERT
Eo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include
all standards and interpretations, International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations)
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(Q) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

152 &¥Eeeme (EE) ARAR  20215EH

ZEMBRERDBEEARSGAEREES (HES
STEEREE G ) HENBRM RS ER (TRRRY
BWESER >  BEMEE 2B BR G5 %R
(TEREs#R)) hERERZBEZEENEE)
UREBREEANRBERERE - BFREVMERK
BATEAABRaNEREER QA TENBIN Z
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KUARE TARKE)) 25 5 HBHAEIN > B8
PREERINEEREANTAH-

aHE®E
REMBERREELAADRENBAE (RETEE
EN)BE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HLFENHH
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EEBTEER EXAEENS2ERERFEBMEK
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EHIE -
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BB LUER A ERAR ARSI HREY
KTEEIREEE—ERFERER 81 !
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b) BREAMEERZHIZEOEN; &
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EARRBEERERE #m WA BXXMNEER
ENGHRTEE



2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

Amendment to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early

adopted)

2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M F5 IR R MIEE

31 December 2021
20215128318

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
amount of financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be
made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness.

The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in RMB and foreign currencies based
on the Inter Bank Offered Rate as at 31 December 2021. Since
the interest rates of these borrowings were not replaced by
RFRs during the period, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs
in a future period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned
practical expedient upon the modification of these instruments
provided that the "economically equivalent” criterion is met.
Additional information about the transition and the associated
risks is disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the current accounting period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 2.3

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

016
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Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contract?
Insurance Contracts**

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9
- Comparative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
. As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,

IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by
the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions
at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group's accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS
16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill-is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group
of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXREHBEME (@
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) JEERE ERE (@
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to FEEEIEREHRIGESEEATRET
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment MUl R r B EB B E RER AT AER ) o M H IR
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication S Bt b - EERUREEE
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised (BB T REISENE B ER - 5 iDL
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there AR RERE  BEDENEBERESBARR
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable ReFTFETEMZEEERDRERE ﬁ'ﬁﬁgﬁz/ﬁ
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying BIAREE GORRERIITE,#H) o BEBERE g
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ AELENED RIFEENEGEBAR I
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in BRT REBEZLREEGEEENBRBA I T
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit AR o

or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties Ealiyal
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: MTATHRABARERMAVERE S 6
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family @ FBREAFABATHZATHRENBREXRKER
and that person Bomz&z AL
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) EEAEEN TGRS ;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEELEEANEEND; R
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) RAIEERXAEEZSRENFEEEA
Group or of a parent of the Group; ENEP—FKE;
or 54
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions by BZATABREFSGTIERA—IEEG M
applies:
0] the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) ZEREAERBR —E£ENHE
g
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other i) —EEAZ BB EHI—=B E']’&
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the BB ABSHARMBAR) NWEER
other entity); aEhE,;
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (il ZEBRAKAERARN—F=ZANE
third party; E
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —BRAF=FHNE= ﬁ% e
entity is an associate of the third entity; BRAE—FH=FNHERT
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZEERHE—ARBBEMNFEFTEAE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BN A EEERERNESEAET ;

related to the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2.25-9.50%
Motor vehicles 11.25-31.67%
Office equipment and electronic devices 18.00-32.33%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and benefit period

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-
use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Transfers to or from investment property

Transfers to or from investment property shall be made when and only
when there is a change in use evidenced by:

(a) commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a
transfer from investment property to inventories;

(@) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied
property to investment property; or

(d)  commencement of an operating lease to another party, for a
transfer from inventories to investment property.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional
fees and other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA. Construction
costs relating to units were identified and allocated specifically.
Common construction costs have been allocated according to the
saleable GFA similar to land costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 2 to 10 years. The
Group usually classifies the internet software with higher turnover rate
and lower cost like application based on WeChat to a shorter useful life
as 2 years and the system software with high compatibility and stable
service output which satisfies the operation well and has no need for
frequent technological updates and maintenance, like ERP system to a
longer useful life as 10 years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights 40 to 50 years
Office buildings 1to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the Group's
policy for “properties under development” or “completed
properties held for sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group's policy for “investment properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and electronic devices that
are considered to be of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the lease payments and related payments
(including the initial direct costs) and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income
of such leases is recognised in profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All reqgular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates fif,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

174 £1Eeg (EE) 5RAT 20215EH

RERHEMEMEE (@
BAFEFSABmHZHEE
BAFEFABRENEREER R TFERMBRR
IR MAFELZEFERNERESD -

ZHEHNEEFEEYETAHEMEREDBAS R
ATFEFAHMEERENTETARRERSE
RERENREDESBATESABaNERE
XML B BAANEENDRAIER
AREBBRBENRIFAER > PR B
BAEMUTA -

RIEESIEREE

SREE (R WER) SMEENNDARESHS
EMERNED) TBETHER TRILRR BaE
EENEAHBRRERIR

BREEKDREREOEADEN; %

FEFREEEAZEENNRERENER
YAEREEHE 2RSS EERELIEN
BRTEBZMAMESNREMRE ; R@FE
EHEBEZEENEARBDEBRREIR (b)
KAEEMESRNREXEEERI DR K
OB BB E ER G -

HEAEEEEHEE —BEEERNIRERENER
YU BB ST ERECREXEEREAE
B9 | B B [B1 3R LA e R BB RO A2 [ o i 5 R S aR SR
BZEEBADREBKRLO®R TEEREENT
HE AAERRAERRESREENEEEE
EBEFCEREE -EULIBR T » AEETRFEDAE
HER BEEZMNEEREBEERIRBREER
REBNENREENEES 8-

FEBMUERTIAFESHECEESE  ZEHE
BEDUZEBESENRRAEHEAERIERTEX
TEEREME ZREEFE-



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

In certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has evaluated the expected loss rate that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to
adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes (collectively called
“loans and borrowings”), lease liabilities, trade and bills payables, other
payables, and amounts due to related parties.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit
or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS
15.

a. Sale of properties
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the customer obtains the physical
possession, or the legal title of the completed property and the
Group has present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

b. Management consulting services
Consulting services income derived from the provision of
support services in connection with development of property
projects is recognised when the relevant services are rendered,
and the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract cost assets
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract cost assets are amortised and charged to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the asset related. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee retirement benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of these payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The only obligation of the Company
with respect to the central pension scheme is to make the required
contributions. No forfeited contribution under the central pension
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong, which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. No forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
The exchange gains and losses that are adjustments to interest costs
include the interest rate differences between borrowing costs that
would be incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on forward currency
rates at the inception of the borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences eligible
for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and is limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest amount for the
functional currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred for
foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous years should not be
capitalised in subsequent years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRGHBEHRE (@)

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial information of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency because the Group's principal
operations are carried out in the PRC. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life
of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of
the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of this property and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate is based on whether the Group is determined to have
control, joint control or significant influence over the investee, which
involves judgements through the analysis of various factors, including
the Group's representation on the chief decision-making authorities of
an investee, such as the board of directors’ meetings and shareholders’
meetings, as well as other facts and circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their assets,
liabilities and transactions are included line-by-line in the Group's
consolidated financial statements, whereas the interests in joint
ventures and associates are equity accounted for as investments in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. Further details are included in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if
the timing of payments agreed by the parties to the contract provides
the Group with a significant benefit of financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a
significant financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group
is required by the government to place all deposits and periodic
payments received from the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder
account, the Group is able to benefit from those advance payments
as it can withdraw money from that account to pay for expended
construction costs on the project. The advance payments received in
effect reduce the Group's need to rely on other sources of financing.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Significant financing component (Continued)

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception
of the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not
updated for changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as
a change in credit risk. The period of financing is from the time that
the payment is received until the transfer of goods to the customers is
completed.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the properties sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is disclosed in note 23
and note 24 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the
costs of completion of properties under development, and the costs
to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market
conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which
such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each year. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use.

The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision for income
taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain of its property development projects. The
final outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences realise.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation, the
Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each year.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's business
which includes property development, property leasing, and the
provision of management consulting services. Property leasing and
the provision of management consulting services are not significant
in revenue contribution. Thus, property development is the only
reportable operating segment of the Group, and no further operating
segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group's revenue from
the external customers is derived solely from its operation in Mainland
China and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside
Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers
under common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue at the end of the reporting period.

3.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Wamm ~ E At A B Uk a8
AT -

2021 2020
20215 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF T
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHIKA 39,628,765 34,538,561
Revenue from other sources HhzkREWA
Property lease income YIERBEWA 397,061 336,613
40,025,826 34,875,174
Revenue from contracts with customers BEREHWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) 5B AEH

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEF T

Types of goods or services: BmEfREREsE -
Sale of properties M EHE 39,521,551 34,380,524
Management consulting services BIREHARE 107,214 158,037
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2% 2 & &I UX A 4858 39,628,765 34,538,561

Timing of revenue recognition: W A TSR -

Properties transferred at a point in time RE RS RN 39,521,551 34,380,524
Services transferred over time R — R R N R AR TS 107,214 158,037
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2 B & &JUR A A2 28 39,628,765 34,538,561
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and
recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous

periods:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

Weam ~ E AU A R e (48)

EREHNRA (@
(a) DIKAEBH (&

TR EARESHEDOWA SR HRRE
WYt AGHEaERBANBERETHNEAS
EMRER)

Revenue recognised that was

included in contract liabilities BERERWA
at the beginning of the

reporting period:

Sale of properties MEHE

BEHDSASTHEEN

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx AREF T
34,496,982 26,381,422

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and the Group has already received the payment or

has the right to receive the payment probably.

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice
which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the Group's performance to date. The Group has elected the
practical expedient not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts. The majority of the
management consulting service contracts do not have a fixed
term. The term of the contracts for pre-delivery and consulting
services is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify

the Group that the services are no longer required.

(b)

BYEE
ERAERBENEENERBRNT

YEHE
BUESENDRRXUYERERTT BEEEE
W EIRR IR AT BE A W I RRIE

BT HIRTS

MEEEARSBMNS  AERERESESINE
RN MBERA B ERE
MEeSRIEMERABTEBZEEEES
e-rEMBEEETTHERIR UEKREZ
SHASHZHFRBOBE - KB D EEES
RBENLEEEFH AN RBEHARBTS
MHNER—RREASNRENH S BENETERF
BREEXERBEEM-
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20214E12831H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. UrE s EMUA R (&)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEREHWA (#E)
(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b) BAEE (B
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining R+ZB=+—HPEZEXNGRBOSE KB
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as TRED KRBT WX ZERSEAT :

at 31 December are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BF T

Amounts expected to be recognised as ~ TAEARESR AU A RIS EE ¢

revenue:
Within one year — &R 40,981,213 42,795,431
After one year —F% 30,428,590 35,366,277
71,409,803 78,161,708
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: Ht A RWSEZ DT
2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARH#FTT
Other income and gains Hfh A B Y 2=
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMEB AT I E (Fi5E39) 51,615 21,502
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BEHEARNKG - 51,100
Remeasurement gain on investment REBEHAFER —EHEAQR
in an associate held before KENBMTE R
business combination - 35,052
Subsidy income LU A 21,309 1,587
Deposit forfeiture B s 8,668 10,573
Investment income from financial BAFESFABENEREEN
assets at fair value through KEIWA
profit or loss 14,327 16,907
Gain on disposal of items of HEYE BEKRFEEENKG
property, plant and equipment - 167
Exchange gain BE %2 U 2 83,432 293,569
Others HAth 4,495 5,949

183,846 436,406
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

BRR Al i F

REBMZBRRATEN DN, GEA) THSEE
HIER :

Cost of inventories sold (excluding
impairment losses recognised for

properties under development and

properties held for sale)
Cost of services provided
Impairment losses recognised for
properties under development
Impairment losses recognised for
properties held for sale
Impairment of financial assets
Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Rental expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Employee benefit expense
(including directors’ and
chief executive's remuneration):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions
and social welfare

BEFEME
T EERETNER
FIEHEMERN
HESD BB R 1E)

R MRFE A

e Y RS R E 1R

FEHEMENERRERE

EREERE
ME-BERRFHITE

BB E

ERREENTE

HERX

12 24 B Bl

BEGENAX
(BEESRK
RSTHASRE :
TER#HE
RSB ER L EER

2021 2020
20214 20204

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREFx AREF T
21 31,537,705 26,796,159
32,164 62,925

20 410,425 155,979
21 298,081 147,203
22,24 5,699 (572)
13 44,136 44,778
16 3,835 3,260
15(a) 36,408 26,702
15(c) 3,496 3,768
10,100 9,225

511,078 419,137

94,566 31,034
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20214E12831H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBEMAN DT
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARB#F T
Interest on loans and borrowings BERREZNE 3,578,125 3,869,507
Interest expense arising from SHRAEENFIERE
revenue contracts 819,879 600,536
Interest on lease liabilities HEaRFE 1,552 2,170
Total interest expense on financial liabilities W IR AFEFTAEBRN
not at fair value through profit or loss TRBENT SRR 4,399,556 4,472,213
Less: Interest capitalised B ERERE (4,049,671) (3,946,967)
349,885 525,246
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESITHBAEIM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed EFZMRESTHEAERUTEENHMNERE EHIR
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of BIl BB BMER5E383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ OO E(A T
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEESHEER) BHBE)) F2IWEWT -
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTT ARH#F T
Fees e 738 376
Other emoluments: HAhFrE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2 REYIER 4,138 4,099
Performance related bonus ERRE 2,500 5,070
Pension scheme contributions and BARETEHA LR
social welfare 278 156

6,916 RS

7,654 9,701
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Tse Yat Hong, Mr. Chung Chong Sun and Mr. Zhang Huagiao
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 5 October 2020.

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:
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31 December 2021
20215128318

8. EFERRSITHASHM @

(a)

BIFFRITES
81 B B J0E ~ SB AT 6 A R IR L 4B 2 702020
FI0RSERBEEAXATDNBUIFNTES.

FRNNFBIFRTEFNERSWMT !

2021 2020

20214 20205

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARSBTT AR®BTFT

Mr. Tse Yat Hong HBRELE 246 63
Mr. Chung Chong Sun Al E 246 63
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RIEBRE 246 250
738 376

There was no other emolument payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2020: nil).

Executive directors and the chief executive

Mr. Lam Ting Keung is the chairman and an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lam Yu was appointed as an executive
director and executive president on 17 October 2019. Mr. Chen
Chaorong was appointed as an executive director on 17 October
2019. Mr. Huang Junquan was appointed as an executive
director and the senior vice president on 17 October 2019.

FRTHEAMBOBILIFNITESEME (2020
FiE)e

HITEERERETHRAES
MEBREEARANDERERATES - MFHL
ER2019F 1081 7THEZEARNITEERAT
4B o REAEE AR 2019FE10B17BEEZES
HITES - ZRRALEN2019F10517HES
EARNTEERSREEH-

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

195




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESTHASEHMN @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive b) BITEERESTHAE (@)

(Continued)

Pension

Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance contributions
and benefits related and social Total
in kind bonus welfare remuneration

B ESE

HiERHR R
BEMER AHRE &R #H e
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT NS UL

2021 2021
Executive directors: HTES !
~ Mr. Lam Ting Keung -MEREE 360 - 64 424
- Mr. Lam Yu —MFERE 360 1,100 64 1,524
— Mr. Chen Chaorong —REBREE 1,667 700 75 2,442
— Mr. Huang Junguan -mEREE 1,751 700 75 2,526
4,138 2,500 278 6,916
2020 2020
Executive directors: HTES:
— Mr. Lam Ting Keung —MEBKE 361 - = 361
~ Mr. Lam Yu —MFRE 361 2,200 - 2,561
~ Mr. Chen Chaorong —BRERRE 1751 1470 78 3,299
— Mr. Huang Junguan —BHRREE 1626 1,400 78 3,104
4,099 5,070 156 9325
Mr. Chen Chaorong resigned on 25 March 2022, and Mr. Xu FREAEE ST A 72202293 H 25 H B E > MR/ & 5
Xiaodong was designated as an executive director on the same EHREHEZERHITES-
day.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRITERESREXFBRREEMIFMNZ
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. BEe

196  1mEee (Em) ARAT 2021FEH



FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
(2020: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the three (2020:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:
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2021412831H

IsEEHmES

FRNLLRSHEECEMBES (2020 : WRHE
E) > HFFENF B E N X R8s =4 (20206 1 =
%) REERBEFTIFERSTRAEBNRSHES
REABFMEFIBNT ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTFT AREFTT
Salaries, allowances, bonus and benefits e EZ A REYREF
in kind 3,660 3,445
Performance related bonus BEWRE 1,600 4,600
Pension scheme contributions and BAREEHI AT EET]
social welfare 222 204
5,482 8,249

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HHNF TIEHNIFEETIIRSTHRARNER
SREEABNT

Number of employees

BEE#HE

2020
20204

Nil to HK$2,000,000 % ),000,000588 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00178 75 & 2,500,00078 7T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 78 7T 2 3,000,00078 75 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00178 75 Z3,500,00078 7T - 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,00178 7 24,000,00078 7T - 1

3 3
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B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands, the Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The
Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong were not liable for
income tax as they did not have any assessable profits currently arising
in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject
to PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") with a tax rate of 25% for the year
except for the following subsidiary:

10.

FRigH
AEBERAEERNEADEMAREMERD
BAREELENREENM BREREEBMFAT
BR-BERESHENRUERRN  ARE kEAE
ErHEHEITMBRIINNBAREBHAMTM
MM -AEBEREBFMBA LN E LB EER
MEAER AAZERNRNBE_ZE-_—F+°H
—t+—HUEFEUENREBESTAERRAE

BRUUT M B R B Sh » A & H B o B AR B Y I /B
REFE AN EF25%M IR G B b E SR (Th
ESSECL )N

Corporate
income
Company name tax rate
RE LT TEEMRTERE
Chongging Jinhui Changjiang Properties EETRERIEMERRAR
Co., Ltd. ("Chongging Jinhui Changjiang”) * (lEEsRRE I 15%
& According to the Announcement on Further Implementation of * RIBERRB LB BB BIRRA BB AME

Corporate Income Tax Policy for the development of the Western
Regions (2012 No.12) issued by the State Taxation Administration and
the extension of the Corporate Income Tax Policy for the development
of the Western Regions (2020 No.23) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Finance, State Taxation Administration and National Development and
Reform Commission, Chongging Jinhui Changjiang, subsidiaries of the
Group, is qualified to enjoy the preferential tax policy of western regions
enterprise income tax of 15% from 2011 to 2030.

PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT") is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures including land
costs, borrowing costs and other property development expenditures.
The Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant Mainland
China tax laws and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final
review and approval by the local tax bureau.

HEAECEMSRBENQAE) (CTTE—Z2F%12
%) > UERHBMES EARNFERRERE RN
ELEEMEERN(RARIEERDARECERSE
MBEENAS) CEITEF3R) BT ——F
EIZ=TFE - AEEANBLATIEESRRIGHE
BEA 1SN A HE S ERREBEREK

FRE IR ERR (T IR ER) RN F30%E
60%RY RIEIRFH LI EFRBU > T IR ETERY)
FIHEFTIS AR BJ R X (B L pli A~ B
RAREMYERERS - AEEREAMTER
MR E R ROERBRE A L HIZER A5 fFH
Rt RINIEEH - LI ER B FH AR E R B
RET R BRI fE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREEF T

Current tax: BNHAFRIE ©
Corporate income tax PERER 1,340,171 1,528,152
LAT THIIERER 1,410,572 1,609,553
Deferred tax (note 19) IEIERIIE (HIE19) 21,193 (420,019)
Total tax charge for the year FARIES H4R%E 2,771,936 2,717,686
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10.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

10. FR1E# (@)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax KRBIREKXE DM B AR FEMAAER A& ZE
at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the ERZABENMRRANGFERNMEMRBASZ UK
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at BAME AVEEREX) HERRENBERAT !

the effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate
(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTFT AREFTT
Profit before tax BRI AT E F 6,465,631 6,536,759
At the statutory income tax rate HETEREREXE 1,616,408 1,634,190
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or enacted by 43 7€ & 7 B¢ & th 14 48 &Il & Ay
local authority BERE (24,833) (124,092)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENEIEE R 29,963 28,614
Profits and losses attributable to EEPERBE AT RS EN K
joint ventures and associates 538 (187,212) (202,504)
Deductible temporary differences and tax losses ~ Il BERMEEE K
utilised from previous years BEFEABAZRIERE (70,390) (108,169)
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences A< F& 28 0] 31 8 & B 14 7= B &2
and tax losses RIBE 18 436,340 283,532

Adjustment of current tax for

BEFERRERE

previous years (86,269) (1,050)
Provision for LAT TR ER A 1,410,572 1,609,553
Tax effect on LAT THIEERNRERE (352,643) (402,388)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEBERRESEN

MIASZ W 2,771,936 2,717,686
The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates RAFESEEELERBMENTDBRLERNRESZES

amounted to RMB327,648,000 for the year (2020: RMB394,199,000).
The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounted to RMB81,165,000 for the year (2020: RMB124,194,000).
Both are included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

AR #327,648,0007C (20204 © AR #394,199,0007T) °
RAFEDGEECERBE LD RGERIBIRLS
AR #81,165,0007T (20204 @ AR #£124,194,0007T) ©
U EHFAGEEEREMNEZERARAIDEEE
PERBE ARG REEIET -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

11.

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

10. FRiR (@)

FREMBRRERANELREZIWMT !

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BT T ARBEF T

Tax payables: FE(FFRIE :
Corporate income tax TEMRER 959,405 1,176,820
LAT TR ER 3,905,383 2,606,883
Total tax payable B IRIBAE A 4,864,788 3,783,703

DIVIDENDS

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HKS$0.32 (equivalent to RMB0.27 yuan) per ordinary share, amounting
to a total of approximately RMB1,092,211,290, was approved by the
Group's shareholders at the annual general meeting on 12 May 2021.
The above-mentioned declared dividend was paid before 30 June
2021.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend for
the year 2021 of HKS$0.16 (equivalent to RMBO0.13 yuan) per ordinary
share (to be distributed out of the Company’s share premium
account), amounting to a total of approximately RMB525,879,510 has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final
dividend has been proposed after the end of the reporting period
and therefore has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

11.

H’R‘L l%\

AEBREN_ZE-_—FAA+-_HRTHREE
FAG FMERSBEE S-S5+ _-_F=+—H
IEEFEEZRERESREERNET HERAR
#02770) EHAABARYE1,092,211,290700 £l E
ERREEBN _E_—FA=Z+HrXffe

RREHARB EFEEZERN S —FXRHER
EEREERI6EBT HENRARI3T (BAR
B Z R EERIKEE) > 48549 AR #525,879,5107T
BERENEEREBEFEARS EMERAAES -
BEPREPRBRARERE EMRBREHR
B AERAERE.




12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,045,227,000
(2020: 3,509,790,134) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 was based on 1 share of the Company as
at 17 October 2019, 1 share of the Company issued on 6 March 2020,
and 3,399,999,998 ordinary shares of the Company issued under
the capitalisation issue occurred on 29 October 2020, as if these
additional shares issued under the capitalisation issue had been in
issue throughout the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. On 29
October 2020, the Company issued 600,000,000 new ordinary shares.
On 25 November 2020, the over-allotment option has been partially
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 45,227,000 additional
shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 in respect
of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts
are based on:

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

BAREE#ERAARGERET

EREABAEBENLNBESLARATEREEFTAEA
& 1 79 05 %‘J&iﬁ@é’fftai_ﬂyﬂmgii’j%z
4,045,227,0008% (ZZF "4 : 3,509,790,1348%) st & °

AU EEE_Z-_—FRZIZEZZEF5+A
Sor— Et&lﬁﬂy ABANZBERMEFITH
TSRER-E—NEFE+BE+EtHERXFTREMD
R_E_TF=BANHARBDETIRED RIEE

AT CEE+R - +ARBENEAREEITME
THIZS /A T)3,399,999,998% 3@ AR (N RIBE &1L
BITMBETHNZSEIRGERBE_SZ—FX
ZEIEFE+ A=+ HIEFERFBEET) 5t
HE/YE RIZEZZEF+REZ+AB ARAET
600,000,000 Z B R _E_TF+—HB_+H
H> BREREESZDITHEEAABRSE KT
45,227,0008% BB 9N AR 15 ©

HE TERIEIRF+ A=+ —HILLE
f’ilt,m?f%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%EE’]E}HXEZK%%‘J%%ET’EHﬂ.ﬁ
By2THRAEERBE_S_—FER_Z_EF
TR+ —HLEFETEETEMEEHRTEE

e

BREXREERAN DU TEETE

2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTT AR®BF T
Earnings bl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the BHA T EEEHIFAE AELEF
parent 3,274,774 3,127,526
Number of shares
KRH&E
2020
20205
Shares B3
Weighted average number of ordinary FABRTEBERMEFEHE
shares in issue during the year 4,045,227,000 3,509,790,134
Earnings per share SEREA
Basic and diluted BEARKRES RMBO.81 yuan RMBO0.89 yuan
AR #0.817T AR 1508975
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. YME -BERSE

31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020 and

2021412831H

1R2020E12831H K

Buildings

BF
RMB'000
AEBTR

Office

equipment

Motor and electronic
devices
MARER
_E EFRE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTT AE¥TRT

vehicles

Leasehold
improvements
HEMZ
%18
RMB'000
AEBTT

Total

it
RMB'000
ARBFR

1 January 2021: 20211818 -

Cost [H% 429,909 143,640 77,478 73,564 724,591

Accumulated depreciation RHinE (125,027) (128,620) (58,280) (58,132) (370,059)
Net carrying amount REFE 304,882 15,020 19,198 15,432 354,532
At 1 January 2021, net of 2011818

accumulated depreciation NBREHNE 304,882 15,020 19,198 15,432 354,532

Additions RE 192,603 3,576 13,371 2,559 212,109

Disposals HE - (1,004) (270) - (1,274)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMBAR (Hz39) - (64) (216) (2,777) (3,057)

Depreciation provided during FREERENE

the year (note 6) (Bt &%6) (25,717) (2,589) (7,457) (8,373) (44,136)

At 31 December 2021, net of 120215128318

accumulated depreciation NBRENE 471,768 14,939 24,626 6,841 518,174
At 31 December 2021: 120214128318 :

Cost A 622,512 141,551 88,177 72,218 924,458

Accumulated depreciation RHinE (150,744) (126,612) (63,551) (65,377) (406,284)
Net carrying amount REFE 471,768 14,939 24,626 6,841 518,174

202 zimiEmR (EE) BRAS 2021558



13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2021

2021412831H

13. ME -BERRE @

Office
equipment
Motor and electronic Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices improvements Total
MARER HEME
15 pat::! BETHE Bi& st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR AREBTR ARETxR
31 December 2020 20205128318
At 31 December 2019 and 12019F12831H K
1 January 2020: 2020F1818 -
Cost A 429,909 147,161 69,802 61,861 708,733
Accumulated depreciation Ritie (108,223) (127,919) (53,454) (43,840) (333,436)
Net carrying amount REZE 321,686 19,242 16,348 18,021 375,297
At 1 January 2020, net of 12020F 1818
accumulated depreciation NBRENE 321,686 19,242 16,348 18,021 375,297
Additions wE - 2,541 9,954 15,676 28,171
Disposals HE - (2,922) (262) - (3,184)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEREB AR - - 20 = 20
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR - - (36) (958) (994)
Depreciation provided during FREBERTE
the year (note 6) (Bt 36) (16,804) (3,841) (6,826) (17,307) (44,778)
At 31 December 2020, net of 120206128318
accumulated depreciation NBRENE 304,882 15,020 19,198 15,432 354,532
At 31 December 2020: 122020128318
Cost A 429,909 143,640 77478 73,564 724,591
Accumulated depreciation RHinE (125,027) (128,620) (58,280) (58,132) (370,059)
Net carrying amount REFE 304,882 15,020 19,198 15,432 354,532
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAF5 R R BT 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  13. ¥ B E K=& HE (&)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's property, plant and equipment R2021F 1283 1B AEEREEEAARE
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB8,406,000 (2020: 8,406,0007T (20204 : AR 124,049,0007T) B9¥) % ~ B&
RMB24,049,000) have been pledged to secure bank and other EEREZEEEH AXEREENETREMMER
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31). TEIRIR (MI5E31) ©
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's property, plant and equipment R2021F12B3 1 H AEEBRKREDEAARE
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB22,865,000 (2020: 22,865,0007T (20204 : A #523,468,0007T) RI¥) 2
RMB23,468,000) have been pledged to secure asset-backed securities BERZECDER  AXRERNEERIESES/EE
granted to the Group (note 32). (FF5E32) ©
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REME
Under
construction Completed Total
T2 BT st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARH#FT ARHEFT
Carrying amount at F220208F1 B1HBY
1 January 2020 BREE 773,000 9,733,200 10,506,200
Additions wnE 9,394 - 9,394
Transferred [SF=kc (140,394) 140,394 S
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ‘A {EBEEFT ST F 48 22,100 414,906 437,006
Carrying amount at 72020F12831H K
31 December 2020 and 20211 B HBEREE
1 January 2021 664,100 10,288,500 10,952,600
Additions NE 190,198 - 190,198
Transfer from properties under B EREPYE
development (note 20) (FFzE20) 2,140,016 - 2,140,016
Transferred B (2,330,214) 2,330,214 =
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ‘A {EHEEFT U 348 11,600 645,386 656,986
Carrying amount at 720215 12831HBY
31 December 2021 IREE 675,700 13,264,100 13,939,800

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China.
The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2021 based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at RMB13,939,800,000 (2020: RMB10,952,600,000). The
Group's senior finance manager and the Group's financial controller
decide, after approval from the board of directors of the Company,
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group's senior finance manager has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation

results when the valuations are performed for financial reporting.

204 iR (M) BRAS 2021558

AEBNREYEMNRFPEAM KEBNKREY
=D ERBIUIEXESERMGEMPEIITEETG
KABHABRAR (THPEHITI) BFFE®H2021F128
31EEEA AR K13,939,800,0007T (202045 @ AR
10,952,600,0007T) ° 7= £ @AY = 4R B 75 45 38 s £ (&1 BA
BHRERANBEEGH ERATCS IS HER
BEAERYENIISHE REZLEGTETHA
A BE BIMKEEREEEEE AEENS
R BEREEAGEMMETHEREGENGHE
BRRKRGEGERE TR



14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB4,475,500,000 (2020:
RMB3,091,386,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB8,351,000,000 (2020:
RMB5,064,000,000) were pledged to asset-backed securities granted to
the Group (note 32).

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's investment properties:

Recurring fair value measurement for: MU TEEETH
REEATEHE !

14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

REME @

R2021F 1283 1B AEBBAEEEANARE
4,475,500,00075 (20204 : AR #3,091,386,0007T) A%
BYEBER AREREZNETREMMERE
IR (FF5E31) ©

R2021F 1283 1B AEBEEEEEAARE
8,351,000,0007T (20204 @ A R #§5,064,000,0007T) HI#&
EYMECER AXEBENEERIPESERT
£¥32) ©

AFERR
TRAPFEBMRENENATEHEER

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2021 using
#2021 12A31 B EANUT RN AT EHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RiER EXARR EAFAER

B HRE BAHE BAME

(B4 (E=8) (E=%) it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETFRT ARBTT ARBTT

Commercial properties [EESUES
under construction TE = = 675,700 675,700
completed E®T - - 13,264,100 13,264,100
- - 13,939,800 13,939,800
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MIEE

31 December 2021

20215128318

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. BREYE @
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) REBERBR (@

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 using

R2020E 12831 BERU T RN AT EE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIER BAOBRE EAFIEER
MHNRE BAE BAYE
E—H (BEZHR) (BE=%H) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTTR

Recurring fair value measurement for: AU TEBEETHN
TEMEATEHNE:
Commercial properties mENE
under construction £E S - 664,100 664,100
completed E®T - - 10,288,500 10,288,500
- - 10,952,600 10,952,600
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RAEAFE F—HREF_HELTEATETFEN
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 S NEERARNEHEZR (20205 1 F) o
(2020: Nil).
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key UTAREMEGEMANGERMTEIZEHALK
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: BHE

Range or weighted average
31 December

HEgMETH
128318

2021
20214

RMB0.1-19.3
ARB0ATE
AR#1937T

RMB9,559-9,852
AE#9,559TE
AR #9,8527T




14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined
using the income approach by taking into account the rental income
of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable
in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market has also been considered.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease/increase in the
fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value of commercial properties under construction which are
at the initial construction stage is determined using the asset-based
method. The asset-based method is to use the market comparison
method to evaluate the fair value of the land use right and consider the
book value of the construction and installation costs incurred to obtain
the fair value of the project under construction.

A higher expected value would result in a higher fair value of these
investment properties under construction at the initial construction
stage.

14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

REME @

DT ERER (B
BRIEEVENATFTENERAREEEE HE
REBSHAURBHEMNSER,WEREWH LY
WE R EBEE WA - BERBENERWAE
FEELE LERBENEACRETEARLN
EEATE EBEEBRT TBEEZESEHEMTS
AIELEBRIHESRS

HEtASEAAREN BB ERREYENA
TEKREBIEIM, R EARICERBIE M H K E
BIREMEN R TFEKREBRLD G-

EREBEYPENRATFERERVAEREERRE
HEE  -HERER AR EA TS L BUA R G LM (E
RAENATE TEEZRERKIZEEERANER
EENESEREENATE

ZETEREMENERVAKBRNREREES
AR TEES-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FEFRaR Md oE

31 December 2021

20215128318

15. LEASES 15. &
The Group as a lessee TEBEAERBEA
The Group has lease contracts for office buildings. Lump sum payments AEBERRLAERBTFHESN -BIRAMEFE —X %
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with IHUAEFWERE 1t AEAA40E505 > MR
lease periods of 40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be BzELtMBEENKRIO BT SEEZMERMRIE
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings MAEBFNEPBEEAS 1B FE - PRERFENMAE
generally have lease terms between 1 and 5 years. Office equipment BEANEAFIUT R/ HEFEERERE—
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually fEmE AEBFTRAEREUMANTEEZR D
of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and HEEE-

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) 1EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the FEBFANFEAREENREERESHNT .
movements during the year are as follows:
Land use Office
rights buildings Total
T fE R YN wat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 12020F1818 100,379 33,349 133,728
Additions NE - 14,159 14,159
Depreciation charge (note 6) WEER (fF:Ee) (3,170) (23,532) (26,702)
As at 31 December 2020 and 120205128318 %

1 January 2021 2021F1818 97,209 23,976 121,185
Additions NE 680,351 17,375 697,726
Disposal HE - (2,290) (2,290)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMBAR (MizE39) = (1,444) (1,444)
Depreciation charge (note 6) TEER (sko) (14,781) (21,627) (36,408)
As at 31 December 2021 120215128318 762,779 15,990 778,769

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's land use rights with an R2021F 1283 1H REBBKREEBEANAR
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB676,666,000 "2676,666,0007 (20204 : A R #§4,624,0007T) BY
(2020: RMB4,624,000) were pledged to secure bank and other THIERAEEER AAEEERNRITRE
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31). SRR (f5E31) ©

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's land use rights with an R2021F128318 AEBBEEEEAART
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB19,703,000 19,703,0007T (20204F : A R #20,302,0007T) B9 £
(2020: RMB20,302,000) were pledged to asset-backed securities MEREEEH  ARERNESERPESE
granted to the Group (note 32). 3 (MI5E32) ©
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15. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

15. 8 @)
REBEAXKEAN @)

(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FERNHESENREERESHNT :
during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 1A 1 HREREE 23,039 32,611
New leases wEE 17,375 14,159
Disposal HE (2,296) =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMWRBAT (MzE39) (1,409) =
Accretion of interest recognised FRERIF B IE 0
during the year (note 7) (F35%7) 1,552 2,170
Payments (NEN (21,310) (25,901)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12B31BMEREE 16,951 23,039
Analysed into: aLirI
Current portion BREAER 7 11,618 15,637
Non-current portion JEBPERER 3 5,333 7,402
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45 to HESENRE D TILER M HRRMEE45 -
the financial statements.
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) BEEAEEREmARISENT

(c)

leases are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEaEF R (E7) 1,552 2,170
Depreciation charge of FRAEEENERS
right-of-use assets (note 6) (ffFsEe) 36,408 26,702
Expense relating to short-term SIS HRE B R RNAEX
leases (note 6) (MyzEe) 2,155 3,241
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEEHERRANMES
low-value assets (note 6) (M z¥6) 1,341 527
Total amount recognised in R AR IBAE RS
profit or loss 41,456 32,640
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MIEE

31 December 2021

20215128318

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. & (@)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEAEBEAN (8)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 37(c) and 45, respectively, to the
financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB397,061,000

(d) MERSHRHEERANRMEHRNBEEHHN
RRBERE DA BN M FRRW 370K
450

TEBEAHBA
AEERELEHEZHIHAEREDE (M
14) cFAEBER—RERBL L TIRFRSTIREE
RERDERIHESETTHBEE AEEBER
BERBEEIRA A ARBE397,061,0007T (20204 @ A
FE#336,613,00070) > EEEBH PP RERM 55

(2020: RMB336,613,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

R2021F 128318 AEER BB BERBEEHAERE A
AR EHENREBRMIBAERENT -

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®F AR®BTFT

Within one year —&FR 469,583 373,354
After one year but within two years —E L EBEREMUR 410,551 337,388
After two years but within three years MEUEB=ZEMUR 404,250 276,198
After three years but within four years —F U EBEFEMUA 354,867 319,172
After four years but within five years mEM EBRFUR 223,366 184,218
After five years EEME 418,584 407,146

2,281,201 1,897,476




16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. E.EE

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBEF T
Software
At 1 January IERN=!
Cost D% 36,582 34,021
Accumulated amortisation B (18,973) (15,745)
Cost at 1 January, net of P1A1B8R A
accumulated amortisation R R 5T o 17,609 18,276
Additions 4,999 2,624
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR - @3n
Amortisation provided during FEREEERE
the year (note 6) (FFz¥6) (3,835) (3,260)
At 31 December ®128318 18,773 17,609
Cost 41,569 36,582
Accumulated amortisation KRty (22,796) (18,973)
Net carrying amount IREFE 18,773 17,609
17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REETENRKE
2021 2020
20214 20206
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx AREBTT
Share of net assets DMEEERE 3,068,915 2,461,115

The Group's receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are
disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.

HiRRMIEE420

FEERSE R FEN BB RENRIEG R EN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) REETENKRE @)

@k"@gﬁ

‘fi* &*’r

50.00%

(@) Particulars of the Group's material joint ventures are as follows: (@ AEBTESEGEMNFBOT -
Statutory
percentage of
Nominal ownership
value of interest
Place and year of registered attributable  Principal
Name of companies registration share capital to the Group  activity
FEEEL
3T FRA RN
RELTE SRS R AR WEE EEBSL EEEH
(RMB’000)
(AR¥T7T)
Yangzhou Qihui Real Estate Co,, Ltd. Yangzhou, PRC 2017 100,000 18.98% Property development
("Yangzhou Qihui") FRED 3 20176 e
HBNEEEEFRAS*
(M5 N BE))
Hunan Jindafa Real Estate Co., Ltd. Changsha, PRC 2012 100,000 50.00% Property development
("Hunan Jindafa") R R 20125 e
HEREEEHEBRAR
(FHmtREE))
Lianyungang Qihui Real Estate Co., Lianyungang, 413,000 50.00%  Property development
Ltd. ("Lianyungang Qihui”) PRC 2019 L EL S
BEEEREREMEREERAF R & 20194
(MEEERE))
Nanjing Qianjing Properties Nanjing, PRC 2015 170,000 60.00%  Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. R R20155 MR
(“Nanjing Qianjing Properties”)
EREREMEREERAR
(BRZaREME))
Fuqing, PRC 2014 50,000 50.00%  Property development

MERE

Property development

ESE




17.
(a)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group's material joint ventures are as follows:
(Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

17. REEEENKRE @

(a)

FEBMTECELENFBOT | (@

Statutory
percentage of
Nominal ownership
value of interest
Place and year of registered attributable  Principal
Name of companies registration share capital to the Group  activity
FEEEMN
ERTE FRE RN
REATHE B S0 HEE FEBSL  FEEH
(RMB’000)
(AR¥F )

Chongging Jinbi Yaju Properties Chongging, PRC 2017 450,000 34.00%  Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. FEEBEE20174 MERR
(“Chongqing Jinbi Yaju Properties”)

ERCERERMERERIREAT
(EESEREEHME))

Fuzhou Zexiang Properties Fuzhou, PRC 2016 50,000 34.00%  Property development

Development Co,, Ltd. HEIEM 20165

(“Fuzhou Zexiang")
BN EDNEMEREERAS
(MRmEH)

Pursuant to the investment framework agreement and the
articles of association of these companies, all shareholder
resolutions of these companies shall be resolved by all
shareholders on a unanimous basis. Therefore, these companies
were accounted for as joint ventures of the Group during the
year.

Pursuant to the investment framework agreement and
the articles of association of this company, all shareholder
resolutions of Yangzhou Qihui shall be resolved by all
shareholders on a unanimous basis. Therefore, this entity was
accounted for as a joint venture of the Group by holding
an 18.98% equity interest in it during the reporting period.
Meanwhile, according to the contract between the Group and
the other equity interest holders of Yangzhou Qihui (“Contract
A") and the profit sharing arrangement stated in Contract A, the
Group is entitled to 50% returns from some specified assets, and
according to IAS 28, the Group recognised the share of profit or
loss of Yangzhou Qihui under the equity method.

Chongging Jinjiahe Properties is considered as a material
joint venture of the Group, which co-develops a property
development project with the other joint venture partner in
Mainland China and the joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method.

MERE

REZFATNREERBEREAREEH
8 ZERBNFAAERIAZERELHBRE
—HRE-FHIt ZFEABDRERNARIAE
EENGERHE-

BEBEZABNKREER G AASZEMA
BINBENFAERRAZERTEE2BRER—
BORE At ZERNBREHANARIBA
EENGERRE  AEERFHEH1898%KRE-
FEF BB ERRGMNEENEMRIERA
ANFTUMEHN TEHA)) REHARRERF
Bolzih AERARNETREEERS
50%[0l#k - BREEIR & StAERIF285%  AEME
AR AR E NGB INBIEN R -

EESERBHERGAAETIERNEEZGED
FoHEPBRMEMSECESBHRAME—
EYEREEE 2T X IREZEA
iR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

17. REEEENKRE @

by &

information of Chongging Jinjiahe Properties:

TRITEESERFMENVBEREE

2021 2020
20214 20206
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBEF T
Cash and cash equivalents REeERRSEEBY 11,039 36,859
Other current assets HtREhEE 4,965,920 6,280,812
Current assets BB E 4,976,959 6,317,671
Non-current assets ERBEE 73,506 74,702
Current liabilities mEAaE (2,559,780) (3,289,276)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding  JERBI&MEE  FTEEEZ &
trade and other payables and provisions HAMEI RIS R (958) (508,348)
Net assets BEEFE 2,489,727 2,594,749
Reconciliation to the Group's interest BAREBEREELEN
in the joint venture: R HER
Proportion of the Group's ownership KEBEBFTA LA 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the joint KEENEEEREESEFRE
venture 1,219,966 1,271,427
Revenue & 750,390 2,485,235
Expenses 352 (753,495) (1,041,675)
Tax RIE (101,917) (408,787)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (B8 H5F (105,022) 1,034,773
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FER2mE (B1E) WA 4%
for the year (105,022) 1,034,773

214 zmEmR (Em) BRAT 2021558



17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Fuging Jinhui and Yangzhou Qihui for the year

ended 31 December 2020:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

7. REELENRE @

)

i3

k) (4

TRITEBEZIERIZMNEIER E E 2020412
B31HILEEENMBENETE

Fuging Yangzhou
Jinhui Qihui
BAEE M B E
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARSTT AR®BF T
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERRSEEBY 280,515 63,801
Other current assets HtREhEE 548,597 415,761
Current assets BB E 829,112 479,562
Non-current assets ERBEE 254,545 79
Current liabilities mEAaR (276,957) (300,963)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding  JERBI&MEE  FTEEEZ &
trade and other payables and provisions Hh &R IE K (271,600) =
Net asset BEFE 535,100 178,678
Reconciliation to the Group's interest BAREEREGELENERER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REEFTEHES LA 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the joint KEENEEELEEEFRE
venture 267,550 89,339
Revenue Wz 2,110,401 885,632
Expenses (553 (1,084,062) (600,234)
Tax RIE (488,908) (109,925)
Profit for the year FER T 537,431 175,473
Total comprehensive income FRNEZEUIALREE
for the year 537,431 175473
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17. REETLENKRE @

(0 The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (@© TRITAEBLIFEHBEANEGEREN
information of the Group's joint ventures that are not EHMBER
individually material:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTFT
Share of the joint ventures’ profits PMEEEEEFRRENRETE
and losses for the year 149,827 129,042
Share of the joint ventures’ total DMEEERESEBALE
comprehensive income 149,827 129,042
Aggregate carrying amount of REBREESEEREN
the Group's investments in the HEEREE
joint ventures 1,848,949 832,799
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no KNBEERA AREGERENKEWRIDA
provision for impairment is necessary as at 31 December A2 E s 2021 FE 12831 HER SRR
2021 as the investments in joint ventures are considered fully EEE (20205 | ) - AERENRZSEUBER
recoverable (2020: Nil). The joint ventures have been accounted RANFERAEREAR

for using the equity method in these financial statements.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18.
2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTT AR®BTF T
Share of net assets DMEEEFE 5,395,080 4,911,875
The Group's receivable and payable balances with associates are AEBHEBE QDR R ENRIBEREENT

disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements. IR MIEE420
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEHEATRIIRE (@
(@) Particulars of the Group's material associates are as follows: @) XAEEEAMEATNFHEBEUWT :
Nominal Statutory
value of percentage of
registered ownership interest
Place and year of share attributable  Principal
Name of companies registration capital to the Group  activity
FEBERS
SRR FRE M
GE S S R ER HEE EERAL TEED
(RMB'000)
AEBTF)
Hangzhou Xinjianhui Industrial Co,, Ltd. Hangzhou, PRC 2017 2,500,000 51.00% Investment
("Hangzhou Xinjianhui’) HEIIN201748E management
NMNERBEEERAT REER
(MM E e
Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu Real Estate Co,, Ltd. Chengdu, PRC 2017 900,000 50.00%  Property
(‘Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu’) IR #2017 development
HERERFERERAT MERE
(TH#RIEET)
Nanjing Hongrun Properties Development Co,, Ltd. Nanjing, PRC 2019 750,000 49.00%  Property
(*Nanjing Hongrun Properties’) FEIRR20195F development
ERAEREHERERRAT WERE
(MErehEEHE))
Taicang Huiyao Properties Development Co, Ltd. Taicang, PRC 2017 700,000 49.00%  Property
(‘Taicang Huiyao Properties") FEKXA2017EF development
XEEREHEREBRAT MERE
(TKREREHE))
Fuging Maohui Real Estate Co, Ltd. Fuging, PRC 2018 30,000 49.00%  Property
(‘Fuging Maohui") HEEE2018E development
BAREEEXRRAR MERE
(MEERE))
Xi'an Jihua Real Estate Co, Ltd. Xi'an, PRC 2017 50,000 51.00%  Property
(Xi'an Jihua") HEFRZ017E development
BRREELERAT MERE
(MERRE)
Fuging Maojin Properties Development Co,, Ltd. Fuging, PRC 2018 200,000 49.00%  Property
("Fuging Maojin Properties’) HEIRIE20185 development
BEREEHERERRAT MEEE
(MBEREZREHE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BRI EE

31 December 2021

20214128318

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Group's material associates are as follows:
(Continued)

*1

*2

Pursuant to the articles of association, the other shareholder
of Hangzhou Xinjianhui has been entitled to 51% of the voting
power by holding 49% of equity interests in it, which was
negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The Group only has
significant influence on this entity as the other shareholder of
Hangzhou Xinjianhui has the enough voting power to control
and operate this entity. Thus, Hangzhou Xinjianhui is accounted
for as an associate by the Group by holding 51% of equity
interests in it.

Pursuant to the articles of association, the other shareholder
of Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu has been entitled to 51% of the
voting power by holding 50% of equity interests in it, which
was negotiated and agreed by all shareholders. The Group only
has significant influence on this entity as the other shareholder
of Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu has the enough voting power to
control and operate this entity. Thus, Chengdu Ronghui Qiaoyu
is accounted for as an associate by the Group by holding 50% of
equity interests in it.

Hangzhou Xinjianhui is considered as a material associate of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, which co-
develops a property development project with other associate
partners in Mainland China and the associate is accounted for
using the equity method.

18. MEHEATNRE @)
AEEEABEATNEEDT | (@)

(a)

(b)

*1

*2

RIBFABERMEI MNSEBENEMRER
ZHES 1% RN ER H49%09 R ThHE
E2EREEERE AEEEHREREES
EARED EMNEEBENEMRRES
EHNRERZEG REEZER - FIL > Hu
EEEBARYAFEEIFE H51 %R ENTE
SIS

REBARSRMA RBRIBEFOE MR
B A51000 % TR AL B HLS0%B R T
HREREEERT AEEEYREEE
BEAVES ARSHEBTHEMRE
BEEHNREREHREEREE - Ei
PR AR BRI B 5 A BR 51 4 2 8 B 57 ELS0%BR 1
B AT o

WINEZEREBENEZE2021F12831HIEEEHER
AREEBNSEABEAD HEREAMEM
MEBEERRE—EYEREER ZHE
NEVUREREAR.




18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEEATINIIRE (@)

(b)

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of Hangzhou Xinjianhui:

by (&

TRITMMNBERZENT BERRE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARSTT AR®BF T

Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEBY 247,734 17,253
Other current assets Hfneh&EE 2,089,426 5,321,027
Current assets TMENEE 2,337,160 5,338,280
Non-current assets ERBEE 61 64
Current liabilities mEaE (150,039) (491,337)

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding

trade and other

FRBTHER TEEESE K
HAME A IR R

payables and provisions - (2,898,000)
Net asset BEZE 2,187,182 1,949,007
Reconciliation to the Group's MAEERKBEARNERLER !

interest in the associate:

Proportion of the Group's ownership NEMMPTILEER LG 51% 51%
Group's share of net assets of AEMOEHE AR EEFE

the associate 1,115,463 993,994
Revenue I &8 3,751,141 567
Expenses 5 (3,531,059) (288,122)
Tax HiE - -
Profit/(loss) for the year EPER (B18) 220,082 (287,555)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEREEBA S (B518) 4858

for the year 220,082 (287,555)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEHEATRIIRE (@

() Fuging Maohui Properties is considered as a material associate (© @BAXEBERMEREZE2021F12831HIEFE
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, which co- WERKTEENBERBE QT HEPEAM
develops a property development project with other associate HMMERHEERRE—EMEREES  Z
partners in Mainland China and the associate is accounted for BE AR UBRIAALR

using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIITRERIEBEEMENTHERBE .
information of Fuging Maohui Properties:

2021

20214

RMB’000

ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 91,044
Other current assets HtREh&EE 909,805
Current assets MEEE 1,000,849
Non-current assets ERBEE 58
Current liabilities mEaE (488,834)

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade ~ JEREBIEMEE > FEEES &

and other payables and provisions HMEARIE R B E -
Net assets BEEFE 512,073
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the MAREBMPEERATNERHIR

associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBPIGHEB LA 49%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REBMOLHE AR EEFE 250,916
Carrying amount of the investment KENREE
Revenue it 2,767,320
Expenses F (1,992,605)
Tax G (262,641)
Profit for the year FANEEE 512,074
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEUALEZE 512,074
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not individually
material:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

18. MBEQARTNKE @
@) TFRIFAEELIFENBEANHEADN

Share of the associates’ profits and losses
for the year

Share of the associates’ total comprehensive 3l A B 2|
WA (B518) 4838
FEERBHERTIREN

income/(loss)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the associates

BIREE

DIEHERBFERNEN KEE

EHPTBEER

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREF T
277,924 (35,866)
277,924 (35,866)

4,028,701 3,917,881

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2021
as the investments in associates are considered fully recoverable
(2020: Nil). The associates have been accounted for using the
equity method in these financial statements.

AABEBRA ARHEATDNKREWIA
AsE2 e MR 2021FE 12831 HEFRHER
EEE (20208 1 D) -HEABDNRZEMHER
RAFERAERIEAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

19. DEFERRED TAX 19. IRIEFRIR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are RENBLERBEEEREBNESHNT :
as follows:
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE &
Fair value

Losses  adjustments

available  arising from Expenses Unrealised
for offsetting financial ~ for offsetting revenue
against future assets against future  Impairment in contract Accrued Lease
taxable profits at FVTPL taxable profits of assets liabilities LAT liabilities Total
RATEHA
AHEE  EENER HERE
FRESH  EEEEN  ERREN EELEL FEst L3t
HHOER  ATERE MBI BERE RERKE 1BER HEAR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETz ARWTR ARETT ARETE:

At 1 January 2020 #2020&E1 818 187,731 - 441451 132,406 1,648,669 463417 8152 2,881,826
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR - - - - 2359 - = 23,590
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAT - - - - (37,693) - = (37,693)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) £/t A/ (NBRE) BEH

to profit or loss during EERIE (H3210)

the year (note 10) 14,800 - (203,470) (10,545) 430,483 153,549 (2,393 382,424

At 31 December 2020 and 1R2020F128318 K&
1 January 2021 20211818 202,531 - 237,981 121,861 2,065,049 616,966 5,759 3,250,147

Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT (M339)
(note 39) = = = - (86,034) - - (86,034)
Deferred t‘ax credited/( charged ) ERFA/ ( iﬂ KE) ?ﬁfmﬂ‘]

(28,324) (21,023) 10,969 (53,419) 184,764 92,805

174,207 216,958 132,830 1,925,596 801,730 X 3,256,918




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) EFEM IR (18)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are RERRERBE EREBNESHMT | (@
as follows: (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities ERIEAR
Fair value
adjustments
Fair value arising from
adjustments Fair value business
arising from  adjustments combinations
Accrued financial ~ arising from and costs Depreciation
financial assets  investment to obtain of investment Right-of-
income at FVTPL properties contracts properties use assets Total
RATE EBaH
SAREMN EEH
SRIEE REWE ATESRE
EEW EEH  RERGEH
EsHBRA ATFERE ATERE WEE REVERE FHAEEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT
t 1 January 2020 1202051818 49,301 755 1,508,109 1,155,334 85,448 7977 2,806,924
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERB A - - - 67,190 - - 67,190
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - (6,346) - - (6,346)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged R GA) /NBREREY
to profit or loss during the year BIERIE (H5E10)
(note 10) (4,950) (19 101,201 (140,213) 8,385 (1,999) (37,595)
At 31 December 2020 and 12020812831 B R20211 818
1 January 2021 44,351 736 1,609,310 1,075,965 93,833 5,978 2,830,173
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) ~ HEMBAR] (HizE39) = = = (10,916) = - (10,916)
Deferred tax (credited)/charged ERGIA) /NBEEEN
to profit or loss during the year IEIERIA (HaE10)
(note 10) 101,344 (736) 162,186 (187,801) 40,413 (1,408) 113,998
At 31 December 2021 120218128318 145,695 - 1,771,496 877,248 134,246 4,570 2,933,255
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M F5 IR R MIEE

31 December 2021

20215128318
19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 19. IRIEFRIE (48)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities THEFMES > £EEAARE311,928,0007T (20205 © A
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position K #6365,857,0007T) W& TIRIEMRMBEEERBEERN
amounting to RMB311,928,000 (2020: RMB365,857,000). The following GEMBRARNIBEHE UTARTHERIRENDN
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting EERMRIBAGER DT -
purposes:
2021 2020
20214 20208
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the R E B R R AERHN
consolidated statement of financial position FIERIES EFE 2,944,990 2,884,290
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REZE BRI RRAEDH
consolidated statement of financial position IRIETRIE & EF 5R (2,621,327) (2/464,316)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for
the expansion of the Group's operation, so it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB1,495,505,000 (2020: RMB1,002,393,000).

224 EeR (EE) 5RAT 20215ER

RIB(CPEARKENEACERER L) EHEAMAK
UM ERECERBIMNEEEE RN EKEU
T0%RITEIOIR - AR E H2008E 1 B 1 HEEER L EA
F22007F 12831 BB EEBNRF o i &0 B Py ith 2232 56
REEEMESAHEBIERWHBE I XRBARK
FENME - REENBARER 0% AL KEE
BARZETETERME LB AR M BE2008FE181
HIEEENRBAT IR IR B AMTEINRM -

FR2021F12A3 1B M AR B RAEBERAEH
P B 3L BB B A B BB A TBIN M I R BB B A FE
BN REREAEEREB A AR ERERTA
AEENESTHMIEEAERNKCEMNRAER
HRE > WEZEWNBRANAIERREKAOTFEDIK
B RARF o B2 0 i FE 0 4R JE R T8 & 18 Y 1 B P9 B
BAEANKEMBENEREREEEAENARK
1,495,505,0007T (20204 : A R #51,002,393,0007C) ©



19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WA TIIEERDIELERIBEE :

20.

following items:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

19. IRIEMIA (48)

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARHEFTT

Tax losses RIEEE 2,907,463 2,102,503

Deductible temporary differences AR R RS 526,391 87,872

3,433,854 2,190,375
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the i BEREMIBR R ] SE B B R RERREN &R >
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future A g LA TR TE A 1B SRR IE TR TE & A& © 122021
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not F12831H ZEB W EFA AR K2,907,463,00070
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB726,866,000 (2020: (20204 : AEE#2,102,503,0007T) BIK5 1B R SRR IE
RMB525,626,000) in respect of losses amounting to approximately MBEBEENARN726,866,0007T (20205 © AR
RMB2,907,463,000 (2020: RMB2,102,503,000), that can be carried 525,626,00070) * %2 L 1B 0] T 45 B LUK SH R SR FE R
forward to offset against future taxable income. These tax losses will RUA - ZEMBEBBE DB REZE202258 2023
expire up to and including years 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025 and 2026. FE 20244 ~ 2025F Fe20265F (M EIEZEFE) Eme

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. FAEPYE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARSTT AR®BTF T

At the beginning of the year REY) 103,990,664 86,103,704

Additions NE 38,650,262 49,871,998

Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE Y S A B = 1,673,716

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEWBAR (FzE39) (2,350,200) (2,993,257)

Transferred to investment properties

BEERBEYE (5514)

(note 14) (2,140,016)
Transferred to completed properties held EBRERFHEMNE T Y=

for sale (note 21) (M$5E21) (31,764,839) (30,712,120)
Impairment losses (note 6) AR (Fiste) (410,425) (155,979)
Impairment losses transferred to completed EEEFEHENBETYE

properties held for sale (note 21) HEEE (MsE21) 133,257 202,602
At the end of the year REXR 106,108,703 103,990,664
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M F5 IR R MIEE

31 December 2021
20215128318

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under
development are as follows:

20.

REPYE @
PRSP R AR NEHNT

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTT AR®BTF T

At the beginning of the year JiEE=)| (222,788) (269,411)

Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERREERE (fzte) (410,425) (155,979)
Impairment losses transferred to completed BEEREFHENBTYE

properties held for sale (note 21) HERE (EE21) 133,257 202,602

At the end of the year REX (499,956) (222,788)

The Group's properties under development are situated on leasehold
lands in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB55,611,076,000
(2020: RMB56,091,133,000) were pledged to secure bank and other

REENFEPYEARPREAMIBEE LM Lo

R2021F 1283 1B AEBEEEEENOARE
55,611,076,0007T ( 20204 : AR #556,091,133,0007T) HY

borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

21.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

ETHEMYEEER REEEERNRITRA
fthERIEIRIR (FIEE31) ©

21. HIFLEBRIVE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
At the beginning of the year REY) 12,450,866 8,884,710
Transferred from properties under development — #23% B B3¢ ch# 2 (F5E£20)
(note 20) 31,764,839 30,712,120
Transferred to cost of inventories sold HSEPEEFEEMA (iske)
(note 6) (31,537,705) (26,796,159)
Impairment losses transferred from PRSP YENRERE
properties under development (note 20) (Ff5%20) (133,257) (202,602)
Impairment losses (note 6) HEEE (Miste) (298,081) (147,203)
At the end of the year REXR 12,246,662 12,450,866
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21.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties
held for sale are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

1. HEHEBETYE @)

FEHEERTIY R RMERFNESUT !

2021 2020

20214 20208

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARHEFT

At the beginning of the year REY) (546,357) (523,781)

Impairment losses transferred to cost of sales B HE AR B R 1E 172,209 327,229
Impairment losses transferred from B ERERYENRERE

properties under development (note 20) (Ff35%£20) (133,257) (202,602)

Impairment losses recognised BEREEEE (298,081) (147,203)

At the end of the year REXR (805,486) (546,357)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's completed properties held
for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB706,730,000 (2020: RMB118,586,000) were pledged to secure bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

The value of completed properties held for sale was assessed at the
end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
market price less applicable selling expenses.

R2021F 12831 H AEBHEEEESNNARE
706,730,0007¢ (20204 : AR #118,586,0007T) BIFF(E
HEBRIYXBEER AAEEERNBITRE
MEFREIRIR (FI5E31) ©

FEHEBSERIYMENBEN SRS R M
SREEBAREAZREEFE AERCHE T2RF
EESEERENHENHEEERAERNEER
MHEE e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

=71 e

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFT ARBTT

Trade receivables B 5 EWIaE 54,720 24,890

Impairment AE (1,253) (699)
53,467 24,191

The Group's trade receivables primarily consist of receivables from its
property sales and property lease. Proceeds from property sales and
property lease are generally received in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements. Trade receivables
are settled based on the progress payment schedule stipulated
in the contract. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

FEENESRURETZOSREEYEHERK
MEBERWRIE - REMEHERYEBENMR
BRIEE B R EE B 1732 R E R IR R UCER 8 WK
BRBEENIANEEXIRERER ~EER
NBRBERIRUE 2 BURRIER R A 5 G
REERARRERE BREEASEHRIASR
BER - BN EXFItBEAEENE 5 BURRIES K
REFRAEF TEEREPHNEERR AEET
BERHEBRRBEEHFATARMRNEMERER
FHEN - B 2 EUGRIEL T &S

REBSHRENERARRINIRGEREENEZE
WRRIERIBRES DATIN T ¢

2021 2020
20214 20206

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®BTFT

Within 1 year —FE DA 40,279 13,826
1 to 3 years =%= 9,214 9,655
Over 3 years el e 3,974 710
53,467 24,191
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

22. B5EUWGRIE (@)
B 2RI ES REEETNT

2021 2020

20214 20205

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFx AR#F T

At the beginning of the year JiEE=)| 699 1,365
Impairment losses B R 554 (666)
At the end of the year RER 1,253 699

An impairment analysis is performed at the end of each reporting
period using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021:

REREMARRBEFBEFBETREDN  UstE
BHEEBR - BEXNDENAFHLUBERIN
ZEERDEMERNIREIET - Zet B RMEAE

onEss

CERRERKESEHNENERBE

EE BRI R AARREEFRGERANGERT 5

Hihto

TREJAEEERRBERSENE ZREGRIE
BEERBRER :

RZZEZ-F+ZRA=+—H8:

Less than Over
1 year 3 years Total
—FEUA =FMUE FiH
Expected credit loss rate TEEAEERmIEX 0.6% 2.7% 15.9% 2.3%
Gross carrying amount IREARE 40,525 9,470 4,725 54,720
Expected credit losses FEHAEERIE 246 256 751 1,253
As at 31 December 2020: R_E-_EF+_HF=+—H:
Ageing
BRES
Less than 1to3 Over
1 year years 3 years Total
—E R —E=f =FEME s
Expected credit loss rate ARG ERmERE 1.6% 1.8% 29.6% 2.8%
Gross carrying amount IREAEE 14,051 9,830 1,009 24,890
Expected credit losses TEREEE1E 225 175 299 699
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M F5 IR R MIEE

31 December 2021
20215128318

23. CONTRACT COST ASSETS

23. BHRTEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AR®BTF T

Contract costs arising from the

MEHEEENSHMAE

sale of properties 945,195 771,064
Management expected that the contract acquisition costs, which EEEEAFZUECGYEHESANEERZE
represented primarily sales commission for obtaining property sale FINEHNRERABTKEIEE AEBESIRIES
contracts, are recoverable. The Group has deferred the amounts paid &R H PN RERERN G R EH ST ABa o 1R20214
and will charge them to profit or loss when the related revenue is 128318 st ABBRENEEE D A AR 581,204,000
recognised. As at 31 December 2021, the amounts charged to profit or 70 (20204 : AER"414,152,0007T) » BE M RLAS BR1E R
loss were RMB581,204,000 (2020: RMB414,152,000), and there was no B8
impairment loss in relation to the remaining balance.

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24, RIE-HthBWRHREREMEE

OTHER ASSETS

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT

Prepayments for acquisition of

BB T ARETENRIA

land use rights 1,361,750 1,961,855
Deposits for land auction THInE %S 421,608 1,197,192
Deposits related to land use rights to be jointly HE=FHERE I MERE

acquired with third parties BRANZE 735,796 564,137
Prepaid taxes and other tax recoverables FET IR IE K Eth AT Uk (a1 72 18 3,101,712 2,924,383
Other deposits Hthiz g 744,621 767,352
Prepayments for construction cost R A A TR R IE 347,449 256,546
Due from non-controlling shareholders FE YIS /B A Bl FEIE R AR R AR 1B

of the subsidiaries 7,486,528 2,318,792
Other receivables Hfih fE YR IE 492,595 467,925

14,692,059 10,458,182
Impairment A (8,231) (3,086)
14,683,828 10,455,096
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24.

25.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

The movements in provision for impairment of receivables are as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

ERIE M ERRIER EthEE

(48)

HMEWERIER BKE Tt S EEEEERAR -

FEWRIERERFHENEEMT !

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREF AREBTT

At the beginning of the year REY 3,086 2,992
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERREEE (Mfste) 5,145 94
At the end of the year REXR 8,231 3,086

The internal credit rating of amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts due from third parties and other
deposits were regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has
assessed that the credit risk of these receivables has not increased
significantly since initial recognition. The expected loss rate of
these receivables is assessed to be 0.1%. The Group has evaluated
the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount, measured the
impairment based on the 12-month expected credit losses, and
assessed that the expected credit losses were RMB8,231,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB3,086,000).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

25.

W B AR ZIEERRENRIE -BRE=ZAR
BEREMZENATEAIBRERAREER K
EECHTERERRFTEZEERR B AR
AL ANEIE N - ZE W FIEN AR I8 XA
Z01%  AEBMETEEPBEENEREE %
MEBTERREE BB ERE U ER 2021412
B31BMTEREEREA AR8,231,0007T (20204 :
A R #3,086,0007T) ©

HithEREBEE

Prepayments for equity investments IR ETEN I

2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
1,402,644 1,402,644

Fuzhou Jinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd. signed an agreement with Quanzhou
Yimin Construction Development Co., Ltd. (RMHEREER %
BAEBR/AE) ("Quanzhou Yimin") on 25 February 2016 with the
purpose of acquiring land parcels through the purchase of the equity
interest in project companies. The total agreed purchase price was
RMB2,295,000,000. According to the agreement, the Group has already
partly made the payments to bring the balance to RMB940,000,000 as
at 31 December 2021. The equity transaction has not been completed
as at 31 December 2021.

Xi‘an Jinhui Properties signed an property development cooperation
agreement with Shaanxi Shiji Chuntian Real Estate Co. Ltd. (PRt
WLEREMESBRAE)on 25 January 2017 with the purpose of
acquiring land parcels through the purchase of the equity interest in
a project company, namely Xi'an Zhencui Properties Co., Ltd. ("Xi'an
Zhencui Properties”). The total transfer price was RMB966,944,000.
According to the agreement, the Group has already partly paid the
payments to bring the balance to RMB462,643,500 as at 31 December
2021. The equity transaction has not been completed as at 31
December 2021.

BINEEBEXERADEIENTERERZRERR
N TRMER)) R2016F28258F:T— 115
NEBEBEEEADNRERBIR - HENEE
4B A AR 1E2,295,000,0007C  IRIEZHE  AEE
BEXMEORIE R2021F 12831 HREA AR
940,000,000z © j220215 12831 H IRERZ 5F 1M R 5EH ©

AZcREEMERARAHMAESRXEMERRER A
R2017F 1 B2SHEIMERZESERZ LUEB
BEEEAE IALXBEEEMERRLAS (AR
BEEME) IREWENR EEEEAARE
966,944,000Tc ° RIFEZHE  FEBEZ BN
15> 22021512831 HEREEA A R #5462,643,5007T © i?
20214F12831 H R HERZ 5 18 R SE A%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

26.

27.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

26. MAFEFABEENEMEE

2021 2020
20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT
Listed equity investments, at fair value BANFEYRZ EHRERSE 22,457 25,837
Other unlisted investments, at fair value BAFEYRZEHEMIELEHERE 161,419 118,271
183,876 144,108

Analysed into Sakiips
Current portion BRER SR 78,357 33,808
Non-current portion FEBNHRER 7> 105,519 110,300

The above equity investments at the end of the reporting period were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they
were held for trading.

The above unlisted investments at the end of the reporting period
were wealth management products issued by financial institutions in
Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

27.

LR REARORERENDFESRAFESA
BHENEREE DARSAFFESE-

LR R BRI IE LT IRE 2 B R i 5 R
BETHEMER REREGHORERLIFR
A2 RMEHNZMRIEMBH DEDHLAFEFTA
BHENERMEE-

RERFEEZFEY ZRFIRERE
BRER

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFx AR#F T

Cash and bank balances H& RIRT4 R 19,728,486 26,590,952
Less: Restricted cash B ZREIIRE 7,656,569 5,420,396
Pledged deposits BIRRER 850,000 438,433
Cash and cash equivalents B RIBEEBY 11,221,917 20,732,123

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified use. As at 31
December 2021, such restricted cash amounted to RMB6,857,996,000
(2020: RMB4,953,540,000).
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REASHFTEER AEENETREMERZ LS
BERETRERBEFENREERITEREAERER
Bof2021F12A31H ZERRHREAARKE
6,857,996,0007 (20204 : AR #4,953,540,0007T) ©



27.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted cash amounting to
RMB99,034,000 (2020: RMB30,009,000) was frozen by the People’s Court
due to lawsuits, and other restricted cash was mainly restricted due to
temporary administration issues.

As at 31 December 2021, pledged deposits of RMB850,000,000
(2020: RMB214,130,000) were pledged as security for bank and other
borrowings.

27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

RekFEZFEY ZRFIRERE
RFFER @

72021128318 > AR #99,034,0007T (20204 : AR
#30,009,0007%) BIZPR&IIR & H Frah M A R AR
EoOMHEMZEFNBESTERNERETEREAESE
i o

720215128310 » A E#850,000,0007% (20205 © A
K 1214,130,0007T) W ERFREREIRIFIEAIRITR
HERIEFR G

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx AR#F T

Cash and cash equivalents: RERREEEY !
Denominated in RMB UAREEE 10,873,329 17,918,844
Denominated in US$ METEHE 250,876 264,737
Denominated in HK$ MAETsHE 97,712 2,548,542
11,221,917 20,732,123

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021, the internal credit rating of restricted cash,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents were regarded as the
grade of performing. The Group has assessed that the credit risk of
the restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and measured
the impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses, and has
assessed that the expected credit losses are immaterial.

ARBAIEHRBAEMES  BREDE MM
GrEEEKRA) R(EE - EBERMEEERT)
AEEBEBERBETIEZFNRTRARE
RBHEHMER -

o

RTREREBESHETERN R FIHIXRFGFR -
RITBHERELRENCRNEEY EHRT
RERREEEYNRIMEELQATERE

R2021F12A31H ZRGIRE BEEFERARRE
EREEBYHNALEAIBRBERAREER K
EEETEZRIRE BEBERRRERAS
ZEYNEE R B YR USRI & KIS0 »
Wiz 12E B WIERREEHEE 2R E BEEHTERE
EEBBITREKRC
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. B ENRIEREMNERE

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REEHR BERNEZEHNAERE ZELNE
BUBRE DATINT :

2021 2020
20214 20205

RMB’000 RMB'000

AEBTT ARBFT

Within 1 year —FEA 12,919,312 12,266,813
Over 1 year —FE 684,260 655,756
13,603,572 12,922,569

Trade payables include RMB675,492,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) due to
suppliers that have signed up to a supply chain financing programme,
under which the suppliers can received a discounted early payment
from the special purpose entities ("SPE") rather than being paid in line
with the agreed payment terms. Under this arrangement, the Group’s
liability is assigned by the supplier to be due to the SPE rather than
the supplier. The value of the liability payable by the Group remains
unchanged. The Group assesses the arrangement against indicators to
assess if debts which have been sold by vendors to the funder under
the supplier financing scheme continue to meet the definition of trade
payables or should be classified as borrowings. At 31 December 2021,
the payables met the criteria of trade payables.

Trade payables are unsecured and are normally settled based on the
progress of construction.

The fair values of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts due to their
relatively short maturity terms.
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BoEMRBEEENESEHEERESIN
HEE > ARM675,492,0000 (ZE_EF+_1
=t+—8:8) Bt HEFTESEHRENEE (I
HENER)) WEAARIBTAN R MIER B E UL
HESSH - RILZH T HEBRAIEBNEEE
BERNCIHRENEREMIEHEER AERELHN
SEEEHIFIE NERIRBISETETH LT
EEAREBEHEERESIDENALENERER
BHENEEZENTENES  MUERDES
BN _E_—F+_RB=+—0 EMAFEFS
B SR RIENIZEE.

BZRMRESBRETF 22 BERREILEESR
%O

REREMER > BN EZREMRIENERAREHR
2 HATEEHARKRIERS-



29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

29. HithEIRIERESEHR

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AR®BTF T

Outstanding payables arising from the acquisition U B8 1 &5 22 4 B9 14 5k 2 A

of equity interests FEfITRIB 58,162 48,162

Due to non-controlling shareholders FEAT I B A Bl FEFE IR AR SR RN IE
of subsidiaries 1,048,111 1,011,769
Deposits Y& 501,570 664,219
Payroll and welfare payable e TE RAEH 210,309 260,498
Retention deposits related to construction HELBERNEFEES 230,119 142,391
Other tax and surcharges HmiRmE R MmeE 379,559 304,861
Accrued expenses FEstRAS 179,435 114,048
Others Hi 128,862 344,355
2,736,127 2,890,303

Other payables and advances from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable
on demand. The fair values of other payables as at the end of year
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30.

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

HMEMRBERNBEABFERREZRNSELR
B RERARBEREE -NER HMENRIEN
AT EREEAARREERS

aHNaE
AN EENEEDT

2021 2020
20214 20206
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T

filty

Contract liabilities =Eo=ki

5

72,460,294 69,086,961

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sales. Payments are usually
received in advance of the performance under the contracts which are
mainly from property development.

FEBRRBENEHEMBRAEFBRAT S WY
RoAEBBENRRECH EE2REYERE) BY
A1 42 A1 AR A 7 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. st ERITRHEMMER
BORROWINGS
2021 2020
20214 20204
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEFIE%) 18 ARETr BEGELD A8 ARETR
Current Eﬂﬁﬂ
Bank loans - secured ROER-BRA Hibor+1.7% 2022 126,875 5.00 2021 12,561
Other loans - secured ﬂﬂﬂgm—ﬁ i 8.80-9.20 2022 747,000 = = =
Current portion of long term bank  RHASEITERHEHEH 4.35-8.08 2022 7,730,586 451-850 2021 5,727,540
loans - secured —-BiEHE
Current portion of long term other R HRE M EFAIENHAZ S 8.80-9.80 2022 899,572 6.20-1090 2021 3,994,330
loans - secured — Bk
9,504,033 9,734,431
Non-current JEEDHR
Bank loans - secured fﬁﬁ‘“-ﬁ BiEH 4.05-8.08 2023-35 24,789,490 435-8.50 2022-35 22,612,905
Other loans - secured HtEZR B 8.53-12.00 2023-24 1,870,000 6.20-11.00 2022-23 3,255,100
26,659,490 25,868,005
36,163,523 35,602,436
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx AR#F T
Analysed into: PaNiiv= I
Bank loans repayable [EZEIRIT BN
Within one year —&ER 7,857,461 5,740,101
In the second year == 12,280,310 11,909,435
In the third to fifth years, inclusive ””_fEE FhF (BIEERME) 12,007,940 10,574,470
Over five year HFEE 501,240 129,000
32,646,951 28,353,006
Other borrowings repayable HhfEEERR
Within one year —FR 1,646,572 3,994,330
In the second year ol 900,000 3,155,100
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FERELF (BIEERME) 970,000 100,000
3,516,572 7,249,430
36,163,523 35,602,436
The Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB-and HKD as at 31 R2021F12831 8 AEBHERUAR B KRBT
December 2021. {Bo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. st RIRITRHEMMER @)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by the AEBBTRITEREMERUTINEEFIRTR Z
pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the EEENRSHFRNERENT !

reporting period as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARB#F T

Property, plant and equipment (note 13) ME - BERERE (MsE13) 8,406 24,049

Land use rights (note 15) TR (MEsE15) 676,666 4,624

Investment properties (note 14) LEYE sE14) 4,475,500 3,091,386

Properties under development (note 20) B P E (FsE20) 55,611,076 56,091,133

Completed properties held for sale (note 21) BEHENBIE TYE (MsE21) 706,730 118,586

Pledged deposits (note 27) B FER (fs27) 850,000 214,130
The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values KRB EEERIALRA StRBTREMERN
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their ATFEAHKRABEEE RAEBELRHNZER
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were AR HAERABIE - FSHMIBBREITHEF

made between the Group and independent third party financial T

institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

Certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to RMB1,307,770,000 2021128318 A AR FERKERBIE=F
were guaranteed by the Company’s non-controlling shareholders AR ANE1,307,770,0007c N E TIRTT R A M AR
and independent third parties as at 31 December 2021 (2020: R (20205 @ AR #2,579,045,0007T) ©
RMB2,579,045,000).

PROCEEDS FROM ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 32. EEIBNES (TEEIRFES)) &

A A =%

(“ABS”) FHFRERRIA
31 December
Contractual 2021
interest rate Closing
Name of ABSs Principal per annum (%) Maturity balance
20215
12A31H
BEEFESLE F& GHERIEXR & HAR A5 AR
RMB'000 (%) RMB'000
ARBTR AE%TR
Radiance Commercial Properties TREEYE 1,700,000 6.00/6.5 2021-2039 1,711,243
Beijing Radiance Plaza Ed ] 3,594,195 4.75/5.8 2021-2039 3,608,332
5,319,575
Less: Current portion A BNEREE 65,705
Non-current portion JERNERER 5,253,870
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

32. PROCEEDS FROM ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 32. REERPESF (TEEIRIFESF)) &

(“ABS") (Continued)

SHFRSRIE (@)

31 December

Contractual 2020

interest rate Closing

Name of ABSs Principal per annum (%) Maturity balance
20204

12A31H

BEMFESLE A& ANEREE JB HAR A ER
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TFT (%) ARETT

Jinhui Group Jinhui Building SREESRET 2,805,907 6 2018-2036 2,817,894
Dongxing Mingzhu Dongxing Mingzhu 650,000 75-85 2021 643,477
3,461,371

Less: Current portion B BEE D 770,798
Non-current portion FFEDERER ) 2,690,573

The balance represented proceeds received from special purpose
entities (“SPE") set up by financial institutions in the PRC for issuance of
asset-backed securities, to which the Group has collateralised certain
future trade receivables for the remaining receipts from the provision
of property lease income. Under an assignment arrangement between
the Group and the SPE, as and when the Group receives the sales
proceeds from customers, the Group would remit any cash flows it
collects on behalf of the SPE.

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's asset-backed securities
are secured by the pledges of property, plant and equipment of

- RMB22, 865 000 (2020 RMB23,468,000) (note 13), right- of use assets

ERIERTESREERINREENER (5%
BERE) BITEERRESWERIAISRIE T
AEBBRHEDEVERABR TRRNE T RKE
ZEWRREER - RELEEREHRENERD
DEZ P AEE B %R P WEH SIS RUER A&
HREHEARSHEENERARRNEIARSR

-

R2021F 128318 ZAEBERK AK22,865,0007T

(20204 : AR #23,468,00070) M2 K E KB

# (ftzE13) ~ ARM19,703,00070 (2020 : AR

#20,302,00070) IEAREEE MzF15) R AR

8,351,000,0007T (20204F : AR 5,064,000,0007T) Y&

L/ %14)%$%E@§¥£§?&#%§%1’H&
: -

T I TITYT



33. SENIOR NOTES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

33. BAERE

1 January The effect 31 December
2021 of foreign 2021
Opening Issued Interest currency Closing
Name of senior notes balance in 2021 expense exchange Payment balance
20215 20215
1A181 120215 ShEERER 12A3181
BARERLE BRI A5 R BT FSHRZ W8 I HAR A5 ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARETR ARBTRE AERBTR AR¥TR ARETE
2021 Notes 010FEH 1,645,957 - 174,659 (30,932) (1,789,684) -
2022 Notes WNEEE 2,030,005 - 204,392 (36,708) (1,115,092) 1,082,597
2023 Notes 0235 EiE 1,619,655 - 156,191 (40,538) (209,331) 1,525,977
2024 Notes (note 1) 2045 24 (3E1) - 1,935,810 44,372 (47,690) - 1,932,492
4,541,066

Analysed into: igsR
Non-current portion FEREBE D 1,891,050
Current portion mEE s 2,650,016
1 January The effect 31 December
2020 of foreign 2020
Opening Issued Interest currency Closing
Name of senior notes balance in 2020 expense exchange Payment balance
122020 1220206
ER=L: 122020 SEER 1283188
BERELTHE HaEe BT FEH% Mg & (e HRAEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFTRT ARBFn ARETx ARBTRn ARBTR ARETR
2021 Notes Q010FEE 1,740,198 - 202,608 (94,241) (202,608) 1,645,957
2022 Notes 00FEE - 2,066,340 208,212 (135914) (108,633) 2,030,005
2023 Notes WBFEER - 1,745,469 81,771 (131,715) (75,870) 1,619,655
5295617

Analysed into: irsR
Non-current portion EREBHH 3,549,874
Current portion REZD 1,745,743

Note 1:  On 20 September 2021, Radiance Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. has
completed to issue senior notes due in 2024 (the “2024 Notes"),
which were publicly listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The 2024 Notes are denominated in US$ amounting to
US$300,000,000 and bear interest at a rate of 7.80% per annum, and
the interest is payable every six months in arrears on 20 March and
20 September or on the business day nearest hereto every half year,
beginning on 20 September 2021.

MizE1 @ 522021898200 » B (EE) BRABTER
BEITR2024F BN ELR TR (T 2024FE8)) »
HRERMERZMARAST AR Em - MUER
HI{E A920244F Z 5 %4300,000,000E 75 R EEE
EXA7.80% BH2021F9820H 1 REEM3
B20B KRB0 HFRIFBAZHNEXED L ¥ F
FAAAE e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TSR R Md =E

31 December 2021

20215128318

33. SENIOR NOTES (Continued) 33. BRERE @
At any time prior to 20 March 2024, Radiance Holdings (Group) Co,, IR (EE) BRAB 122024938208 AiIBE R
Ltd. may at its option redeem the 2024 Notes, in whole but not in BEIZED 2 MIFE D2024F R BEIEESEN
part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of 2024F ZHEASEEMI00% > BMNKRERRAEANER
the 2024 Notes plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and BEREEELDBH (BFaEzH) NESmAN
unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date. The FE (@A) - AABEEIARENR2021E12831H
directors of the Company are of the opinion that they have no plan to B BB O 2024 FE E AT E o

redeem the 2024 Notes prior to 31 December 2021.

The Notes are senior obligations of the Company guaranteed by the ZEERAARRBNERAET AEABIRENH
Company's existing subsidiaries other than those organized under the BAT (MIFRFPEERAMRNK B AS]) /EHIE
laws of the PRC. R
34. CORPORATE BONDS 34. ARMES
1 January 31 December
2021 2021
Opening Issued in Interest Closing
Name of bonds balance 2021 expense Payment balance
#20215 20215
1A18# #20215 1283188
[EE ] &R BT Fil)sE2 I HARAEER

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

16 Jinhui 01 16 1801 500,394 - 853 (501,247) =
16 Jinhui 02 1621802 1,511,192 = 23,198 (1,534,390) =
16 Jinhui 03 1651803 262,521 - 5,729 (268,250) -
18 Jinhui 01 1881801 739,042 - 13,458 (752,500) -
18 Jinhui 02 18& 1802 768,971 - 52,716 (821,687) =
19 Jinhui 01 19& 1801 2,089,398 - 143,374 (150,000) 2,082,772
19 Jinhui 03 19%:1803 1,134,410 S 80,340 (1,214,750) =
20 Jinhui 01 20 101 671,567 = 47,221 (45,175) 673,613
20 Jinhui 02 2051802 511,676 - 36,988 (35,000) 513,664
20 Jinhui 03 2051803 1,225,397 - 86,528 (84,790) 1,227,135
21 Jinhui 01 (note 1) k- UN(EL - 1,346,580 51,171 = 1,397,751
21 Jinhui 02 (note 2) 211802 (Ff3E2) - 850,000 25,107 S 875,107

9,414,568 2,196,580 566,683 (5,407,789) 6,770,042
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

34. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued) 34. REMEF (@)
1 January 31 December
2020 2020
Opening Issued in Interest Closing
Name of bonds balance 2020 expense Payment balance
220205 120208
1A188 20215 1283188
BH4HE YRR #17 FISHZ N AR AEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EFTT ARETFTT AE®TFT AREFTT ARETFT
16 Jinhui 01 16214801 500,394 = 34102 (34,102) 500,394
16 Jinhui 02 16 1802 1,511,192 - 104,390 (104,390) 1,511,192
16 Jinhui 03 1621803 262,521 - 18,250 (18,250) 262,521
18 Jinhui 01 18%: 1801 1,052,898 = 61,144 (375,000) 739,042
18 Jinhui 02 1881802 1,496,092 S 95,659 (822,780) 768,971
18 Jinhui 03 181803 404,382 = 25618 (430,000) =
19 Jinhui 01 1981801 2,084,945 = 154,453 (150,000) 2,089,398
19 Jinhui 02 19& 1802 856,751 - 57,014 (913,765) -
19 Jinhui 03 1981803 1,133,487 - 85,673 (84,750) 1,134,410
20 Jinhui 01 20E 1801 = 645,919 25,648 = 671,567
20 Jinhui 02 0% 1802 S 496,000 15,676 S 511,676
20 Jinhui 03 204 1803 = 1,214,000 11,397 = 1225397
9,302,662 2,355,919 689,024 (2,933,037) 9,414,568
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's corporate bonds were RBEPEFR > AEEARBESNEZARTT :
repayable as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20205

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARH#FTT

Repayable within one year BR—FRNERERE 4,572,592 7,056,468
Repayable within two to five years AFREE 2,197,450 2,358,100
6,770,042 9,414,568
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

34. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

On 18 June 2021, Radiance Group, a subsidiary of the Group
completed to issue five-year corporate bonds with a principal amount
of RMB1,350,000,000 (“21 Jinhui 01"), which were publicly listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 23 June 2021. 21 Jinhui 01 is
denominated in RMB and bears interest at a rate of 6.95% per annum.
Radiance Group is entitled to adjust the interest rate upwards on the
dates which are 15 days of trading prior to the second and fourth
interest repayment dates of 21 Jinhui 01. Upon the adjustment, bond
holders may at their options (“Put Options”) sell back 21 Jinhui 01 to
Radiance Group on the second and fourth interest repayment dates.

On 29 July 2021, Radiance Group, a subsidiary of the Group completed
to issue five-year corporate bonds with a principal amount of
RMB850,000,000 (“21 Jinhui 02"), which were publicly listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 4 August 2021. 21 Jinhui 02 is
denominated in RMB and bears interest at a rate of 6.95% per annum,
and is payable annually in arrears on 29 July or on the business day
nearest hereto each year, beginning on 29 July 2021. Radiance Group
is entitled to adjust the interest rate upwards on the dates which are
15 days of trading prior to the second and fourth interest repayment
dates of 21 Jinhui 02. Upon the adjustment, bond holders may at their
options (“Put Options") sell back 21 Jinhui 02 to Radiance Group on
the second and fourth interest repayment dates.

35. SHARE CAPITAL

34. AEIMEFHF @)

&g :

35. g7

22021568188  AEENHB AR S EEER
METAEEES ARK1,350,000,0007T 89 7 & £
NEMES (12181801 )) » ZESH2021F6H238
ELEBFERZAAH LT 21T EBOIMUARE
EHE > WIREF)K6.95%:t 2 - B EB AN
FRONFE _EARELEFNSEEBRNSERS
HE AR - REHARZE B5FEAT
RBHAE (EHE#) RE_EREHEFE
BEABISBOELTEEER-

D R2021FE7AH AEENKB AR S EBER

SERREE 1T A& RE A AR 16850,000,0007T B B F HA
NRMES (T 215 18021) > ZEHF2021F884H
ELEEERZHARLET 212 B 2UAR
FHE > WIRFEFIZ6.95%t B ZHE202157H29H
B REFEN/AHRARBAZANEEXHRE
EXfto-sBEAEERISBONE _BRSE
MEFSEEEASERSZ HE LBERE R
ELFREE BB ARRBESE#E (TEHEH
) RE_ERFHENSEEAF2IEB2E

Shares &1
2020
20204
HKS
BT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
4,045,227,000 (2020: 4,045,227,000) 4,045,227,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (20204 : 4,045,227,0008%)
(2020: HK$0.01 each) SREE01BTT
(2020%F : SR EE0.0187T) B9
Em S 40,452,270 40,452,270
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

35. BR#s (@)
fe1n (48)
FADRASHNESOT :

Number of

shares in issue Share capital

ERTRMHEE [

RMB'000

ARETT

At 1 January 2020 5220201818 1 =

Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR 1 S

Issue of ordinary shares upon listing REMRETZER 600,000,000 5,207

Issue of ordinary shares on capitalisation NERCRFEITEER 3,399,999,998 29,504
Issue of ordinary shares on an RBERERETEREITEER

over-allotment option 45,227,000 384

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 120205128318 /2021518 1H 4,045,227,000 35,095

At 31 December 2021 520215128318 4,045,227,000 35,095

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 17 October 2019 with authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HKS$0.01 each at par
value.

On the date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 was allotted
by the Company to a subscriber, and was transferred to Glowing Shine
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Lam Ting Keung and Ms. Lam
Fung Ying, on 17 October 2019.

On 6 March 2020, the Company acquired the entire issued shares of
Jubilance Properties from Radiance Group Holdings at a consideration
of US$3.00, which was settled by the Company by allotting and issuing
1 ordinary share to Glowing Shine, being the direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Radiance Group Holdings, on 5 March 2020.

On 5 October 2020, the Company increased its authorised share capital
to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of 9,962,000,000 additional shares of
nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

KABFR2019F 10817 EHREHETMMIL EE
% 75 %380,00078 75 » 43 %538,000,0008% & & EIE0.0178
TTHIRRAD ©

REMmIIBH A A a—2BBARE—KRE
f%0.01B TR > WH2019F 10817 H EE T M
EREERMBELZTEFINABBERBRAR

1220205 386H » KA M300ETHREBESIBE
1 2 U B Jubilance PropertiesfI 2 222171 > B
BREBEBREAATR2020E3858 U AEKE B
EEZERNEEZ2ERB AR BERBTRRHS
HAREEB

F220205F1085H » A2 &) 18 18 18 5%.9,962,000,0008% &

REEOTEBTHREIINRD REEERAEME
100,000,0007 7T ©
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20214E12831H

35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

On 29 October 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 600,000,000 new ordinary shares
with par value of HK$0.01 each at HK$4.30 per share for a total cash
consideration of HK$2,580,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,238,872,000).

On 29 October 2020, 3,399,999,998 shares were issued by way of
capitalisation with par value of HK$0.01 each, and the respective share
capital amount was approximately RMB29,504,000.

On 25 November 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the over-allotment option has been partially exercised
and the Company allotted and issued 45,227,000 additional shares at
HKS$4.30 per share for a total cash consideration of HK$194,476,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB164,955,000).

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(@) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

(b) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid for acquisition of non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries. Details of the movements in
the capital reserve are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the
Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after
tax, as determined under PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the Group,
the statutory surplus reserve may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
the registered capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

244 zymiER (EE) BRAS 2021558

35. @7 (@)

f&1n (48)

FR20205F 108298 REEBBRT L& KARE
5 /%4308 758 17600,000,0008% S BE E(E0.01 B TTHY
AR 43RS 118 742,580,000,000F T (FHE R A
AR #2,238,872,0007T) ©

20208108 29H > 3,399,999,9988% f% 15 T4 3% & B8 E
B0 BT REARZET HERASENAARE
29,504,0007T ©

202011 B258  REABBRT L% BEERKR
BERDITEERABEERIIOETRERET
45,227,00002 Z8IMN& 15 > 4B IR SR (B %194,476,00078 7T
(FEZE R4 AR #164,955,0007T) °

HE2IFNAJBEFE AEENFESBERE
BEPNiREEREHRET]

36. f#fE

BE2021412831 8 IHEE FEBNERSERE
TN T T EEVIR

(@) M imfE
RinEEEDETRMEERMEREZ BN
Ao

(b) BAfEE
A 5 9 R M R R R 0 S BB B
BAF IR AT RN A TE B
IR EA GBI RB BRI A
CLED

(0 EEBRFMHRE

HRAE A B A B R i FR B 3L A B /B8 /A B A9 4R
BERMA > AEEAZREBTFEENI0%
REUEE EERREME WL IRBPE S5t ERE
o EERBRBEEIHIMEANS %
HREEPBIER A ERARSEZMBITEE T
PR B9 AR PR - 7% E B B 18 £ °) AR I B A 4B BN
BIaSIRINR A EERBREBRBRAFIN
REBEMEARRN25% HERSHANERIL
BRLSNNEMA R TR EERRERESD
ke



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

36. RESERVES (Continued) 36. f#fE (@)
(d) Asset revaluation reserve d) BESHHEE
The asset revaluation reserve arises from change in use from an EEEHRERN—EEAVMENRRENRS
owner-occupied property to an investment property. B o

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. 28 R&RERMEE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) FEIIFREXRH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FROAEEMBRLAERBF HELHNE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB17,375,000 (2020: AREEMEEESBENFREAEAARTE
RMB14,159,000) in respect of lease arrangements for office 17,375,0007% (20205 : AE#14,159,0007T) °
buildings.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, non-controlling HE2021F12B31BIEEE > FFERRERA
shareholders injected capital to certain subsidiaries of the Group, EEETHEARIE HPRABAR
where the total consideration amounting to RMB744,252,000 744,252,000 A B FE AT FRIE K2 8 5H R IE B9 4K
was settled with the current account of other payables and BARF#SE (20205 ¢ AR¥8190,000,0007T) ©
accruals (2020: RMB190,000,000).
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing by REBEEBELMNEESE
activities
Total
Proceeds Interest- Senior liabilities
from  bearing bank notes and Due to from
asset-based and other corporate related Lease financing
securities borrowings bonds parties liabilities activities
BERA
BHH  HERTR  BAEER FEf RMEEHN
Fi8mE Hitvfa R AFEF  WESTE HEak BfREAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 #2020E1818 4,582,640 33,445,565 11,042,860 4,911,899 32611 54,015,575
Cash flows (used in)/from MEEH FTR) /
financing activities FrieBshE (1,121,269) 2,283,539 2,847,580 3914 (25901) 3,987,863
New operating leases WRERE - - - - 14,159 14,159
Interest expense HERZ - 118,268 1181615 = 2170 1,302,053
The effect of foreign currency exchange  SMER 2 = = (361,870) - - (361,870)
Cash flows from non-financing activities ~ FREBEBMEREMRE - (244,936) = = = (244,936)
At 31 December 2020 12020128318 3,461,371 35,602,436 14,710,185 4,915,813 23,039 58,712,844
Cash flows from/(used in) MEEHME/
financing activities () Reng 1,600,537 (1,611,463) (4,408,977) 362,575 (21,310) (4,078,638)
New operating leases HRERE - - - - 17,375 17,375
Interest expense HEM% 257,667 2,174,161 1,146,297 = 1,552 3,579,677
The effect of foreign currency exchange  SMER 2 - (1,611) (136,397) - - (138,008)
Cash flows used in non-financing activities  JFREEBFMERENE - - - - (3,705) (3,705)
At 31 December 2021 1%2021512831H 5,319,575 36,163,523 11,311,108 5,278,388 16,951 58,089,545
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20214E12831H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. Z&8R&RERME (@)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (0 THEMIRERHLIEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of BERSXRMEWEENIRSRHBEREUT ©
cash flows is as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Within operating activities WEFEHN 5,048 5,938
Within financing activities MEEEHA 21,627 23,532
26,675 29,470
38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests were set out below:

QEE*?FEH&%EE’J?F%EW%’A

FEEBEAEARFEREENINE A FERIIW
155

Percentage of
equity interest
held by
non-controlling

Profit/(loss)
for the year
allocated to

non-controlling

Accumulated
balances of
non-controlling

interests interests interests
JEEm DEFIFER
PR R EEMER E| el 5
BALE gl EH T
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AR®ETFT
31 December 2021 20215128318
Ronggiao (FuZhou) Real Estate* RifE (M) B2 40% 123,399 1,264,791
Radiance Group TIEER 4% 136,105 906,000
Yangzhou Wanjing Real Estate* ENEEEE 67% 96,759 463,455
Anhui Wanhui Real Estate* ZHRIEE 30% 101,789 126,312
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H
Ronggiao (FuZhou) Real Estate* BfE (BM) B2 40% 49,544 1,141,392
Radiance Group TIEEE 4% 123,837 820,019
Hefei Shengzhuo* BEEe* 77% 366,179 482,216
Fuging Jinfu Xinmao Properties* BEERMEEHE 61% 216,399 331,808
= Ronggiao (FuZhou) Real Estate, Yangzhou Wanjing Real Estate, Anhui X mEGEN BXE - BNEREX THRBEX &

Wanhui Real Estate, Hefei Shengzhuo and Fuging Jinfu Xinmao
Properties are subsidiaries of Radiance Group, and the financial
information set out below only reflects the direct non-controlling
interests in these entities, and the indirect non-controlling interests
have not been included.

246  yEEmR (EE) BRAR  20215ER

BREREFCERNXEMEDCEEENREL
B TXPI#SMBENERRNZEREBHERF
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-
company eliminations:

Ronggiao (FuZhou) Real Estate

38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

?_ﬁjﬁik?ﬂ%ﬂﬁ’féﬁﬂ’\ﬂﬁéﬁm%ﬁ
B (4&)

TRIT LA E AR BHE R E - FTREWN
RARMBRAER QB IR

RLfE (M) B

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREF T

Revenue & 992,730 2,718,097

Total expenses B 48 %8 (684,233) (2,594,236)

Profit for the year FREA 308,497 123,861

Total comprehensive income for the year FAREZEWALERE 308,497 123,861

Current assets TMENE E 6,016,367 6,476,197

Non-current assets ERENEE 228,933 254,740

Current liabilities mEaE (3,061,705) (3,813,457)

Non-current liabilities FREEE (21,617) (64,000)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating &&= 58 (FTAR) EERS

activities PR (61,301) 2,163,562

Net cash flows used in investing activities REGEHMARESREFE (937) (3/408)

Net cash flows used in financing activities MEETEFTREIRE N2 55 (65,294) (2,202,513)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BERIRSEEY R/ FEE (127,532) (42,359)
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31 December 2021
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL  38.

BEEERFEREGNIFZEMBER

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) g (&)
Radiance Group TEEHE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARHEFTT
Revenue g 40,207,014 34,893,248
Total expenses sz 4R%R (36,549,750) (31,201,141)
Profit for the year FEREF] 3,657,264 3,692,107
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREEWALBRE 3,657,264 3,692,107
Attributable to: DUF& e
Owners of the parent ISYNETEZZ= DN 3,402,645 3,095,932
Non-controlling interests R 254,619 596,175
3,657,264 3,692,107
Current assets MENE E 169,449,722 162,400,237
Non-current assets FERBEE 28,167,495 23,214,935
Current liabilities mEas (121,461,291) (112,654,588)
Non-current liabilities FREEE (36,736,745) (36,938,270)
39,419,181 36,022,314
Attributable to: MRS :
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=DN 23,519,372 20,500,467
Non-controlling interests JEER R 2 15,899,809 15,521,847
39,419,181 36,022,314
Net cash flows generated from RS EEERESREFEE
operating activities 2,055,359 1,992,080
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEBMARSREREH (4,224,888) (2,544,934)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing REE 58 (FTH) /EXE
activities HER= /348 (7,598,977) 12,460,210
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRIRESEBY (RL) /Enm
cash equivalents HEE (9,768,506) 11,907,356
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38. B EAEEREZNIEZEHWEL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) g (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12831BIEEE
Yangzhou Anhui
Wanjing Wanhui
Real Estate Real Estate
#=M =z
ERE¥ e B 2
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREF T
Revenue Wz 1,320,090 2,659,935
Total expenses Iz 4R%R (1,175,674) (2,320,638)
Profit for the year FER@EA] 144,416 339,297
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREEWALBRE 144,416 339,297
Current assets RENEE 834,610 756,013
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,124 27,506
Current liabilities mENaE (139,449) (362,479)
Non-current liabilities FERrRHas (6,562) =
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating #&&= 58 (FTAR) /EERE
activities TP RE (114,739) 185,118
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing & Z&8) (FrA) /E4£RE
activities R FRE (49) 49
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEBFAREREERE - (144,396)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

HeRBESEEY CAl) /#Emn
FER (114,788) 40,771
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38. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 38. A S AFIERIESNIEREMRBEL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) g (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F 12831 HILEE
Fuqing Jinfu
Hefei Xinmao
Shengzhuo Properties
BEER
=22 EEME
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARHEF T AREF T
Revenue & 2,649,597 1,414,525
Total expenses Iz 4R%R (2,174,040) (1,059,773)
Profit for the year ERNEA 475,557 354,752
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWALELE 475,557 354,752
Current assets MEEE 629,259 1,144,348
Non-current assets ERENEE 7,987 9,911
Current liabilities mENa A (10,992) (610,312)
Net cash flows used in operating activities REEBFTRAESREEE (92,455) (48,194)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEBMARESREREH - -
Net cash flows generated from MEEHELRERETFHE

financing activities - -

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEWR L EE (92,455) (48,194)




39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

39. HEMB AT

RINHENE 3t E R 2 B BRAF (“Xuzhou Huiyao @) BMNEREMEMEERAE (MEM
Properties Development Co., Ltd.”, “Xuzhou b =: =)
Huiyao Properties”)
Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments RIFEBHH 5202156821 HNREBERAZRE M4
to the articles of association dated 21 June 2021, the BERMET FNEREHMENTMELS
registered capital of Xuzhou Huiyao Properties increased from A AR #20,000,0007t 1% 10 E A K #40,000,000
RMB20,000,000 to RMB40,000,000. The additional capital of 7% © AR #520,000,0007C B9 BB IR A T EH — & 88
RMB20,000,000 was injected by a third party. The equity interest ZHFATFA-AEBN B RS AURAREM
in Xuzhou Huiyao Properties of Jurong Hongyuan Properties ERZEERABINRBNEREMENREH
Development Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Group, decreased 100% FIEES0% e R EETME  KERKLE
from 100% to 50%. Upon the completion of the capital injection, RN B R 5B 3 E I HI R o IE 32 7 TH LUAR 1
the Group lost control over Xuzhou Huiyao Properties. This HEWB AR AK.
transaction is accounted for as deemed disposal of a subsidiary.
The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the date of the RBEHEBR EEABENREABENT :
deemed disposal were as follows:
RMB'000
AREF T
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEZFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEKRZE 54
Properties under development EaERgasky/ES 529,026
Contract cost assets EHRAEE 4,057
Prepayments, other receivables and FENRIE EtEWRIE R EMME E
other assets 56,442
Tax recoverable AU ERIE 9,837
Deferred tax assets RERIEE & 11,385
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 2,851
Trade and notes payables B A RIB R R & (55,441)
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERESTEB (54,991)
Contract liabilities BHAaRE (499,642)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEA R (3,353)
225
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHERMNEREMEZ WK
Xuzhou Huiyao Properties 19,775
Investment in a joint venture REEtENKRE 20,000
Satisfied by cash DIREZ N =
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20215128318

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMEAE @)
() TRNEERR B ith Z R 2 B R A5 (“Xuzhou Huiyao @ HBNEREMERZEARAT (MRM
Properties Development Co., Ltd.”, “Xuzhou IERERE M E]) (48)
Huiyao Properties”) (Continued)
An analysis of the cash flows of cash and cash equivalents in MEBEHERNEREHENRERIREEE
respect of the deemed disposal of Xuzhou Huiyao Properties is MZzREREDTWT !
as follows:
RMB'000
AR®BT T
Cash consideration HEAE =
Cash and cash equivalents of HERMNEBEME
Xuzhou Huiyao Properties disposed of RERRSEEY (2,851)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents MEE—ERBABM
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary RERREEBY 2 ML R (2,851)
(b) HratREZEEMEARRLE ("Hunan Jindafa (b) HMEREZEMERRAR (NHELE
Properties Co., Ltd.”, “Hunan Jindafa Properties”) ERREME])
Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments RIBFBEA2021F6B22BMRERZER
to the articles of association dated 22 June 2021, the AEERMERET NEREEEMAEN
registered capital of Hunan Jindafa Properties increased from MEARARKS0,000,000cEMEARY
RMB50,000,000 to RMB100,000,000. The additional capital of 100,000,0007T ° A B #50,000,0007T B9 38 51 B 4~
RMB50,000,000 and reserve of RMB310,000,000 were injected B AR #310,000,000cNEELH—ZE=5
by a third party. The equity interest in Hunan Jindafa Properties AL FIA - KEBRBEABTBNRIEBEEMES
of Fuzhou Ronghui Properties Co., Ltd. a subsidiary of the RABRNNEREEZEMENRKERIWNT
Group, decreased from 100% to 50%. Upon the completion of FEES0% o FTERME  AEBAEH M
the capital injection, the Group lost control over Hunan Jindafa REEEHMENESE LXZTURIEHE
Properties. This transaction is accounted for as deemed disposal MEAB AR

of a subsidiary.




39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Properties Co., Ltd.”, “Hunan Jindafa Properties”)

(Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

39. HEMHBRE (@)
HraiRE R EMERMR/AE (“Hunan Jindafa (b) HEREBEMERRLAE (HDHFEH

EEEME)) (8

RMB'000
AREF T
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEZFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERRE 837
Right-of-use assets BRAEEE 1,420
Properties under development FEPYE 747,185
Properties held for sale BIEHEYE 16,835
Contract cost assets SHRAEE 4,622
Prepayments, other receivables and AN MIE S EMEWRIE R M E E
other assets 796,719
Tax recoverable AU EIRIE 8,294
Deferred tax assets RERIAE E 54,878
Cash and cash equivalents BEeRIBEEEY 5,744
Pledged deposits BIREER 56,461
Restricted cash ZREIRE 7,847
Trade and notes payables B R RIB R EN R (197,238)
Lease liabilities HEEaR (1,388)
Other payables and accruals HMhEI Bk EtER (567,285)
Contract liabilities sHaeE (573,941)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE (1,163)
359,827
Gain on deemed disposal of RIEHENBEIREERME S W
Hunan Jindafa Properties 173
Investment in a joint venture REBPENISE 360,000

Satisfied by cash

DURE S
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEWBAE @
(b) HratREZEEMEARR LS ("Hunan Jindafa (b) HmiBEZEEMERRARE (THER
Properties Co., Ltd.”, “Hunan Jindafa Properties”) ERREME]) &
(Continued)
An analysis of the cash flows of cash and cash equivalents in MEBEHENHEREEEHENRERIAESE
respect of the deemed disposal of Hunan Jindafa Properties is as BYZRETESHAOT -
follows:
RMB'000
AR®BT T
Cash consideration HEAE =
Cash and cash equivalents of HENBEIREEEMES
Hunan Jindafa Properties disposed of RERRSEEY (5,744)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents MEE—ERBABM
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary RERREEBY 2 ML R (5,744)
(0 FAMEBEMFEMERZEARAF (Jingzhou (0 FiMSERFEMERERAERAR
Jinhui Rongyu Properties Development Co., Ltd. ”, (MM ENERF B E])
“Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties”)
Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders and amendments RIFEBEHA2021F681 ORI EIRZR KA
to the articles of association dated 10 June 2021, the registered BERMANET FANSERFTFEMENE
capital of Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties increased from MEABARK110,000,000TEME AR
RMB110,000,000 to RMB220,000,000. The additional capital 220,000,0007T © A B #5110,000,0007T B 8 M %
of RMB110,000,000 was injected by a third party. The equity KIBTH—SBEZAALTEFARKAEBERB R
interest in Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties Chonggqing Jinhui AFNEERFREME - EBETERIBME
Changjiang Properties Co., Ltd. and Wuhan Jinhui Real Estate BERABARECEEXRRADNKESR
Co,, Ltd, subsidiaries of the Group, decreased from 100% to 50%. 100% FFEESOh T ERM B ZREBKE
Upon the completion of the capital injection, the Group lost HHEMNSIERT B ERIEGIE - LR 7T IU
control over Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties. This transaction RIEHENB AT AR

is accounted for as deemed disposal of a subsidiary.
- ¥

&

- 4

SalpNBaGaN

15111




39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(0)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

39. HEMBATE @

FMNEERTEMERZEEFRAE (“ingzhou (0 FINEEMFEMERZEGRAT

Jinhui Rongyu Properties Development Co., Ltd. ",

(MFMNEERFEE) (&)

“Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties”) (Continued)

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the date of the

deemed disposal were as follows:

REEHER BEEXEENREEBENT

RMB'000
ARHEFT
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEZFE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BERKE 2,166
Right-of-use assets FREEE 24
Properties under development FEEhYE 1,073,989
Contract cost assets EHRAEE 15,590

Prepayments, other receivables BRNRIE EtEW R EREMEE
and other assets 172,828
Tax recoverable AU [E17: 18 12,357
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 19,771
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEEY 6,730
Restricted cash ZIREIRE 23,812
Trade and notes payables B EARIERENER (150,921)
Lease liabilities HEAR @21
Other payables and accruals HthEGRIEREER (166,732)
Contract liabilities sHEE (924,860)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBAE (6,400)
78,333

Gain on deemed disposal of RE L E RN B HBRL T 3 2 2 Wi
Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties 31,667
Investment in a joint venture REELENEE 110,000

Satisfied by cash

DR &S -

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

255



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMBATE (@)

(0 FINMEEmRFEMERZEBRLXE (“ingzhou 0 FINEERMFEMERZERRAE
Jinhui Rongyu Properties Development Co., Ltd. ", (TFIMEERFEME]) (&)
“Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties”) (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows of cash and cash equivalents in MREHEFMNEERFEMENIRERIRE
respect of the deemed disposal of Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu EBYZ2REREDWTAOT -

Properties is as follows:

RMB'000
AR#FTT
Cash consideration BERE =
Cash and cash equivalents of HEMMNEERFEREZ
Jingzhou Jinhui Rongyu Properties RERBEFEY
disposed of (6,730)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents MEE—BNBEARNRE &
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary HEeEEBYZ RHFEE (6,730)
40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HAEE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided PRERAFR RHMBRRIESIEEBENHREGE
for in the financial statements were as follows: wF
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M 5 ARETT ARHEFTT
Guarantees given to banks in connection HER{TEH A RHI%F
with facilities granted to purchasers of KEBYM=EER
the Group's properties BB ER (M 40,093,535 34,134,745
Guarantees given to banks BIRTT R EMEEELRN
and other institutions in BT TRB AR &
connection with facilities FE=FARENER
granted to related companies 2) 1,426,508 5,515,450
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

)

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group's completed properties
held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in the case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted
purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged
to the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on
mortgage repayments by these purchasers, the banks are entitled to
take over the legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through
open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration
of property ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect
of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The directors of the
Company considered that in the case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection with
the guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in
connection with financial facilities granted to the related companies.
The directors of the Company consider that no provision is needed in
respect of the guarantees since the fair value is not significant. Further
details are included in note 42.

Except as disclosed above, during the year and up to the end of the
year, neither the Group nor the Company were involved in any litigation,
arbitration or administrative proceedings, claims or disputes which had
a material adverse effect on the Group's financial condition or results of
operation.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

40. ABE @

m

)

FEERETROODEAERARFHENEINES
RN BRERHIER - RIBRARZEENER
WESERRBEMNR rEBEERARFRITHEE
KEERBAETREBNES AN ERESF SR

IR

B Lk ARNEBERTRERITEAR
BERNIENSR ; WREESERERER REH
TEREEEMETER LEBARMELIER
MEBR

FEENERABRHERRBERABREEES
ERMEMARERREZC L FREAH—KRE
REAFREEBYERN —EMENIRG-

ERAEERRAFERBFHENRTIYEER
RUNEBEREEHNERIREEEMNEKRIE
K- ARBEERHMERENN  EBYENT
SRFERUEEREERBENERTAEF
BRE B E R IR R

FEEMRETFRABABDNERARITREMBEER
HER - ARBDEFI R BANERFLHEF
BRATELFEK E—FFHEHIMET420

PREXFIINBEEN RENRBELRFER  ££H
RERABDLERESEIANAERNMBERRIEE
EEAERTAZEBNHD MEHTEHEF BER
Al o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAF5 R R BT 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

41. COMMITMENTS

41. KiIE
AEERBRERFREUTESRIE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEF T
Contracted, but no provided for: [ERESEES T
— Properties under development — RSy 19,309,596 25,459,665
— Acquisition of land use right — U B - s A 1,434,600 1,111,306
— Capital contribution for acquisition of —EWEREmMEE

equity interests 2,274,644 2,274,644

-~ Capital contributions payable to joint ventures ~—[EAE&E 2 KEE AT
and associates EEFE 128,671 51,171
23,147,511 28,896,786

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

42. BB RS
ERB AR5

(1) Significant related party transactions
The following transactions were carried out with related parties

during the reporting period:

MR ARSI ERmE A ETHRS !

2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Advances from related companies: [Eali/NETE-LE s
Joint ventures aEtE 1,373,304 1,327,461
Associates = Y/NC| 2,091,412 1,047,749
Repayment of advances from Vel UNCIEE
related companies:
Joint ventures b 1,770,137 2,363,933
Associates A =—/NC| 1,332,004 327,276
Management consulting services provided @ F ARt S BB AR :
to:
Joint ventures B 57,132 68,383
Associates =N 50,363 89,654
Sales of properties to family members BETESK/HERKREN
of certain directors and/or a controlling RIEHEHEY =
shareholder 19,630 150,599
Advances to related parties: EIRAE S B
Joint ventures BEhE 2,000,279 4,354,242
Associates I YNC| 2,925,329 1,436,160
Receipt of advances to related parties: W B (] B B 5 RO BB RR -
Joint ventures gz 1,381,211 3,186,087
Associates i —=F/NT| 2,204,088 3,131,607

TIBER (EE) BRAT 2001FF8



42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1

(2)

Significant related party transactions (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

42, AR5 (@)
(M

ERMABMARS (8

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

Property management services provided
by companies controlled by
the ultimate controlling shareholders

MR R ERR IR RIEFIBY

NERENYEEERS

264,411

2020
20204
RMB'000
AEBEF T

213,437

Property lease income from a company
controlled by the ultimate controlling

shareholders

BRARIERRRIZER Y
UNSIRIREL/ES -1/ ON

1,508

1,133

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

Other transactions with related parties:

ZERZREZRE S BB EIERKGF

HFEST

BIRAME TR E M5 ¢

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

Guarantees provided to
related parties:
Joint ventures
Associates

6] B B 75 B2 (L AT AR -

it

smpw
GENE

11

]

883,000
543,508

2020
20204
RMB'000
AREF T

2,986,137
2,529,313
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31 December 2021
20215128318

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3) Outstanding balances with related parties

42. RGBS @)
(3) EARAEETTRIRBEEER

2021 2020
20214 20206
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AEBEF T
Due from related parties: FE W RA B 5 =R 1A
Trade-related: B 5180 -
Joint ventures BEPE 5,000 6,790
Associates = l/N| 7,775 20,796
Due from related parties: [ WS R Bt 5 R IE
Non-trade-related: JEE Z 48R ¢
Joint ventures BEhE 6,242,927 5,623,858
Associates US| 2,384,004 1,662,764
Due to related parties: e RA B 5 7RI -
Trade-related: B 5180 -
Companies controlled by HERARKRREFNAR
the ultimate shareholders 19,867 8,299
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Due to related parties: 1 FoR e 75 RO
Non-trade-related: JEE 5 RE B
Joint ventures b 2,698,875 3,095,708
Associates L A—U/NE| 2,259,600 1,500,192

Balances with the above related parties were unsecured and

repayable on demand. = e
(4) Compensation of key management personnel of 4) XEBRFESEEASFHM
the Group
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTT
Short-term employee benefits WHEEEER 12,638 17,590
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFEHR 500 360
Total compensation paid to key AEFEEEEAESZGHN
management personnel b AR zE 13,138 17,950

TIBER (EE) BRAT 2001FF8



43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

43. BERBNSNERMITA
RS SENEMTANKAENDT

31 December 2021 2021%12H831H
Financial assets ETHMEE
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL
P 85 R A BAFERA
HER bl o)
EREE EMEE “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables (note 22) B 5 EWIE (5E22) 53,467 = 53,467
Financial assets included in AT RIE HtEU

prepayments, other receivables and  FRIBR Hth& &

other assets (note 24) MNEREE Mfst24) 8,231,149 = 8,231,149
Financial assets at fair value through #2AFEF ABRH

profit or loss (note 26) SREE (MI5E26) - 183,876 183,876
Due from related parties FE YR B B 5 7B (e 5E42)

(note 42) 8,639,706 - 8,639,706
Restricted cash (note 27) ZIRFIRE (H5E27) 7,656,569 - 7,656,569
Pledged deposits (note 27) B ER (Mi5E27) 850,000 = 850,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERRSEEY (WsE27)

(note 27) 11,221,917 - 11,221,917

36,652,808 183,876 36,836,684
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20215128318

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, BEHNISHNERT R @

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

THEE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

Y4 68 P 2

=M

rd =R

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade and bills payables (note 28) BRRARIERENER (MizF28) 13,603,572

Financial liabilities included in other SFAEMENRIBERESERZ

payables and accruals (note 29) EREE (HsE29) 2,346,383

Due to related parties (note 42) FE 1T R B 5 T (i 5E42) 4,978,342
Interest-bearing bank and FHERIT R EMMER (WEE31)

other borrowings (note 31) 36,163,523

Lease liabilities (note 15) HEaE (MEs) 16,951
Proceeds from asset-backed EEIRIFESESNAAEHRIE

securities (note 32) (Fff¥32) 5,319,575

Senior notes (note 33) BHRER (HsE33) 4,541,066

Corporate bonds (note 34) NEES (HzE34) 6,770,042

73,739,454




43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

43. REHBSNEMIA @

31 December 2020 20208E12831H
Financial assets ETHMEE
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
PR EE A AR BNFEETA
EN BmH
THMEE ETHMEE wmst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARHFTT ARBEF T
Trade receivables (note 22) B EWEIE (Misk22) 24,191 = 24,191
Financial assets included in FHATEIRIE AU
prepayments, other receivables and  FRIBK H & E R B R
other assets (note 24) BE (f5t24) 3,086,144 - 3,086,144
Financial assets at fair value through I2AFEsF ABEEFE
profit or loss (note 26) HiE (fi5E26) = 144,108 144,108
Due from related parties (note 42) JPE Uit B8 Bt 5 =k 1B (B 5E42) 7,314,208 = 7,314,208
Restricted cash (note 27) ZIREIIRE (MF5E27) 5,420,396 - 5,420,396
Pledged deposits (note 27) BiEmEm (fisk27) 438,433 = 438433
Cash and cash equivalents RBERREEEY
(note 27) (MI5E27) 20,732,123 = 20,732,123
37,015,495 144,108 37,159,603
Financial liabilities EHaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
2 84 R A
FFEN
THEE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Trade and bills payables (note 28) B S EMRIBERENSZRE (HfsE28) 12,922,569
Financial liabilities included in other FAEMENRIERESER
payables and accruals (note 29) EReEE MIsE29) 2,515,757
Due to related parties (note 42) PEATRE B 5 7R 1E (B 5E42) 4,604,199
Interest-bearing bank and FFEIRITREMMER (EE31)
other borrowings (note 31) 35,602,436
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEASE (ME5) 23,039
Proceeds from asset-backed securities (note 32) = ERRESELSNREHIE (MsE32) 3,461,371
Senior notes (note 33) BRER (HsE33) 5,295,617
Corporate bonds (note 34) NEMES (HI5E34) 9,414,568
73,839,556
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

4. THITANAFERAFEER

FEATHIA CREEREATESEAENESRT
AR REREERATENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ATE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20205 2021 20208
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR%ETFT ARETT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair value BAFESABGNEHEE
through profit or loss (note 26) (F3E26) 183,876 144,108 183,876 144,108
Financial liabilities ERER
Interest-bearing bank and ERTRAMER
other borrowings (note 31) (MzE31) 36,163,523 35,602,436 36,214,082 35,532,022
Proceeds from asset-backed BERKIPESESNEIE
securities (note 32) (FzE32) 5,319,575 3461371 5,219,573 3,685,557
Senior notes (note 33) BRER (H5833) 4,541,066 5,295,617 3,985,812 5,409,713
Corporate bonds (note 34) NEMES (Hi5E34) 6,770,042 9,414,568 6,446,980 9,003,493
52,794,206 53,773,992 51,866,447 53,630,785

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and amounts due from/to related companies
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

264 iR (EE) BRAS 2021558
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EERE RAEENARZEIARARRE-



44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by financial institutions in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
certain proceeds from asset-backed securities have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of certain proceeds from asset-backed securities,
corporate bonds and senior notes are based on quoted market prices.

44,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

ETMTANAFERATFEER @

FEENPYHBPIHYHEERE A ER TR
TARTENENBERKER MHEEEZAY
HREER NEBRSEMHM MBHMIOFERMIA
BENEFHER TEEGHEMANIEHAYE-
HMERVMBEBEEZIME GEEGRHELEZE
BEFETM R MUFRBREEM BB -

THEERBENATENBERZH RBIFR
HERIN BRIRZPZTENATZEFRARKR DL
TRARGS R TENG ERERR

FERRENRIFLTRE MATEAMIRITEST
2BMER AEREZRAFHEMUFRKARZ
TAZzHBMNE ESRKRREREMGERE 5
ZEFLHREZAFE.

FERTAREMERAE TEERFESESNAR
BREBNATENEBBAPRKERESRERIRH
AAREBEUER - ERRABKGTERBPRZT
BRREETMIRAE - AEER2021F1283188
BN EBRTREMERNAENRRIETE SN
REKe

ETEERARSESHNAERE - REESKE
REBNATEDIETHRESE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44, TRTENATFERATERELR (@&
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy REBEREHR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRITAEEESMTENATEFNZER :

the Group's financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: BATESAENEE

Fair value measurement using

EANTRBEMRENATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERWS L EXTRE EATUER

HE BAHE LV ¢
(E—%) E=®) B=® 5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at 31 December 2021 #2021512H31H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABENEREE
through profit or loss 22,457 161,419 - 183,876
As at 31 December 2020 2020128318
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABENEREE

144,108

- through profitor loss " g 25837 118,271




44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

44, THITANAFERATFEER @

DT ERER (B
FURBAFENER:

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEERENATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEmE L EXATHRE EXFAER
MR E BABE BABE
(E—%) (BZ4) (B=H) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

As at 31 December 2021 12021128310
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 8 $R1T R E &M = 36,214,082 = 36,214,082
Proceeds from asset-backed BEBRESEGNMENE
securities 1,603,631 3,615,942 - 5,219,573
Senior notes BEREE 3,985,812 - - 3,985,812
Corporate bonds NEES 6,446,980 = = 6,446,980
12,036,423 39,830,024 - 51,866,447
As at 31 December 2020 12020128310
Interest-bearing bank and HERTREMER
other borrowings - 35,532,022 - 35,532,022
Proceeds from asset-backed BEBRESESNMENE
securities 648,577 3,036,980 - 3,685,557
Senior notes BREE 5,409,713 - = 5409713
Corporate bonds UNSIN=E 9,003,493 - = 9,003,493
15,061,783 38,569,002 - 53,630,785
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20215128318

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45, MERAGEBRBERBEE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, restricted cash, trade receivables, and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, corporate notes, financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group'’s bank and other borrowings
set out in note 31. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its
interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year of the Group would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB17,513,000 (2020:
RMB25,380,000).

FEENTIEZTHRIATZORCEERELENR
ERIBTHEF ZRFRE - BZEEKREBURES
REMENRE AEEREFEMSHEERAE
Wt BIRITREMER - BERE QRABDEH EAQ
TEFABENERIE BARARDMEREME
WHRE ZETMTANTIEZENRAAEERNKL

REAEBSRTIENETZRAB AT RER IMNE
R -EERRRAHETRAR - BE FAEHTETA
REEFESIARTHRE AEERFARNET
RZBENTEESRIA-EFTTERIAEE
EEBRARER ARBRRLN T -

(@) FIZEJE R
AEB@ERNHIZH EEB RS E LM
BT 8 A 5 B SR 1T K EL i (& 70 A B o A & B 3
FERTEESMT AR PFIERR AEBFER
FERIRTENEEHANE M-

R2021F 128318 MEMBAEMESHIFF
BIE R TIRITERNFE LA TEI1% BIA
E@ERERPBRRADENRR LD B INA AR
#£17,513,0007T (20204F : A R %825,380,0007T) ©



45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from the Group's cash and cash equivalents and
senior notes. The currency in which they are denominated is
USS. There is no significant impact on foreign currency risk.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

2021412831H

45, BERAGEIEBIZEREE (&)

(b) SN EEZ
FEBRERXFEBREB 2SRABIEEE
BREENREARSSEYUREBRRE-
REMNEEUETHE-INERARHBEZIE
REE-

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
Uss$ or (decrease) Increase/
HKS$/RMB in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity
ExH#BT
AR
EBEXLH IR A F L
(F &) @, (el i, L)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREBTT
31 December 2021 2021512H31H
If the RMB weakens HARBRETEE
against USS (5%) (258,613) (258,613)
If the RMB strengthens MARERETFAE
against USS 5% 258,613 258,613
If the RMB weakens HARBRATEE
against HK$ (5%) 4,886 (4,886)
If the RMB strengthens M ARERATFAE
against HK'$ 5% (4,886) 4,886
31 December 2020 20205 12831H
If the RMB weakens MARBRETEE
against US$ (5%) (251,544) (251,544)
If the RMB strengthens MARBERETAHE
against USS 5% 251,544 251,544
If the RMB weakens MARBRATERE
against HKS (5%) 127,427 (127,427)
If the RMB strengthens M AR ERABTHE
against HK' $ 5% (127,427) 127,427
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B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Credit risk

The Group divides financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit
risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant increases
in credit risk and calculation of impairment. To manage risk
arising from trade receivables, the Group has policies in place to
ensure that credit terms are made only to counterparties with an
appropriate credit history and management performs ongoing
credit evaluations of the Group’s counterparties. The credit
period granted to the customers is generally six months and the
credit quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account
their financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Group also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and amounts due from related parties as well as individual
assessments on the recoverability of other receivables and
amounts due from related parties based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Group classified financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and amounts due from
related parties.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December 2021. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

270  #EemR (EE) ARAT  20215ER

45, HFERAGEEBEREEK @

(0 EERM

REBENHERBEERARSH NI EER
REERRER BSEMT EETHLE UE
EEERBAREMNMAIERE SEEES
R IBE SN AER  AEE B F EBERRE MR
ENEEBECEERENEFAREEESR
BEEBREAEENSEFAHFEETEEN
HoZERPRERNEER—KRANER A
ZEFEPNEEESNREEHT BRI B
FRBEREMEEMETHE - AEETREH
TEMEBETEEAUBFREZESREETEILIEE
HAFEWLRRIE o b5 AN E B E BB 5T B 5 IR
FIER U E £ 58 LR o U E £ 285t
REENREGRR AERUTESEETNE
ER BEEERBEIBEAEHFARE
ﬁlo

BIEEE Y ATRMRE  HEBGRIEK
Hih&BEN R BB RIENSMEEFE
RS UREUEGELRRBEAREH
1H FE WS RR TR e P SRR Bk 7 7R TR A BT U [B1 14 3
TEBNME - AEBREEF —MRHESATEN
TRIR ~ LA W R IR e ELAth B 7 DA 7 W B Bt
ARIENTMEEETOR URFEENHEE
ERB -ARBESRR FEBEFAELR
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RENEREEZ REFEHRAE L BEFE
BEXEERR-
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TREHR2021E 12831 HNERETEREE
BENEEEZRREEERAR (FEZERA
BN BRIFEMBER I EEEE IR ERAE
A5 /BN BT EER > B B YER M) LUK £ R B ER
DE-FRYMNESHEESHEENEEREER
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Trade receivables*
Financial assets included in
prepayments and
other receivables
-Normal**

Due from related parties
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Restricted cash

-Not yet past due
Pledged deposits

-Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
-Not yet past due

5 EE
stARRERHMER
MENEHEE

_Eﬁ%‘***
FEUR BB 5 RUA
BATESARENEREE

BRHHAS
R
AR
R
ReRALSEN
R
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B F5 IR R M EE
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2021412831H

45, BERAGEIEBIZEREE (&)

(0 EEREE ®&
1202154128318

12-month

ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12851
BEHEE

3| BEFENNTEREERE

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—IER FRE FERE [kl 3 st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARBTR AE¥TR ARETR ARETR

- - - 53,467 53,467
8,231,149 - - - 8,231,149
8,639,706 - - - 8639706
183,876 - - - 183,876
7,656,569 - - - 7,656,569
850,000 - - - 850,000

11,221,917 - - - 11,297

36,783,217 = 53,467 36,836,684

Annual Report 2021 Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited

271




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020

45. MBEAREEBRKREER @)

(0 EERARE @&
720205128318

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12/8A 8
BHEE
B8 BEFZESNEREESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—MEE FIMEE FEMEE BIEH % @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARBTrn ARETrR ARETR
Trade receivables* E iy - = = 24,191 24191
Financial assets included in 5t ATB{3 2018 R At fE U
prepayments and HENEHEE
other receivables
~Normal** —EE* 3,086,144 - - - 3,086,144
Due from related parties ~ FEWN A A FUE 7,314,208 S S S 7,314,208
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABGZHNEHEE
through profit or loss 144,108 - - - 144,108
Restricted cash ZRERS
—Not yet past due —IH AR EHA 5,420,396 - - - 5,420,396
- Pledged deposits BERER
~ Notyetpastdue  —HKEHH 438433 - - - 438433
0,732,123 - - - 20,732,123

Mot yet past due_

e T

37,159,603




45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Credit risk (Continued)

*

*%

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the expected credit losses is disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements. There is no significant concentration
of credit risk.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds, senior
notes and proceeds from asset-backed securities. Cash flows are
being closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M FSRR R M 5E

31 December 2021
20215128318

MEBEEEEBRKREBER @)

(0 EERE @&
* FEREBRERBREEGRNAESRR
FERRIET AR B 5 EUGRIAR M B 3R
EffFRRBE - TESEETHNEER

45 o
AR

= Et ATRA IR ~ E A AR U IR R HL A
BN EIEEREENEERRK
TRIEM RIEEEERRERIER]

(d) REBEZER
FEBNERRABBERS BRITREME
TORBES BAEBREERFESES
RSB RERFEERE R BT
B AEBFETYRERSRE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45, HEEGEIEEERBER @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d)y wREEERE (@)
REENRREHREEBARBERGIGENE
MEENEEBRBEROT

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Less than 3t012 Over 1
On demand 3 months months year Total
=F
BER Z=ERMUA +Zf@8AR —FEM)E Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETn ARETR
31 December 2021: 20215128318 ¢
Trade and bills payables B HETRERENZH 13,603,572 = = - 13,603,572
Other payables HitE [ HIE 2,346,383 - - - 2,346,383
Due to related parties M BR R 5 FIB 4,978,342 - - - 4,978,342
Lease liabilities HE&RE - 4,525 9,711 5,814 20,050
Interest-bearing bank and 5t B IR1T R L&
other borrowings - 919,097 10,581,133 29,116,959 40,617,189
Proceeds from BERERSESNMEIE
asset-backed securities - 81,167 244,399 7,846,014 8,171,580
Senior notes BEEE - 1,130,897 1,681,072 2,136,497 4,948,466
Corporate bonds NEVESH - - 2,837,865 4,502,900 7,340,765
20,928,297 2,135,686  15354,180 43,608,184 82,026,347
31 December 2020; 2020% 128318 :
Trade and bills payables BRI HIBR R 2 12,922,569 = = - 12922569
Other payables HitE 7B 2,515,757 - S S 2,515,757
Due to related parties M BE R A 708 4,604,199 - - - 4,604,199
Lease liabilities HEaE - 5,138 12,096 9,644 26,878
Interest-bearing bankand 5t B5R1T R EL M &N
other borrowings - 1,354,355 5,704,655 32,953,931 40,012,941
Proceeds from BERERSESNENE
asset-backed securities - 101,645 859,698 4,408,748 5,370,091
Senior notes BEZE = 181,474 2,001,105 3,819,921 6,002,500
Corporate bonds UN=IN-E= - 469,987 4,681,600 6,813,465 11,965,052
20,042,525 2,112,599 13,259,154 48005709 83419987
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

45.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA TS SRR Y 5

31 December 2021
20215128318

MEBEEEEBRKREBER @)

(e) Capital management () BAXREIE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are AEBEAEENTEHEZARERAEBRFE
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern RENENTERFBRNEARILE UTFHH
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its EBUFEREEERAI
business and maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEMEREBESHRINSCEERBEEE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or KEE - BERFNABRELER AEEHT
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend FBEIN FRERNBENRERRE AR ET
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue A% o
new shares.
The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which rEERAEEARLE REHEERRE
is based on total indebtedness less cash and bank balances FRAIRITAEER  BRIAFE R s AR BB B SR LA100%5T
divided by total equity at the end of the year and multiplied by B) REZFEER - BHBEIEH BIRITREM
100%. Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank B RABESFEREAERBEZBE - NEEH
and other borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes. The SRR EESRBLEENT !
net gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSBTT AR#EF T
Interest-bearing bank and sEIBITREMMER
other borrowings 36,163,523 35,602,436
Proceeds from asset-backed EEKIBESESNAENRE
securities 5,319,575 3,461,371
Corporate bonds REMES 6,770,042 9,414,568
Senior notes BREE 4,541,066 5,295,617
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o IRERIBEEBY (11,221,917) (20,732,123)
Restricted cash ZIRHIRE (7,656,569) (5,420,396)
Pledged deposits [SEiFEECE N (850,000) (438,433)
Net debt B35 33,065,720 27,183,040
Total equity T mAR%E 37,571,705 36,112,406
Net gearing ratio BEAM/ALE 88% 75%

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No information is received after the reporting period about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period.

46.

BEHREMS

BERNRSHREIAMN RS HREENRMEN

Hit o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE

31 December 2021

20214E12831H

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

T RB WM FEAR TR

REBERRBEMARABDYBRARNELNT !

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RRBABNKRE 1 1
Total non-current assets FERBEEEE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS BB E
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEEY 98,792 12,484
Prepayments, other receivables and FENMIEs EMERRIE R EME E
other assets 383 -
Due from subsidiaries & Uit B A Bl =R IE 3,048,767 2,254,319
Total current assets MEEERE 3,147,942 2,266,303
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENaE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFEIRITTREMMBER 126,875 -
Due to subsidiaries FESTH B AT 7 IE 41,606 =
Other payables and accruals HihERIERESER 379 3,622
Total current liabilities MBI B E4ERE 168,860 3,622
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 2,979,082 2,263,181
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BELAERTEBAR 2,979,083 2,263,182
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBAR
Senior notes BRER 1,891,058 =
Total non-current liabilities EREFEBELREE 1,891,058 -
Net assets BEFE 1,088,025 2,263,182
EQUITY 1w
Share capital Bz 35,095 35,095
Reserves i 1,052,930 2,228,087
Total equity T AREE 1,088,025 2,263,182
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 IR R M EE
31 December 2021

2021412831H

47. ZRBWIRBRRR (@

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABNRERZWT !
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
s B EE LSt @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FT N AR®ETT AREBTFT
Balance at 17 October 2019 120198108178

(date of incorporation), (FEfAR I B ~

31 December 2019 and 2019128318 K

1 January 2020 202051 B1 H VAR = - (17) 17)
Total comprehensive income FREEBALLE

for the year - - 638,029 638,029
Issuance of new shares BTIRA 35,095 2,297,175 = 2,332,270
Dividends and distributions BERD K = (707,100) (707,100)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R20206 12831 B R4S ER 35,095 2,297,175 (69,088) 2,263,182
Balance at 31 December 2020 and R2020E128318 &

1 January 2021 202151 B IR 35,095 2,297,175 (69,088) 2,263,182
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERNEEBALE - - (82,946) (82,946)
Dividends and distributions g B Rk = (1,092,211) = (1,092,211)
Balance at 31 December 2021 12021512831 BBV ER 35,095 1,204,964 (152,034) 1,088,025

48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 25 March 2022.

48. #HLEMBEE®RER

JR2022F3A2SHM B RREEFTGH AL EET

ééo
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FZalER

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20216 20205 20195 201845 20175
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AR#ETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTFRT

Revenue WA 40,025,826 34,875,174 25,963,108 15,971,183 11,776,599
Cost of sales HEMA (32,278,375) (27,162,266) (20,300,888) (11,145,666) (7,984,939)
Gross profit E7 7,747,451 7,712,908 5,662,220 4825517 3,791,660
Other income and gains =L ONT 6 183,846 436,406 187,641 68577 19721
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERS (1,449,318) (1,152,834) (771,495) (519,332) (434,319)
Administrative expenses T8RS (1,195,415) (1,196,128) (988,052) (795,006) (596,821)
Finance Income BIIA 183,478 95,302 100,431 213,893 268,686
Finance costs EI={0% (349,885) (525,246) (494,863) (571,509) (344,564)
Other expenses Htnp% (44,875) (80,592) (49,065) (101,646) (34,655)
Fair value gains on investment properties R B EN A FERE 656,986 437,006 480,869 616,536 317,755
Fair value gains or loss from financial assets A FEt ABGHE/ME

at fair value through profit or loss ENRTERGNEE (6,085) 77 (266) 3,102 268
Share of profits and losses of: TR ARG KRR
Joint ventures aEhE 98,366 992,533 510,165 (24,121) 426,721
Associates i =UNG| 641,082 (182,519) (68,769) (65,674) 54,329
Profit before tax R AT EA 6,465,631 6,536,759 4,568,816 3,650,337 3,468,781
Income tax expense FriEfipEs (2,771,936) (2,717,686) (1,878,828) (1,350,460) (1,247,438)
Profit for the year FERaEF 3,693,695 3,819,073 2,689,988 2,099,877 2,021,343

- Attributable to: DUFE AR
. &’Lﬂiﬁﬁ)\; i 3274774 I! ﬁ 3 Jg7 26 2,508,068 2,007,939 2,030,835
= ' . 418,921 181920 291938 190,508

- 3693695 ’LD:LLm/L 2009877 2221343




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY FeEE-BERESR
As at 31 December
®+-B=+—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20205 20194 20185 20178
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBETT AEEFRT ARETRT AEBETFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FrRBEE 28,172,664 23,216,150 10,698,717 18,381,164 15,501,726
Current assets TEEE 163,474,648 162,445,338 129,645,846 102,231,219 71,257,908
Total assets BERE 191,647,312 185,661,488 149,344,563 120,612,383 86,759,634
Equity and liabilities EnkadE
Total equity R 37,571,705 36,112,406 21,379,202 17,532,190 14,596,775
Non-current liabilities FrEasd 38,628,520 36,938,270 32,676,990 22,600,859 23,283,154
Current liabilities REas 115,447,087 112,610,812 95,288,371 80,479,334 48,879,705
Total liabilities BEEE 154,075,607 149,549,082 127,965,361 103,080,193 72,162,859
Total equity and liabilities EERERAE 191,647,312 185,661,488 149,344,563 120,612,383 86,759,634
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ITERBMESE

Type of Total GFA
Project Properties City Address (sq.m.) Tenure Status
BREEE
BB ES 1Y o stk (EAK) HR &
1. Beijing Radiance Plaza Office Beijing Qiyang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC 102975  Medium term lease Completed
LREBAE NG bl TEERTHBERMBRE FHEE B#T
2. Beijing Radiance Park 18 Office Beijing No. 1 East Fourth Ring South Road, Beijing, the 174,907  Medium term lease Completed
PRC
TREBEN\E i bl FEERHREMIREE R FHEE BBT
3. Chongqing Jinhui Plaza Commercial Chongging No.13 Fenglin Road, Nan'an District, Chongging, 120846 Medium term lease Completed
the PRC
EFTRES [EES ] TEEETEFERERR FHEE B#T
4. linhui City Phase IV (Bronze Road) Commercial Chongging No.16 Nanbin Road, Nan'an District, Chongging, 72,854  Medium term lease Completed
the PRC
SEPNH=12 e [EES ] TEEETEFERERIHR FHEE B#T
5. Xian Jinhui Global Plaza (Mall) Shopping mall ~ Xi‘an No. 855 Yanta South Road, Yanta District, Xi'an 124,336  Medium term lease Completed
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
AR EBRIRES (B5H) BYES i FEIRFE S AR T R & R R ERess et FHEE BT
6. Jinhui Building (International Plaza) Office Xi‘an No. 22 of Fenghui South Road North Section, 48,685 Medium term lease Completed
Lianhu District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province,
the PRC
EBAE ERES) NG i TERAERZHENEEEERIR2R FHEE B#T
7. Chuangzhi Building Commercial Xi'an No.1 Tuanjie South Road, Lianhu District, Xi‘an 20,497  Medium term lease Completed
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
EIERE (GRS i FERAEARTEAE SRR FHEE BET
8. Xi'an Jinhui Global Plaza (Block B) Office Xi'an No. 889 of Jinhutuo Second Road, Yanta 27,905  Medium term lease Completed
District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
AZEIBIBIRES (BR) HiN i HERFEEREZHREE ST K895k FHEE B#T
- 9. Fuzhou Jinhui Mansion qu{\mercial Fuzhou No. 492 Hualin Road, Jin‘an District, Fuzhou City, 16,760 Medium term lease Completed

Fujian Province, the PRC
TEZBEMR402% HERE B#T
Jz?é.g.ﬁiw* ﬁ

lll

‘ ’\ 30,622 Medium term lease  Completed

'|| o’
., .f.-\_.— >
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